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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NRIER
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GROUP STRUCTURE
SRS

As at the date of this report, the shareholders and the principal subsidiaries of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited were as
follows:

RARER @ AR REAXEERNERARZBERLIEMBARTNT :

Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary |

Food Company H shareholders

Other domestic shareholders

LEFEE R RENT HiRNERERR HARAR 3R

AA wes

40.61% 15.20% 44.19%

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited
TRREEEREEROERLA

100.00% 55.66% 79.85% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Xinyang Tongli Beijing Chaopi Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Chaoyang
Shouchao Commercial Facilities Trading Company (Langfang) Supermarket Chain Jingkelong Vocational
Company Limited Company Limited Limited Company Limited Company Limited Skills Training School

ERmEE ERMESE OB IR E R IERFEEE (FRLS) tRERE ERTEEEREE
EFEEE NG RIBARDT BRAHE BRAF BhHEHEARAR BB REEIRR
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
SSERWME

Dear shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Beijing Jingkelong
Company Limited (the “Company” or “Jingkelong”), | am delighted
to present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the

“Reporting Period”).

Innovation and transformation are the top priority measures of the
Group for its survival and business development in response to our
difficult situation of the ever-changing retail business, intensifying
competition and challenges from all sides. As new business modes,
new technologies and new consumption pattern emerge, enterprises
are required to undergo reform and breakthrough on the aspects
including business philosophy, management system and mode of
profitability. The key driving force for our pursuit of self breakthrough
is our determination to establish a new innovative corporate culture.
Therefore, enterprises not only recognize innovation is the soul of
establishment of corporate culture and the key to the upgrade of their
corporate competitiveness, but also innovation should be applied
gradually and thoroughly into all aspects of establishment of corporate
culture, including the practice of operation and management. This can,
in turn, motivate innovative thinking among staff and stimulate the new
innovation business and ultimately enhance corporate profitability and

brand image.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2015, China’s macro-economic growth slowed while new business
modes, new technologies and new consumption pattern emerged. In
light of the ever-changing market, increasing competition and rise of
replaceable competition in the industry, the Group achieved a reform
and self-breakthrough on aspects including business philosophy,
management system and mode of profitability in response to the market
changes and competition trend. The Group also promoted innovative
corporate culture, motivate staff to develop innovative thinking and
break the boundary of our established thinking with new way of
thinking. Meanwhile, the Group motivated the innovation on business
operation and operational management to revive the corporate vitality

and increase our competitiveness in new competition landscape.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved the following results:

— Revenue from principle business was RMB10,572,672,272,
representing an increase of approximately 5.7% as compared to
2014;

— Gross profit was RMB1,352,008,739, representing an increase of

approximately 1.5% as compared to 2014;

— Gross profit margin was approximately 12.8%, representing a

decrease of approximately 13.3% as compared to 0.5% in 2014;

— Total profit was RMB113,379,113, representing a decrease of
approximately 14.4% as compared to 2014;

— Profit attributable to shareholders of parent company was
RMB24,864,512, representing a decrease of approximately
39.8% as compared to 2014;

— Basic earnings per share was RMBO0.06 (2014: RMBO0.10);

— The proposed final dividend per share was RMBO0.05 (2014:
RMBO0.10).

On retail business, in the face of pressure of increasing production cost
and diversion of consumers arising from change of consumption pattern
amid rapid development of e-commerce, the Group took specific
measures for reform and innovation. With such measures, the Group
adhered to the policy of “product+service” and used mobile and internet
technologies to develop mobile APP business in the hope that our
differentiated competitive edge that differs from internet shopping can
be developed and accumulated for development of customized staple
food. The Group also paid attention to the standardized packaging
operation of fresh food and introduce a convenient and fast way of
mobile payment to promote the combined development of online
and offline business. On our wholesale business, the Group actively
introduced new brands, explored new types of products and stepped

up development of customized food and private label products.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWME

In terms of wholesale business, the Group continuously strengthened
the introduction of new brands, explored new product types, stepped
up development of customized food and private label products and
stabilized and consolidated the offline distribution channels. Meanwhile,
to capitalize the development trend of e-commerce, the Group
enhanced cooperation with e-commerce business sales platforms,
expanded the business of e-commerce business suppliers and
increased the online selling rights of existing products for which the
Group acted as a distributor and agent. The Group also strengthened
the construction of standardized logistics and distribution centers to
improve the efficiency and service standard of logistics and delivery
and consolidate our competitive edges on logistics and delivery.

OUTLOOK

Looking into 2016, the macro-economic environment will be still
complex and ever-changing. Facing the difficulties and challenges,
the Group will conduct our business by catering to varying consumer
needs and control corporate operation cost and customer’s
purchasing price while establishing the value synergy mechanism
between online and offline business, among different business modes
and between retail and wholesale business. Through data application
and sharing, the relationship with upstream suppliers and downstream
customers can be changed and a price game can be turned into value
sharing. The Group also optimizes the regional strategic layout, the
structure of product portfolio and logistics delivery capability. A self-
breakthrough in terms of retail business, sales and marketing channels
and establishment of innovative corporate culture will be achieved to
reshape our competitive advantages.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude to
our shareholders for their trust and support; to all investors, business
partners, suppliers and customers for their support and assistance,
and our appreciation to all staff and the management team for their
hard work and contribution to the Group during the Reporting Period.

Li Jianwen
Chairman

Beijing, PRC

21 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, the macro economy was still under relatively
strong downside pressure, and the economic situation was full of
challenges and fluctuations. On one hand, the Group had to cope with
the pressures from the slowdown of sales growth, as well as continual
rise of necessary expenses such as labour and rental costs, etc. On
the other hand, the Group had to face the impact from the upgrading
of consumption, as well as the changes in consumption habits and
diverted consumer demands caused by the rapid rise of e-commerce.
As a result, the Group’s business operation was confronted with an
abnormally adverse environment. In response to the changes in the
competitive environment, the Group actively adjusted its strategies
and utilized the technologies of the mobile internet to develop mobile
e-commerce. It attached great importance to consumer demands and
placed emphasis on commodities and services. The Group engaged
itself in online and offline marketing activities and endeavoured to
raise the revenue of retail and wholesale sales, striving to curb the

downward slide in profitability.

RETAIL BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, in view of the new changes in the online
and offline markets of fast-moving consumer goods, especially those
in the Greater Beijing Region, and in view of the hypermarkets in key
cities and provincial-level cities in China reporting a negative growth
(-1.5%) for the first time, the Group adjusted the strategy for store
expansion and became prudent in enlarging its network of physical
stores. It put more emphasis on improving the environment of currently
operating stores, and renewed the facilities and equipment of the
stores to bring about better shopping experience to the consumers.
During the Reporting Period, the Group renovated and upgraded
9 stores (including 4 supermarkets and 5 convenience stores).
Throughout the year, the Group opened 5 franchise-operated retail
stores. Due to reasons such as the expiration of the terms of leasing
and modifications to the development strategy, during the Reporting
Period, the Group closed down 1 supermarket, 12 directly-operated

convenience stores, and 16 franchise-operated convenience stores.

B E e M AT

O

BREHA  ZERLBERERARBRARATITES
RERZ T MBERKZE - AEE— 77 HmERH
ERERE ATKA - HeFHEEREE
EFROEN - BSOHEEEARAREFES
REFFESRAEEEBE(CERBEEEDROE
B REVEETEE - AREBEZFIREN
Bt BEAE  ERBHEBHARMERED
ETHEY  RERERHEBERK  ZERNEME
R% - RRER LG TEHEE  BHEAHER
A BHAMETRBE

A3
I
M
oo

REHE  FAEEHERERTREEERMS
LEREANEFMENIFEL - R 220165
ARESEEZREHATHNEATENREBER
(-1.5%) &L - ABEHARKE  FEAORE
RBIEMPG  ENRABAEHLERER - B
[EHRERE  NEHEEBYER - REHNA
TR T ORI E MM R ERETR(S4FEA BT R
SEEFAIE) - 2FHMATEMB/EMHSE - BED
FHIAR G SR HBEERA - wEHEER T 1
RsREET 12MEZEAE k16 mBEEMNE -

2015 &R
IR RREEEEERNDERAR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

The total number of the Group’s retail outlets was 261 as at 31 HE-Z—RAF+-_A=+—H  A£EZTEF
HAER261ME - TRAMEIAEEN_Z—0

FH_A=+—BWZTEFEHEMFLERE

December 2015. The following table sets out the number and net
operating area of the Group’s retail outlets as at 31 December 2015:

Department Convenience
Stores Hypermarkets Supermarkets stores Total
LG Nt} RERm ERE At
Number of retail outlets: TEMEHE
Directly-operated S 2 12 72 106 192
Franchise-operated B mEE - - 1 68 69
Total At 2 12 73 174 261
Net operating area
(square metres): FLEMB(ERK):
Directly-operated L 39,742 86,089 156,134 20,214 302,179
Franchise-operated BErmeEE - - 880 13,631 14,511
Total A&t 39,742 86,089 157,014 33,845 316,690

During the Reporting Period, the Group dedicated itself to the

REHA  FEBEBR IR EHEROBEELCK

standardized operation of live and fresh merchandise and implemented
the “Standards on Purchase of Live and Fresh Merchandise”, the
“Standards on Distribution of Live and Fresh Merchandise”, and the
“Standards on Business Operation of Live and Fresh Merchandise”
in the three stages of purchase, distribution and store retail,
respectively. It introduced new purchasing channels and new kinds
of live and fresh merchandise. Store inspectors were designated to
the purchasing centres of live and fresh merchandise to specifically
supervise and control the quality of vegetables and fruits which
were directly distributed from the purchasing centres to the stores,
which solved quality problems arising from the distribution of live

2 ERE KX EREEZMARSOHER
(EHBMRRBRE) (EHBmEXEE) (&
EEmEERE) SIAFNEEEMREBEREHRE
miE o ABRBPOREEMLER - EHET
EHRBEBERIENRIOKREARE - &
RERREMEXRENEERE  BoEHER
B BRAESEMEHEHARRIIRE - X
ELEBMRIIGE BN RKEEE
EEEELEHBRMIANE  RERARRE R
KEMR  wmePNEEHRAPPR FRBRKES
o LMERNER  RATIEMHERLLEX

and fresh merchandise to the stores, and also reduced waste and I . BF T EHER » BT HEEEE4E N -
deterioration of live and fresh merchandise. It invested funds to renew
display facilities in stores to improve the display layout of live and
fresh merchandise, and to enlarge the business coverage of live and
fresh merchandise. It continued to promote the forwarding of food
processing, and developed convenient small package pork products
in order to satisfy the demand of the sale of meat through medium-
and small-sized stores and online applications. Implementation of the
aforesaid measures had improved the operating level of the sale of live
and fresh merchandise by the stores, stabilized customer flow of the
stores, and increased the frequency of purchase by consumers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Reporting Period, the Group continually arranged season-
or festival-themed marketing activities. For instance, the marketing
theme for April was to strengthen the sense of belonging of members
of the stores. Combined with the fact that this was the month for
“rewarding members”, the Group offered an exclusive promotion
to members for commodities ranging from livelihood to daily-life
consumer goods. The specially discounted member prices satisfied the
members’ daily demands for fast-moving consumer goods. Through
utilizing the upgrading and operation of the marketing information
system, the Group realized new patterns of marketing, such as the
exchange of bonus points for commodities at the cashier, giving a
price reduction of certain brands when the purchasing amount reaches
a designated level, and giving out free products when the purchasing
amount of certain brands reaches a designated level. Through sending
pictures and texts, the Jingkelong WeChat public platform carried out
pre-sales activities of goods in season. The platform also introduced
interactive games and customers who paid through WeChat could take
part in special activities such as having a price reduction when the
purchasing amount reaches a designated level, “instant and random

» o«

price reduction”, “giving out coupons on scanning the barcode”, and
“giving out game packages when purchasing” etc., in order to attract
young consumers, consolidate fans’ attachment, streamline business

into the offline market, and strengthen the marketing influence.

Launching the mobile e-commerce operation and consolidating the
online and offline business operations. Following the preparatory
works on system development, testing, and internal trials in stores,
the Jingkelong app was officially launched and put into operation in
November 2015. Thereafter, if any consumer orders goods using the
Jingkelong app, he/she can choose to pick up the goods in a nearby
store, or use the service of home delivery. Customers within a 2
kilometres radius from a store who purchase any goods amounting to
RMB49 or more in total, can enjoy the service of home delivery free
of charge. Over 1,200 mainstream goods became the first batch of
goods offered for sale on the Jingkelong app, including live and fresh
merchandise, foods, non-staple foods, beverages and drinks, and
articles of everyday use, etc. These goods were sold at uniform prices,
no matter whether they were sold online or offline in order to satisfy
the daily needs of consumers of residential communities for live and

fresh merchandise goods being key goods.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

In order to provide consumers with a convenient payment experience,
the Group introduced offline payment tools such as WeChat payment
and Alipay. At the same time, it launched the “Jingkelong digital wallet”
to realize functions such as online purchase of cards, online and offline
payment etc., thus adding new channels for consumer payment. Along
with the launching of the Jingkelong mobile app, the e-commerce
calling centre was officially launched and was mainly responsible for
answering questions from customers on the use of the app, online
order enquiry, handling and verification of online orders, and handling
of orders with wrong addresses. Any consumer who purchases goods
through the mobile terminal of the Jingkelong app may go to a nearby
store to enjoy after-sales services such as returning and replacement
of goods. This policy has effectively solved the problem that it is
difficult for consumers to seek for and enjoy after-sales services after
buying goods through e-commerce. In order to perfect the mechanism
of supervision of services offered by the stores, the Group requested
the stores to carry out communication and panel discussion activities
with volunteer supervisors, in order to continually improve the level of

services offered to consumers by the stores.

During the Reporting Period, the Group put in huge efforts to promote
knowledge of food safety among all staff, and carried out food quality
training. The Group attached great importance to food safety, and
examined and verified the sourcing and importation of goods in a strict
manner. The Group has a normal-temperature distribution centre which
is supported by a shelf life early warning system. It pays close attention
to the shelf life of goods warehoused, especially goods with a relatively
short shelf life. While picking up goods, the Group strictly follows the

regulatory standards as indicated by the date of manufacture and shelf
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

life, and would refuse to accept any goods which did not comply with
the inspection requirements. Based on the characteristics of different
seasons, the Group launched the month-long Summer event on food
quality and safety. In order to guarantee the freshness of live and fresh
merchandise, the Group introduced various stages such as collection,
pre-cooling, packaging form, transportation, loading, unloading, etc.
one by one, so as to ensure the consumption safety of live and fresh
merchandise. In strict accordance with purchasing and processing
standards, the distribution centre of live and fresh merchandise had
carried out real-time supervision and control at the base centre in
various stages, such as the picking, selecting, acceptance inspection,
processing, storage, dispensing and distribution of the goods. It
imposed strict control over the sanitation of the vehicles for delivery
and the distribution of goods, and monitored the sterilization and
temperature of the vehicle compartments, in order to eliminate factors

which may influence quality of the products.

According to the ABC analysis of goods, the Group adjusted
the division of warehousing and storage of goods. It also divided
warehousing areas for suppliers of goods contained in boxes so that
it could and distribute directly. With the discharging yards of suppliers
being more or less fixed, the normal-temperature logistics centre
successfully put the box automatic sorting system into operation,
changing the traditional manual operation model and raising operation
efficiency. For example, if the daily average quantity of goods
contained in boxes and distributed out of the warehouse is about 5,000
boxes, it would cost about 8 hours by manual sorting, and about 3
hours by automatic sorting. Compared with manual sorting, automatic
sorting would raise the working efficiency by about 62.5%. The Group
also promoted the use of standardized pallets, and the reformation
in design of standardized storage racks. Some of the storage racks
were adjusted to freestyle gravity flow racks in order to reduce the
waste of space. Large-batch goods were stored with entire columns
or boards, in order to raise storage capacity of the logistics centre and

the efficiency of logistics.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

An analysis of the retail principal operating income contributed by the
Group’s directly-operated hypermarkets, supermarkets, convenience
stores, department stores and online retail business and the gross

profit margin is set out as follows:

TREJNAEEEELEARES  HEeBE™m  &FH
B BERSRALTENTEIERARER
KD HTER -

Increase/
2015 2014 Decrease
—E—AF —T—NF 0,
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFIT
Retail business TEEK:
Hypermarkets j(éiﬁ 1,300,442 1,325,496 -1.9%
Supermarkets EEEBm 2,901,010 2,937,405 -1.2%
Convenience stores ERE 306,134 329,451 -7.1%
Department stores BEBES 47,731 52,281 -8.7%
(including commissions) o el 41,065 44,560 -7.8%
Online retail business BETE 53,114 28,968 83.4%
Total retail principal operating income Z&EFZ&EKIMA ST 4,608,431 4,673,601 -1.4%
Gross profit margin of directly-operated EZ2AEH * GABH R
hypermarkets, supermarkets and EFEEFZE (%)
convenience stores (%) 15.7 15.9 -0.2p.p
During the Reporting Period, the retail principal operating income of the BREHARAEBTEFLEKWATREL1.4% -
Group decreased by approximately 1.4%. This was mainly attributable TEZHERAR : (S EBEEETLETEETE
to (i) the contraction of the offline retail market and the downward ZTEETHIBHBZER @ FR/EHE PEiB %
trend in same store sales under the influence of the operations of the N (i)ZZ—FHF & 4M4R AT » SEEFEETT

macroeconomy and e-commerce; and (i) four supermarkets and five
convenience stores closed due to reconstruction and renovation work

which resulted in a decrease in the sales, in 2015.

During the Reporting Period, the same store sales growth was -1.8%,

versus -0.6% for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The gross profit margin generated from the directly-operated retail
business (excluding department stores) decreased slightly from 15.9%
in 2014 to 15.7% in the Reporting Period. This was mainly due to
more profits surrendered by the Group to customers in order to
obtain market shares in the highly competitive retail market during the

Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

WHOLESALE BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to expand the
e-commerce supplying business and established professional
e-commerce subsidiaries. It kept on enriching the types and brands
of goods operated online, in which supplemented the goods sold
offline. At the same time, it strengthened the cooperation with major
e-commerce platforms to develop offline selling of its online brands,
giving full play to the advantage of terminal distribution to realize the
advantage of systematic development. The independently-developed
WeChat photo printer increased the promotion and fans-gathering
effect of the app “Qu Mei Ba (E%ME)". Based on the new media
platform “Qu Mei Ba” and the mainstream media platforms, the
Group can better realize the interaction between the online and offline
businesses and achieve a win-win situation. In order to further satisfy
the Company’s need to supply of goods online and to raise its service
level as an e-commerce supplier, the Group had also established

branch warehouses in Shanghai and in Guangzhou.

During the Reporting Period, the Group kept on introducing strong
brands, expanding and opening up sales channels, and raising its
market share. It promoted the development and marketing of tailor-
made products, and launched the “Volcano Spring of ArxanShan” (518
ml or 338 ml), which was sold all over the country, rapidly expanding
its domain of sales. In doing so, it upheld the implementation of the
Group’s development strategy of having its own brands. In the past,
the Group’s own brands only covered articles of everyday use, but
now it has been expanded to cover leisure foods. The Group also
pushed forward the works of packaging design and brand promotion.
At the same time,

it extended its business to upstream operations,

namely, to produce leisure foods of its own brand.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

During the Reporting Period, the logistics centre succeeded in
launching the new systems for No. 1 and No. 2 warehouses on
schedule The use of RF portable terminals caused the WMS system
of logistics to realize instant management of warehousing space,
increasing the time efficiency of logistics, improving the accuracy of
operation, and reducing the randomness of manual operation. At
the same time, it realized accurate recording and measurement of
workload of staff, providing effective support for refined management
of logistics. The logistics centre successfully inspected and accepted
goods through the logistics standardization project. Supported by
the general social environment of national pallet standardization, and
pro-actively following the general trend of exemption from inspection
of goods transported through pallets, it will realize supply chain
integration, raise overall operation efficiency of the supply chain, and

reduce overall cost of the supply chain.

The wholesale principal operating income and gross profit margin are

analyzed as follows:

BERA - WRPORBE TR T — - ZREHR R
B RIYATAE - RFFRHZIRAEREWMSY
MERBKRERTHRBUNNKER RS TY
MEVEE - 320 TIEEMEREE - RO TAL
EEBEEN  FARYETINTFEERERANRT
BREETE  HYRBRBALCERREH/TEMN
XE R LKERMRIRECAE BRI
B EBBEREBBFEECNEERENE N
BERRERNBRERPREBROABE - UER
HER-BLER  REHEERRBEFRE
PRAX LB BB AS o

REBER BT EEXBFWARENEN DT -

Increase/
2015 2014 Decrease
—E-hF —T—4F # 0,
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEFIT
Wholesale principal operating Bt
income recognized FRA#
by Chaopi Group* FEEBKA 6,513,255 5,858,197 11.2%
Less: Intersegment Sales B D EBEIHE (574,535) (551,096) 4.3%
Sales to franchisees SHEE T INER R4 5,836 6,158 -5.2%
Total wholesale principal
operating income HoBEE EEFWAGET 5,944,556 5,313,259 11.9%
Gross profit margin **(%) FEFNE(%) 9.1 9.4 -0.3p.p

* Chaopi Group represents Beijing Chaopi Trading Company Limited and its

subsidiaries.

ke

This represents gross profit margin recognized by Chaopi Trading and its

subsidiaries including intersegment sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Reporting Period, the wholesale principal operating income
recognized by Chaopi Group increased by approximately 11.9% and
was mainly due to (i) more sales promotions were launched in order
to increase market share; (ii) the introduction of sales contribution
from e-commerce supplier business in the second half of year 2014;
and (iii) the introduction of sales contribution from newly introduced

distributorship brands.

During the Reporting Period, the decrease in the gross profit margin
of wholesale business recognized by Chaopi Group by approximately
0.3 percentage point was mainly due to (i) the restrictions of public-
fund spending imposed by the government which resulted in a
continuous suppression of high-end consumption and a decline of the
price of high-end liquor merchandise; and (ii) the adoption of multiple
promotions with suppliers, which in turn reduced the gross profit

margin.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Principal operating income FEEBIRA
Gross profit E A

Gross profit margin (%) FEFZ (%)
Earnings before interest and tax BRATFE
Net profit e m b

JFERE & (%)
FBNERBFENE

Net profit margin (%)

Net profit attributable to shareholders
of the parent company

Net profit margin attributable to
shareholders of the
parent company (%)

BB A SRR (%)
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Increase/
2015 2014 Decrease
—E-AF T #hn,

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETIT
10,572,672 10,007,135 5.7%
1,352,009 1,331,557 1.5%
12.8% 13.3% -0.5p.p
275,325 317,260 -13.2%
72,346 88,862 -18.6%
0.7% 0.9% -0.2p.p
24,865 41,330 -39.8%
0.2% 0.4% -0.2p.p
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

PRINCIPAL OPERATING INCOME

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s principal operating income
increased by approximately 5.7%, of which retail principal operating
income decreased by approximately 1.4%, and wholesale principal

operating income increased by approximately 11.9%.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit of the Group increased
by approximately 1.5% compared with the last corresponding period.
During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin was 12.8% (2014:
13.3%).

OTHER INCOME

Other income mainly comprises income from suppliers, rental income

from leasing and sub-leasing of properties and counters.

The Group’s other income increased from RMB883,623,577 in 2014
to RMB959,804,975 by approximately 8.6% during the Reporting
Period, mainly due to the increase of income from suppliers which
were in line with the increase in revenue, and the increase of rental

income from stores.

SELLING EXPENSES

Selling expenses mainly comprise of salary and welfare, depreciation
and amortization, energy fee, rental expenses, repair and maintenance
expenses, transportation expenses, software service expenses,

packing expenses, and advertising and promotion expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s selling expenses were RMB1,711,479,315 during the
Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately 7.7%
compared to the corresponding period in 2014. The increase was
primarily due to (i) the employee pay increased as the legal minimum
wage improved; (i) the increase in advertisement fees and promotional
fees targeted at the terminals of the wholesale business, along with
the extension scale of sales in 2015; (iii) the increase in transportation
expenses and warehouse rentals, especially the cost on the logistics

of distribution, due to an increase in sales in the wholesale business.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses mainly comprise salary and welfare, social
security costs (including retirement benefit contribution), entertainment

expense and expenses of taxation.

The Group’s administrative expenses were RMB269,212,240 during
the Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately 0.2%
compared to the corresponding period in 2014. The increase was
mainly because of the increased costs involving retirement benefit
contribution, housing reserves and other social insurance relating to

the wages.

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Financial expenses include interests on bank loans and debentures,

interest income, bank charges and exchange gains or losses.

The Group’s financial expenses decreased from RMB170,990,341
in 2014 to RMB151,703,085 during the Reporting Period. This was
primarily due to the domestic financial institutions cut their benchmark
interest rates on deposits and lending, thus the Group’s financing

costs also fell.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group was not subject to Hong Kong profit tax as the Group had
no assessable profit arising in or deriving from Hong Kong during the

Reporting Period.

The members of the Group were subject to corporate income tax at
a rate of 25% during the Reporting Period on their respective taxable

profit pursuant to the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.

Income tax expense decreased from RMB43,640,848 in 2014 to
RMB41,033,4883 in 2015, primarily due to the decrease of taxable
profits in 2015.

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE PARENT COMPANY

The net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent company
decreased by approximately 39.8% from RMB41,329,845 in 2014 to
RMB24,864,512 in 2015. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
13.2% decrease of EBIT.

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Group recorded basic earnings per share of approximately
RMBO0.06 for 2015, which was calculated on the basis of the number
of 412,220,000 shares, representing approximately 40% lower than
the RMBO0.10 of 2014.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Reporting Period, the Group mainly financed its operations
through internally generated cash flows, bank borrowings and

debentures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had non-current assets of
RMB2,485,216,757 (comprising of fixed assets, investment properties
and land use rights of RMB1,444,120,959), and non-current
liabilities of RMB803,232,175 (comprising mainly bonds payable of

RMB746,158,430).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had current assets of
RMB5,885,553,645. Current assets mainly comprised of cash and cash
equivalents of RMB574,168,439, inventories of RMB1,573,547,038,
accounts receivable of RMB1,824,268,380 and prepayments and
other receivables of RMB1,513,543,368. The Group had current
liabilities of RMB5,458,024,515. Current liabilities mainly comprised of
accounts payable and notes payable of RMB1,825,567,439, short-term
borrowings of RMB2,746,099,901 and advance from customers and

other payables of RMB657,586,242.

INDEBTEDNESS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had bank loans of
RMB2,841,099,901, which consisted of accounts receivable
factored bank loans of RMB107,814,886, secured bank loans of
RMB95,000,000, unsecured bank loans of RMB2,638,285,015. All the
Group’s bank loans bear interest rates ranging from 4.05% to 4.6% per
annum. The secured bank loans were secured by certain of the Group’s
buildings and investment properties with aggregate net book values of

RMB49,818,814.

Certain of the Group’s margin deposits of RMB138,005,266 were
pledged for notes payable of RMB624,557,573 as at 31 December
2015.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s gearing ratio* is approximately
74.8%, which is slightly higher than that of 71.1% as at 31 December
2014.

* Represented by: Total Debt/Total Asset
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s operating revenues and expenses are principally

denominated in RMB.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not encounter any material
effect on its operation or liquidity as a result of fluctuation in currency

exchange rates.

EMPLOYEES AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed 8,141 employees in
the PRC (31 December 2014: 8,364). The total staff costs (including
directors’ and supervisors’ remunerations) of the Group for the
Reporting Period amounted to approximately RMB731,792,115
(2014: RMB628,860,680). The staff emolument (including directors
and supervisors) of the Group are based on position, duty,
experience, performance, and market rates, in order to maintain their

remunerations at a competitive level.

As required by the PRC laws and regulations, the Group participates in
the defined contribution retirement benefits scheme for its employees
operated by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC. The
Group is required to make contributions for those employees who are
registered as permanent residents in the PRC at a rate of 20% (2014:
20%) of the employees’ salaries, bonuses and certain allowances.
The Group has no further obligation associated with the said defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme beyond the above mentioned
annual contributions. The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes amounted to approximately

RMB67,298,618 for the Reporting Period (2014: RMB64,699,619).

During the Reporting Period, the Group hosted trainings with various
format and topics for its employees to improve their skills and
professional knowledge. The Group held 66 seminars during the year,

and more than 5,200 employees have benefited from them.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ESTABLISHMENT OF FIVE SUBSIDIARIES

On 29 January 2015, the Group, through its non-wholly owned
subsidiary Chaopi Trading established a subsidiary, Beijing Chaopi
Zhaoyang E-commerce Company Limited (“Chaopi Zhaoyang”), to
engage mainly in the e-commerce business. The registered capital of
Chaopi Zhaoyang was RMB20,000,000, which has been fully paid up
by Chaopi Trading. The Company held an indirect equity interest of
approximately 79.85% in Chaopi Zhaoyang.

On 31 July 2015, the Group established a training school, Beijing
Chaoyang Jingkelong Vocational Skills Training School (“Training
School”), which primarily engaged in training junior and mid-level
sales-assistant, tally clerk and cashier. The start-up capital was
RMB500,000, which has been fully paid by the Company. The
Company held an equity interest of 100% in Training School.

On 27 August 2015, the Group through its wholly-owned subsidiary
Beijing Jingkelong ShouChao Company Limited (“Jingkelong
Shouchao”) established a subsidiary, Beijing Jingkelong Haotian Hotel
Management Company Limited (“Haotian Hotel”), to engage in the
hotel management, food marketing and leasing commercial real estate.
The registered capital of Haotian Hotel was RMB5,000,000, which
has been fully paid up by Jingkelong Shouchao. The company held an

indirect equity interest of 100% in Haotian Hotel.

On 16 October 2015, the Group, through its non-wholly owned
subsidiary Chaopi Trading’s non-wholly owned subsidiary Beijing
Chaopi Maolisheng Trading Company (“Chaopi Maolisheng”),
established a subsidiary, Chaopi Maolisheng (Hongkong) Company
Limited (“Maolisheng Hongkong”), to engage in operating activities of
export and import trading, cosmetics, food, medical device, design,
storage and electronic devices. The registered capital of Maolisheng
Hongkong was HKD10,000. The Company held an indirect equity

interest of approximately 51.90% in Maolisheng Hongkong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

On 30 December 2015, the Group, through its non-wholly owned
subsidiary Chaopi Trading established a subsidiary, Beijing Chaopi
Tianshi Information Technology Company Limited (“Chaopi Tianshi”),
to specialize in the agency and distribution business which carried
maternal and baby products and healthy food. The registered capital
of Chaopi Tianshi was RMB20,000,000, which has been fully paid up
by Chaopi Trading. The Company held an indirect equity interest of
approximately 79.85% in Chaopi Tianshi.

MERGER AND ACQUISITION INVOLVING TWO
ENTERPRISES NOT UNDER COMMON CONTROL

On 17 November 2015, the Group, through its non-wholly owned
subsidiary Chaopi Trading merged and acquired 60% equity interest of
Beijing Chaopi Xinyishangzhen Food Company Limited (“Xinyishanghen”)
and contributed additional capital into Xinyishangzhen with other equity
holders. As at that date, the registered capital of Xinyishangzhen
increased from RMB500,000 to RMB40,000,000. Upon completion
of the acquisition and capital increase, the equity interest in
Xinyishangzhen was directly held by Chaopi Trading as to 60% with
RMB24,000,000. As at 17 November 2015, the Company held an

indirect equity interest of 47.91% in Xinyishangzhen.

On 23 November 2015, the Group, through its non-wholly
owned subsidiary Chaopi Trading’s non-wholly owned subsidiary
Xinyishangzhen, merged and acquired 100% equity interest of Beijing
Shangzhen Food Company Limited (“Shangzhen Food”) at a totally
investment of RMB5,050,000. As at 23 November 2015, the Company
held an indirect equity interest of 47.91% in Shangzhen Food.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL INCREASE OF FIVE NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARIES

On 17 March 2015, Chaopi Trading contributed an additional capital
injection of RMB10,000,000, which has been fully paid up by Chaopi
Trading, into a wholly owned subsidiary, Taiyuan Chaopi Trading
Company Limited (“Taiyuan Chaopi”), increasing the registered capital
of Taiyuan Chaopi from RMB5,000,000 to RMB15,000,000. After the
increase of registered capital, the Company became a holder of an

indirect equity interest of approximately 79.85% in Taiyuan Chaopi.

On 22 April 2015, the Group, through its non-wholly owned subsidiary
Beijing Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales Company Limited (“Chaopi Jinglong”)
and an existing investor collectively contributed an additional capital
injection of RMB12,000,000 in proportion to their existing holding,
to Beijing Chaopi Yuli Trading Company Limited (“Chaopi Yuli”),
which has been fully paid up by Chaopi Jinglong and such existing
investor, increasing the registered capital of Chaopi Yuli from
RMB12,000,000 to RMB24,000,000. After the increase of registered
capital, the Company became a holder of an indirect equity interest of

approximately 30.31% in Chaopi Yuli.

On 10 August 2015, the Group, through its non-wholly owned
subsidiary Chaopi Trading and an existing investor Ms. Du
Jianxin collectively contributed an additional Capital injection
of RMB25,000,000 in proportion to their existing holdings, into
Chaopi Maolisheng, Chaopi Trading’s non-wholly owned subsidiary,
which increasing the registered capital of Chaopi Maolisheng from
RMB50,000,000 to RMB75,000,000. As at date of announcement,
Ms. Du Jianxin has not paid RMB1,750,000 to Chaopi Maolisheng.
After the increase of registered capital, the Company held an indirect

equity interest of approximately 51.90% in Chaopi Maolisheng.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

On 15 September 2015, the Group, through its non-wholly owned
subsidiary Beijing Chaopi Zhongde Trading Company Limited (“Chaopi
Zhongde”), contributed an additional Capital injection amounted
to RMB8,000,000 with other investors collectively in proportion
to their existing holdings, into its subsidiary Chaopi Fangsheng
Trading Company Limited (“Chaopi Fangsheng”), which increasing
the registered capital of Chaopi Fangsheng from RMB12,000,000 to
RMB20,000,000. After the increase of registered capital, the company
held an indirect equity interest of approximately 63.88% in Chaopi
Fangsheng. On 18 November 2015, Chaopi Zhongde transferred its
10% shares in the Chaopi Fangsheng to an independent third party (Mr.
Wei Zifeng). The total investment contributed by Chaopi Zhongde was
decreased from RMB16,000,000 to RMB14,000,000. After transferring
the stock right, the Company held an indirect equity interest of
approximately 55.90% in Chaopi Fangsheng.

On 10 November 2015, the Group and other investors collectively
contributed an additional capital injection of RMB3,900,775 and
RMB2,899,225 respectively into a subsidiary, Beijing Xinyang Tongli
Commercial Facilities Company Limited (“Xinyang Tongli”), increasing
the registered capital of Xinyang Tongli from RMB3,200,000 to
RMB10,000,000. After the increase of registered capital, the Company
held an direct equity interest of approximately 55.66% in Xinyang
Tongli.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no material contingent

liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2015, the Group had the following

significant events:

On 21 March 2016, the directors of the Company proposed the
payment of a dividend of RMBO0.05 per share to shareholders. The
proposal of dividend distribution mentioned above is subject to be
approved by the shareholders at Annual General Meeting of the
Company on 27 May 2016. This recommendation has not been
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements as a liability. The
proposed dividend shall be paid to shareholders whose name appear
on the register of members on 8 June 2015. The estimated amount of

dividends in aggregate is RMB20,611,000.

On 19 February 2016, the Group, through its non-wholly owned
subsidiary Chaopi Trading established a subsidiary, Beijing Chaopi
International Trading Company Limited (“Chaopi International
Trading”), to mainly engage in exploring the e-commence in products
across borders. The registered capital of Chaopi International was
RMB5,000,000, as at date of announcement, which has not been paid
up by Chaopi Trading. The Company held an indirect equity interest of
approximately 79.85% in Chaopi International Trading.

On 2 February 2016, the Company issued of the year 2016 the first
phase of short-term bonds with a coupon rate of 3.43%, a term of
maturity of 366 days, value date to be 3 February 2016 and interest
date to be 3 February 2017 in aggregate amounting to RMB300 million
through Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd. according to the signed “Interbank
bonds market debt financing instruments of non-financial enterprises
underwriting agreement”. As at date of announcement, the Company

has received all raised capital used to issue this short-term bond.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

STRATEGIES AND PLANS

Looking ahead into 2016, there will still be both opportunities and
challenges in the retail and wholesale industry in which the Group has
a presence. In face of such upcoming pressures and opportunities,
the Group must respond quickly by continuing to accelerate innovation

and transformation:

The Group will keep on utilizing the advantage of resources of physical
stores, and continually improve and enrich functions of the online
mobile app. It will enrich online marketing activities using the principles
of “goods, services and costs” as a starting point and will realize the
concurrent development of online and offline businesses. Based on the
development trend that small-scale and refined community stores and
convenience stores will be the growth points of the retail business in
the future, the Group shall depend on its self-operated logistics system
and mobile app platform to innovate a small-scale development
operation model and will try to open community stores with live and
fresh merchandise as the main thread, and with online and offline
businesses integrated. This would strengthen business operations
of live and fresh merchandise, staple foods, kitchenware and goods
of everyday use in order to satisfy the needs for the livelihood of
community residents. Also, it will raise the capacities of operation and
management of supply chains of live and fresh merchandise, as well
as strengthen the packaging, standard and brand orientations of its
business operation, so as to realize the upgrading of structure and
quality of live and fresh merchandise, and upgrading of equipment
and facilities, while consolidating the customer-gathering capacity and
competitive edge of physical stores. With consumers’ diverse needs
at the centre of its business, the Group will attach great importance
to the reduction of costs such as money cost, time cost and cost
of purchase by customers, etc., and will use different measures to
reduce various costs such as cost of enterprise management, wastage

and human resources etc.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Adapting to new changes in the e-commerce market by

carrying out transformation of the wholesale business

The Group will innovate the traditional mode of business operation
and, through exchange and sharing of information and data, reform
its relationship with suppliers and retailers. It will change gaming of
price into sharing of value. It will consolidate its offline businesses and
expand its online businesses, and emphasize constructing a system
of “Online Chaopi”. It will establish its presence on the domestic
market and explore global sourcing of goods. It will keep on enriching
the types and brands of goods in online business operation, which
will supplement offline product categories. It will accelerate the
development of its own brands, tailor-made goods and imported

goods, so as to gain the advantage of systematic development.

Continuing to strengthen the logistics and distribution system

The distribution centre of live and fresh merchandise will be
transformed towards the directions of products with small packaging,
heavy processing and high added value. The Group will continue
to promote the forwarding of food processing of vegetables,
fruits and meats, and reduce labour pressure on storefronts, shift
primary processing of live-fresh produce and develop more refined
processing, and extend the value chain of live and fresh products to
the production section. The Group will also continue to improve profit
margins, and allow the normal-temperature logistics centre to sort
out the operational flow bit by bit, so as to bring out the production
efficiency of large and small sorting machines. It will expand flow
capacity of passing-type goods and raise efficiency of distribution.
At the same time, it will strengthen cooperation with the suppliers.
Through management of segmented purchase of batch goods, and
management and control of immovable sales goods, it will further
shorten the number of days of turnover of goods and raise the
turnover efficiency. The wholesale logistics centre will continue to
promote the standardization of logistics and gradually realize real-
time feedback of information and data of physical distribution, analyse
and control logistics cost from multiple angles, and improve overall
logistics efficiency by utilizing the upgraded system. At the same time,
it will expand the business scope of third-party logistics and increase

logistics profitability.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Group recognises the importance of a robust governance
framework to drive the strategy for sustainable development of the
Company and long-term sustainable value for the shareholders. The
Group has adopted the principles of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Corporate Governance Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) with
the objective of enhancing the quality of corporate governance of
the Group and the conduct of its business in a fair, transparent, and
ethical way. This corporate governance report describes the corporate
governance practices of the Group and explains the applications of

the principles of the Corporate Governance Code.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has applied the principles
and complied with all the Code Provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code during the Reporting Period, save for the directors’

retirement by rotation as explained below.

Provision A4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code requires that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, of a listed
issuer should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The Company’s Articles of Association stipulates that
each director shall be elected in general meeting of the Company for a
term of not more than three years, and eligible for re-election upon the
expiry of the term. Having taken into account of the continuity of the
Group’s operation and management policies, the Company’s Articles
of Association do not currently stipulate the mechanism in respect
of directors’ retirement by rotation and hence contains no express
provision for the directors’ retirement by rotation and thus deviating

from the aforesaid provision of the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries with all directors, all the directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings as set out
in the Model Code and code of conduct regarding their securities

transactions throughout the Reporting Period.

THE BOARD

The board of directors (the “Board”) takes the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Group and is collectively responsible
for safeguarding the best interest of the Group and accountable
to the shareholders. Matters that are required to be determined
or considered by the Board include overall group strategies of the
Group, substantial acquisitions and disposals, capital transactions,
annual, interim and quarterly results, distribution of dividends and
other substantial operating and financial matters. Major corporate
matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to the Group’s
management include the preparation of financial accounts for the
Board’s approval, execution of business strategies and initiatives
approved by the Board, implementation of adequate system of internal
controls and risk management procedures, and compliance with the

relevant statutory requirements, rules and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the 2012 annual
general meeting (“2012 Annual General Meeting”) held on 28 May
2018, each of Mr. Li Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan, Mr. Liu Yuejin, Mr.
Wei Tingzhan, Mr. Gu Hanlin, Mr. Li Shunxiang, Mr. Wang Liping,
Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward has been re-elected as a
director for a three-year term, and such term will expire upon the
end of the annual general meeting (“2015 Annual General Meeting”)
for the year ended 31 December 2015. With effect from 28 June
2013, Mr. Wei Tingzhan has ceased to be the chairman of the
Board, a member of the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company, and was re-designated from
an executive director to a non-executive director of the Company;
whereas Mr. Li Jianwen has been appointed as chairman of the
Board, a member of the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 28 June
2013. Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the 2013 annual
general meeting (“2013 Annual General Meeting”) held on 28 May
2014, Mr. Wei Tingzhan and Mr. Gu Hanlin have ceased to be non-
executive directors of the Company, whereas Mr. Li Wei and Mr.
Wang Weilin have been elected as directors with such term expiring
upon the end of the 2015 Annual General Meeting.Pursuant to the
ordinary resolutions passed at the 2015 extraordinary general meeting
(2015 Extraordinary General Meeting”) held on 5 November 2015,
Mr. Li Wei have ceased to be executive directors of the Company,
whereas Mr. Shang Yongtian have been elected as directors with
such term expiring upon the end of the 2015 Annual General Meeting.
Accordingly, the Board currently consists of four executive directors (Mr.
Li Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin),
two non-executive directors (Mr. Wang Weilin and Mr. Li Shunxiang)
and three independent non-executive directors (Mr. Wang Liping,
Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward), with Mr. Li Jianwen, serving
as the chairman of the Board. All of the directors have fulfilled their

responsibilities as directors throughout the Reporting Period.
There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.
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Each of Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin will
not receive a director’s fee, but is entitled to remuneration based
on his/her executive duties and responsibilities (other than being
a director) in the Company. Each of them is entitled to a fixed
annual basic salary, a performance based bonus (to be determined
by reference to the Company’s annual financial results) and other
allowance and benefits in kind under applicable PRC law and
regulations. Their respective fixed annual basic salary for each of the
forthcoming three-year term shall be reviewed by the remuneration
committee of the Company and subject to the Board’s approval.
The chairman of the Board is entitled to an annual basic salary of
RMB700,000 (tax inclusive), and a performance based bonus (to be
determined by reference to the Company’s annual financial results)
and other allowance and benefits in kind under the applicable PRC
law and regulations. The non-executive directors will not receive
any remuneration. Mr. Choi Onward, an independent non-executive
director is entitled to receive a fixed director’s fee of RMB154,758
per annum (tax inclusive). Each of the other two independent non-
executive directors is entitled to receive a fixed director’s fee of
RMB41,850 per annum (tax inclusive). The aforesaid remunerations of
the directors of the Company have been considered and approved by

an ordinary resolution passed at the 2012 Annual General Meeting.

During the Reporting Period, the Board fulfilled the requirement of
having at least three independent non-executive directors (Mr. Wang
Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward) and having appointed
independent non-executive directors representing at least one-third
of the Board as required by the Listing Rules. The Company also met
the requirement of having at least one independent non-executive
director (Mr. Choi Onward) who has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received from each of the three independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation in respect of their
independence. The Company is of the opinion that all the independent
non-executive directors are independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.
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Reasonable notice period and sufficient relevant information have
been given to all directors so as to enable them to attend the Board
meetings and make appropriate decision in relation to matters to be
discussed. All directors are entitled to include matters of their concern
in the agenda of all Board meetings. All directors are entitled to

inspect all relevant corporate information.

The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 65 to 67

of this annual report.

Mr. Li Jianwen, acting as the chairman and executive director of the

Company is responsible for operation of the Board.

Mr. Shang Yongtian acting as the general manager and executive
director of the Company is responsible for daily business development

and management of the Company.

The other two executive directors, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin
are responsible for the financial affairs and retail operation of the

Group, respectively.

Each executive director has sufficient experience to hold the position

s0 as to accomplish his/her duties effectively and efficiently.

Pursuant to the code provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Company should arrange appropriate insurance to cover
potential legal actions against its directors. To comply with such code
provision, the Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the directors to indemnify their liabilities arising from their corporate

activities.
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During the Reporting Period, 11 Board meetings (not including written &R @ EE /BT T+ ReH(TREE
Board resolutions) were held and the attendance records of the HEERE)  FHRESEHFHEDHNOT :
directors attending such meetings in person are set out below:

Attendance/Number of meetings

HEBERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) TENEE(EFR) 11/11
Mr. Li Wei* TR E 5/5
Ms. Shang Yongtian** K B ST A 3/3
Ms. Li Chunyan AEMLT L 11/11
Mr. Liu Yuejin D B S 11/11
Non-executive Directors FHITESE
Mr. Wang Weilin* FEMEL 11/11
Mr. Li Shunxiang ERE A 11/11
Mr. Li Wei BB 3/3
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFEHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BRELE 11/11
Mr. Chen Liping R SEAE 11/11
Mr. Wang Liping FHFEEE 11/11
* Mr. Li Wei ceased to be the general manager of the Company and has  * BE-T—AFAAZ+N\BR TELEFEEQA
been re-designated from an executive director to a non-executive director W - WARARRITEEAEARRENITE
of the Company with effect from 28 May 2015. Mr. Li Wei ceased to be a F-BZT—AF+—ARAR  ZELLEFEA
non-executive director of the Board with effect from 5 November 2015. RIFEMITES o
** Mr. Shang Yongtian has been appointed as an executive director of the ** BIZZT—AF+—ARARL  BkBLEEZER
Board with effect from 5 November 2015. RARHITESE
Attendance of director at the general meeting EEHERREAE

During the Reporting Period, one general meeting, which was an  WEHA - ARARHBIT T —RARERAFRE -
annual general meeting, was held and the attendance records of the HBREERHF L ELREHHT ¢
directors attending such meeting in person are set out below:

Attendance/Number of meetings

HE BRI
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) TENEL(EER) 1/
Mr. Li Wei* TR E 1/1
Mr. Shang Yongtian** 75K B 55 A 0/0
Ms. Li Chunyan THEHRL+ 11
Mr. Liu Yuejin 2R A 11
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Wang Weilin** FEMEE 11
Mr. Li Shunxiang R IEE S A4 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BRESRE 11
Mr. Chen Liping R4 11
Mr. Wang Liping FHRIFEAE 11

*

Mr. Li Wei ceased to be a non-executive director of the Board with effect ~ * BE-T—hAF+—ARAR  TEEEFHEARE
from 5 November 2015. HITES -

** Mr. Shang Yongtian has been appointed as an executive director of the ** B ZZ—h&E+—ARAE  BEKALLEEZREE
Board with effect from 5 November 2015. RARHITESE °
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CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the directors are
updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time to ensure
compliance of the same by all directors. All directors are encouraged
to attend external forum or training courses on relevant topics which

may count towards continuous professional development training.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This
is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the Reporting Period, all directors have participated
in in-house training courses and workshops in respect of corporate
governance and regulations organized by the Company or, by perusing
materials relevant to the Company’s business or to their duties and
responsibilities, the relevant directors have participated in appropriate
continuous development activities. All the directors have provided a

record of the training they received to the Company.

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.2 of Corporate Governance Code,
the management of the Company also provides all members of the
Board with monthly updates which presents information in respect of
the Company’s performance and financial position, and changes and
developments in laws, regulations, business and the market, to assist

each director in the discharge of their duties.
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The participation by individual directors in the professional TXRHINTEREETN T AFL2HBEER
development programme in 2015 is recorded in the table below. FT 8z ek o

Participated in
training course Reading updates

S LR E BEEHER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) TEYELE(EEFLR) 4 4
Mr. Shang Yongtian PKE S E 4 4
Ms. Li Chunyan FEMULL v v
Mr. Liu Yuejin DBRE A 4 4
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Wang Weilin TEMEE 4 v
Mr. Li Shunxiang ZFBrELE v 4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BRELE v v
Mr. Chen Liping PR A 4 4
Mr. Wang Liping FRFRE v v
CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER EERNARE

Mr. Li Jianwen and Mr. Shang Yongtian are the chairman of the ZARARNEZTERAKESHTEXEENE
Board and the general manager of the Company respectively, which  KHEZAET @ AMERS SRR ENEN - =
are two clearly defined positions. The chairman is responsible for the ZERBEEESNEAIEF  MEKIEEEEE
effective operation of the Board while the general manager is in charge B HAFEEBKERERLER - AR R ARERPFM
of the Group’s daily business development and management. The JIBAZE SRR RALIERRE -

Company’s Articles of Association sets out the respective duties and

power of the chairman and the general manager in detail.

Board committees EEE2BTHZEE

There are currently 3 Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, BRAEEFSETRI=—FAZET @ D AEKRZ
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, to assist E&  #MZ8€ - IELZ8¢  UHHESRE
the Board in carrying out its responsibilities. BITHBE -
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board Meeting held on 28
June 2013, the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the fourth
session of the Board was established. The Audit Committee wholly
consists of independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Choi
Onward who was appointed as the chairman, and Mr. Wang Liping

and Mr. Chen Liping who were both appointed as members.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are set in line
with the provisions of the Code. The Audit Committee provides an
important link between the Board and the external auditors in matters
falling within the scope of the audit of the Group, and is responsible
for the review of financial information of the Company, the oversight
of the Company’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures, and exercises the corporate governance functions
delegated by the Board. It reviews the effectiveness of the external
audit, internal controls and risk evaluation and, provides comments

and suggestions to the Board.

Pursuant to the code provision D.3.1 of Corporate Governance Code,
the Audit Committee performed the corporate governance functions
delegated by the Board during the Reporting Period, including, to
develop and review the policies and practices of the Company on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; to review and
monitor the policies and practices of the Company on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
the directors and employees; and to review the compliance by the
Company with the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the

Corporate Governance Report.
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The Audit Committee held 5 meetings during the Reporting Period
for reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, discussing internal controls, financial reporting matters and
corporate governance functions including a review of the 2014 annual
report and the 2015 quarterly and interim results, and discussing
relevant matters including matters relating to annual auditing plans
of 2015 and corporate governance. The attendance records of the
members of the Audit Committee attending such meetings in person

are set out below:

Mr. Choi Onward (chairman) BEREE(EE)
Mr. Chen Liping BRI oA
Mr. Wang Liping ERTFEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s 2015 audited annual
results and discussed with the management and the external auditors
on the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,

internal control and financial reporting matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on
28 June 2013, the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) of the fourth session of the Board was established, in
which Mr. Wang Liping (an independent non-executive director) was
appointed as the chairman, and Mr. Li Jianwen (an executive director)
and Mr. Chen Liping (an independent non-executive director) were

both appointed as members.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EERRE

BEHN  BRZESARTAREE  ERX
SERMOSFENREE - MwmAEBES - B
BREMNCEEREE  BREHN_T—NFF
B —FT-AFFERTHREUARTR T —
hEFERANTE  CEELREHWER - AW
BEREZESZ8RIGHFECHNT

Attendance/Number of meetings

HE,EERE

5/5
5/5
5/5

BEREZBQEENTARELEAN_T—OF

FEFE  ULREEERIINEZUMAAEER
MG ERREER « ARG RYBEREEE

EITTH® °

FMEES

BRER-_ZF—=FRNA-T/\HBENEZSR
#FCOARARUTFUEEFTECHMERE
(THFMEEE ) IAFEE(—RBILIFRITE
B)EZERTR  FEXELE(—BHTER)R
R FEE(—BBIFNTER)HEZERE

o

mn

\

2015 &R
IR RREEEEERNDERAR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERME

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
inline with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The main
duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure for
the Directors’ and senior management of the Company, and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for determining
remuneration policy; to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives. In accordance with the code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of
the Corporate Governance Code, the Remuneration Committee have
been delegated with responsibilities by the Board, and is responsible
for determining the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management and making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors, and to
ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding

his own remuneration.

During the Reporting Period, two meetings of the Remuneration
Committee was held for discussing and considering the performance
based bonus of the Company’s directors and senior management for
2015. The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration

Committee attending such meetings in person are set out below:

FRFREEE)
BRI 5E 4
FEXEE

Mr. Wang Liping (chairman)
Mr. Chen Liping
Mr. Li Jianwen*

Mr. Li Jianwen was not involved in deciding his performance-based bonus

during the meeting.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 28
June 2013, the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
of the fourth session of the Board was established, in which Mr. Chen
Liping (an independent non-executive director) was appointed as the
chairman, and Mr. Li Jianwen (an executive director) and Mr. Wang
Liping (an independent non-executive director) were both appointed as

members.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
in line with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating potential
candidates for directorships, reviewing the nomination of directors
and making recommendations to the Board on such appointments,
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy, and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors, and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning (in particular the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive) for directors. The Diversity Policy of
the Members of the Board was adopted at the board meeting on 23
August 2013, pursuant to which all the nominations of any member
of the board should be made in accordance with the Diversity Policy
by taking into account certain objective criterion (including without
limitation, the gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) and

having due regards for the benefits of a diversified Board.
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During the Reporting Period, four meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held for discussing and recommending the candidates
to be proposed for election/appointment as part of directors of the
Company, reviewing relevant matters including the structure and
composition of the Board of the Company and the assessment
of independence of the independent non-executive directors. The
attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee

attending such meetings in person are set out below:

Mr. Chen Liping (chairman) BRI F A (FE)
Mr. Wang Liping ERFRE
Mr. Li Jianwen TEXSE

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

During the Reporting Period, the supervisory committee (the
“Supervisory Committee”) of the Company consists of four
shareholders appointed supervisors (Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr. Yang Baoqun,
Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong) and two staff-appointed
supervisors (Ms. Yao Jie and Ms. Wang Hong). Ms. Liu Wenyu serves

as the chairman of the Supervisory Committee.

The supervisors have performed their work in a dedicated and diligent
manner and carried out effectively the functions of supervising the legal
and regulatory compliance relating to financial matters and overseeing

the directors and senior management of the Group during their offices.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
auditor’s independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the auditing
process. It receives letter from the auditor confirming their independence
and objectivity and holds meetings with representatives of the auditor
to consider the scope of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The
Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the

appointment and retention of the independent auditor.
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Ruihua Certified Public Accountants LLP (3% & &AM = 75 7 (R ok i
BA%)) has been appointed as the auditor of the Company for the
period from the conclusion of the 2014 Annual General Meeting to
the conclusion of the 2015 Annual General Meeting of the Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company agreed to pay
Ruihua Certified Public Accountants LLP (3 & 5+AM 35 75 F (R R 3
BA%)) RMB1,100,000 as 2015 auditing fees and RMB200,000 for
non-audit services in respect of reviewing the Group’s 2015 interim

financial statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARATION OF
ACCOUNTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements in compliance with the relevant regulations and applicable

accounting standards.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting

are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 71 to 72.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining an adequate
system of internal control to safeguard shareholders’ interest and the
Group’s assets. Regular reviews have been conducted by the Board
for ensuring the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s internal
systems in respect of financial, operational and risk management

areas.

The internal audit department of the Company has been established in
2009 providing independent assurance to the Board and management
by reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls of

the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AL At S/
TEBELRE

HEGHMEEMERTBEE)BREARAR
BB THEARR T MERRBERS
BRZEBEREARA _E-—AFEFRRAFASHE
RzBILHM - BE-_Z—AF+=-_A=+—
BIEZFE ARRIRAEMIGEGTAEHEA
(HHREBAB)IN T AFEEHBAARE
1,100,0007C * AR gt R eV IE RSt IR B AN E R
AEE-_T-AFFHEBEREAEIANTAR
#200,0007T °

mAUVBEIRE 2EE

EXAERBAMARANER 2 ERR R
BRE -

BHMERMHEREZETHRAFRFETIARE
T2ERBIAZEEMBED o

R BB

ExermAiREEEEGERRNERER
BEARDHWATIENESR  EFERELEHE
NE TS - 2ERREREEFEINAZERENE
BUEMEL U EHRENRES -

ARBER-ZFTNFRILTAER  HBEEE
BMASBEABEFNRSERERE  HEFES
RERBREBIARE

2015 &R
IR RREEEEERNDERAR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERME

GOING CONCERN

There were no uncertain events or conditions of material nature that
would affect the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern during

the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr Li Bo, who was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on 18 March 2011, fulfills the requirement under Rules 3.28
and 3.29 of the Listing Rules. As an employee of the Company, the
company secretary supports the Board, ensures good information
flow within the Board and Board policy and procedures are followed;
advises the Board on corporate governance matters, facilitates
induction of the Directors and, monitors the training and continuous
professional development of Directors. He has attained not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the Reporting Period.
His biography is set out in the “Directors’ Supervisor’'s and Senior

Management’s Profiles” section of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
where shareholder(s) holding 10% (including 10%) or more of the
Company’s issued and outstanding shares carrying the right to vote
request(s) in writing for the convening of an extraordinary general
meeting, the board of directors shall convene an extraordinary general

meeting within two (2) months.

Pursuant to Article 60 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
whenever the Company convenes a general meeting, shareholder(s)
individually or collectively holding 3% or more of the shares carrying
the right to vote of the Company shall have the right to propose
new motions to the general meeting by submitting the same to the
convener in writing. The Company shall include in the agenda for the
meeting the matters in the motions that fall within the scope of duties

of the shareholders’ general meeting.
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Pursuant to Article 78 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
shareholders shall comply with the following procedures when they
propose to convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
meeting: (1) shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more
(including 10%) of the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting
proposed to be held for 90 consecutive days or more may sign one
or more written request(s), the form and substance of which are the
same, to propose to the Board for holding of an extraordinary general
meeting or a class meeting, and shall list out clearly the agenda of the
meeting in the request. The Board shall, upon receipt of the aforesaid
written request, convene the extraordinary general meeting or the class
general meeting as soon as possible. The shareholdings mentioned
above shall be calculated on the date when the shareholders make
such written request. (2) If the Board does not serve a notice of
such meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid written
request, shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more
(including 10%) of the Company’s shares carrying the right to vote
at the meeting proposed for 90 consecutive days or more may sign
one or more written request(s), the form and substance of which are
the same, to propose to the Supervisory Committee for holding of an
extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting, and shall list out
clearly at the agenda of the meeting in the request. The Supervisory
Committee shall, upon receipt of the aforesaid written request,
convene and preside the extraordinary general meeting or the class
meeting in a timely manner. (3) If the Supervisory Committee does
not serve a notice of such meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the
aforesaid written request, the shareholders making such request may
convene the meeting by themselves within two months upon receipt
of the request by the Supervisory Committee, and the procedures for
convening such meeting shall be as similar to those for convening
a general meeting by the Board as possible. Any reasonable cost
incurred in connection with the convening and holding of the meeting
by the shareholders themselves as result of the failure on the part of
the Board and the Supervisory Committee to hold such meeting as
required above shall be borne by the Company, and shall be deducted
from the amount due to the Directors and supervisors of the Company

who are in default.
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RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group is committed to establish a stable and constructive
communication with shareholders, adhere to the principles of integrity,
regularity and high transparency, and disclose the required information
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Information of the Group is

disseminated to its shareholders in the following manners:

delivery of results and reports to shareholders;

- publication of announcements on the websites of the The Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company, and
issue of shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the Listing

Rules;

— arrange general and extraordinary meetings with its shareholders
as an effective communication channel between the Board and

shareholders;

- the Department of Investor Relations of the Company is
responsible for liaison with investors and analysts by answering
their questions and gathering, in a timely manner, opinions and
comments from analysts and investors on the operation of the
Group, and selectively adopting them in the Group’s operation;

and

— communicating actively with various parties, in particular,
convening briefing sessions, press conferences and individual
meeting with institutional investors upon the announcement
of results and making decisions on material investments. The
Group also participates in a range of investor activities and

communicates on one-on-one basis with its investors regularly.

The Board always welcomes shareholders’ view and input sincerely.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations Department of
the Company by letter, telephone, fax or email. Details of the contact

information can be found at page 4 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors hereby presents their annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the

Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the retail and wholesale distribution
of daily consumer products in the region covering the Beijing city and
certain parts of its periphery. There were no significant changes in the

nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Reporting Period.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period and the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2015 are set out in

the financial statements on pages 73 to 259.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.05
(2015: RMBO0.10) per share (tax inclusive) in respect of the Reporting
Period to shareholders on the register of members on 8 June 2016.
This recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements
as an allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the
statement of financial position. The arrangement of the closure of the
register of shareholders of H shares of the Company (the “H Shares”)
regarding shareholders’ dividends will be announced in the notice the
2015 Annual General Meeting of the Company to be dispatched to
the shareholders. The above dividend distribution proposal is subject
to the approval by the shareholders at 2015 Annual General Meeting
of the Company. The dividends to be distributed will be denominated
and declared in Renminbi. Distribution of the cash dividends for
domestic shareholders will be paid in Renminbi, while cash dividends
for H shareholders will be declared in Renminbi but paid in Hong Kong
dollars (based on the average of the exchange rates for Renminbi to
Hong Kong dollars as announced by the People’s Bank of China for
the five working days prior to the date of convening the 2015 Annual
General Meeting at which the final dividends is approved by the
Shareholders).
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Pursuant to the “Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC” and the
“Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax
Law of the PRC”, commencing from 1 January 2008, any Chinese
domestic enterprise which pays dividends to a non-resident enterprise
shareholder (i.e. legal person shareholder) in respect of accounting
periods beginning from 1 January 2008 shall withhold and pay
enterprise income tax for such shareholder. Since the Company is
a H share listed company in Hong Kong, the proposed 2015 final
dividend will be subject to the aforesaid Enterprise Tax Laws. In order
to properly carry out the withholding and payment of income tax on
dividends to non-resident enterprise shareholders, the Company will
strictly abide by the law and identify those shareholders who are
subject to the withholding and payment of income tax based on the
register of its H shareholders as on Wednesday, 8 June 2016. In
respect of all shareholders whose names appear in the register of H
shareholders kept at Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, the Company’s H-Shares Registrar and Transfer Office in
Hong Kong as on Wednesday, 8 June 2016 who are not individuals
(including HKSCC Nominees Limited, corporate nominees or trustees,
and other entities or organizations that are all considered as non-
resident enterprise shareholders), the Company will distribute the 2015

final dividends after deducting income tax of 10%.
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Pursuant to the State Administration of Taxation Notice on Matters
Concerning the Levy and Administration of Individual Income Tax After
the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 45 (Guo Shui Han [2011] No.
348) (CEIRT 48 5 R R BB 3 [1993]045 5% S 1 & L 18 & BA{ELA P
BREBERMERBM) (EBRR2011]3485%)) (the “SAT Notice”) dated
28 June 2011, and the letter titled “Tax Arrangements on Dividends
Paid to Hong Kong Residents by Mainland companies” issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange Letter”)
dated 4 July 2011, the Company is required to withhold and pay the
individual income tax in respect of the 2015 Final Dividends paid to
the individual H shareholders whose names appear in the register
of H-Shares Registrar of the Company (“Individual H Shareholders”)
when distributing the 2015 final dividends in accordance with the
law, as a withholding agent on behalf of the same. However, the
Individual H Shareholders may be entitled to certain tax preferential
treatments pursuant to the tax treaties between the PRC and the
countries in which the Individual H Shareholders are domiciled and the
tax arrangements between Mainland China and Hong Kong (Macau).
The Company will finally withhold and arrange for the payment of the
withholding tax pursuant to the above the SAT Notice and the Stock
Exchange Letter and other relevant laws and regulation, including
the “Notice of the State Administration of Taxation in relation to the
Administrative Measures on Preferential Treatment Entitled by Non-
residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative)” (Guo Shui Fa [2009] No.124)
(BERHBRRANNEIFEREINRHEFTEEEIEEIT) >0
BAN) (EIFiE%[2009]1245%) (the “Tax Treaties Notice”)). The Company
will determine the country of domicile of the Individual H Shareholders
based on the registered addresses as recorded in the register of
members of the Company on Wednesday, 8 June 2016 (the “Registered
Address(es)”). The Company assumes no responsibility and disclaims
all liabilities whatsoever in relation to the tax status or tax treatment
of the Individual H Shareholders and for any claims arising from any
delay in or inaccurate determination of the tax status or tax treatment
of the Individual H Shareholders or any disputes over the withholding
mechanism or arrangements. Details of arrangements are as follows:
(i) For Individual H Shareholders who are Hong Kong or Macau

residents and those whose country of domicile is a country which has
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entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate
of 10%, the Company will finally withhold and pay individual income
tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholder; (ii)
For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend
tax rate of less than 10%, the Company will finally withhold and pay
individual income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the Individual
H Shareholders. If the relevant Individual H Shareholders would like
to apply for a refund of the additional amount of tax withheld and
paid, the Company can assist the relevant shareholder to handle the
application for the underlying preferential tax benefits pursuant to the
tax treaties, provided that the relevant shareholder shall submit to the
Company the information required under the Tax Treaties Notice on or
before 31 July 2016. Upon examination and approval by competent
tax authorities, the Company will assist in refunding the additional
amount of tax withheld and paid. (i) For Individual H Shareholders
whose country of domicile is a country which has entered into a tax
treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of more than 10%
but less than 20%, the Company will finally withhold and pay individual
income tax at the actual tax rate stipulated in the relevant tax treaty.
and (iv) For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a
country which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating
a dividend tax rate of 20%, or a country which has not entered into
any tax treaties with the PRC, or under any other circumstances, the
Company will finally withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate
of 20% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders. If the domicile of
an Individual H Shareholder is not the same as the Registered Address
or if the Individual H Shareholder would like to apply for a refund of
the additional amount of tax finally withheld and paid, the Individual H
Shareholder shall notify and provide relevant supporting documents
to the Company on or before 31 July 2016. Upon examination of the
supporting documents by the relevant tax authorities, the Company
will follow the guidance given by the tax authorities to implement
relevant tax withholding provisions and arrangements. Individual H
Shareholders may either personally or appoint a representative to
attend to the procedures in accordance with the requirements under
the Tax Treaties Notices if they do not provide the relevant supporting

documents to the Company within the time period stated above.
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Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisers regarding
PRC, Hong Kong and other tax implications arising from their holding

and disposal of H Shares of the Company.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
Company’s annual reports, is set out on page 260 of this annual

report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the Reporting Period are set

out in note (VI) 8, 9 and 10 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the

Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting

Period and up to the date of this Report.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves (including surplus reserve and
undistributed profits) of the Group during the Reporting Period are
set out in note (VI) 34, 35 to the financial statements and in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

UNDISTRIBUTED PROFITS

Details of undistributed profits are set out in note (VI) 35 to the

financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s bank borrowings at the reporting date are set

out in note (VI) 17, 25 and 27 to the financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s interest capitalized amounted
to RMB95,153 (2014: RMB237,556).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, operating income to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 23% (2014: 18%)
of the total operating income for the year and operating income
to the largest customer accounted for approximately 10% (2014
9%). Purchase from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 17% (2014: 15%) of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 4%
(2014: 3%) during the Reporting Period.

None of the directors or supervisors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
directors and supervisors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five

largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the Reporting

Period and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman)
Mr. Li Wei (appointed as an executive director
since 5 November 2015)
Ms. Li Chunyan
Mr. Liu Yuejin
Mr. Li Wei (re-designated as a non-executive director of the Company

since 28 May 2015)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Weilin
Mr. Li Shunxiang
Mr. Li Wei (ceased to be a non-executive director of the Company

since 5 November 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Choi Onward
Mr. Wang Liping
Mr. Chen Liping

Supervisors:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman)
Ms. Wang Hong

Ms. Yao Jie

Mr. Chen Zhong

Ms. Cheng Xianghong

Mr. Yang Baoqun

The Company has received the annual confirmations of independence
from each of independent non-executive directors and is of the view

that they are independent.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES

Profile details of the directors, supervisors and senior management of

the Company are set out on pages 65 to 70 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts with each of Mr.
Li Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan, Mr. Liu Yuejin, Mr. Wei Tingzhan, Mr.
Gu Hanlin, Mr. Li Shunxiang, Mr. Wang Liping, Mr. Chen Liping
and Mr. Choi Onward pursuant to which they have agreed to act
as directors for a three-year term with effect from the 2012 Annual
General Meeting and will expire at the end of the 2015 Annual General
Meeting. Mr. Li Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin were
appointed as the executive directors from 28 May 2013 and have
entered into service contracts with the Company. Pursuant to the
2013 Annual General Meeting, Mr. Wei Tingzhan and Mr. Gu Hanlin
have ceased to be non-executive directors of the Company, whereas
Mr. Li Wei and Mr. Wang Weilin have been elected as directors with
such term expiring upon the end of the 2015 Annual General Meeting.
Each of Mr. Li Wei and Mr. Wang Weilin has entered into service
contract with the Company pursuant to which they have agreed to act
as directors with effect from the 2013 Annual General Meeting, which
will expire at the end of 2015 Annual General Meeting. Pursuant to the
2015 Extraordinary General Meeting held on 5 November 2015, Mr.
Li Wei have ceased to be non-executive directors of the Company,
whereas Mr. Shang Yongtianhave been elected as director with such
term expiring upon the end of the 2015 Annual General Meeting. Each
of the executive directors, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan and
Mr. Liu Yuejin (other than the chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Jianwen)
will not receive a director’s fee, but is entitled to remuneration based
on his/her executive duties and responsibilities (other than being a

director) in the Company which comprises a fixed annual basic salary,
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a performance based bonus which is determined by reference to the
Company’s annual financial results and other allowance and benefits in
kind under applicable PRC law and regulations. Their respective fixed
annual basic salary and performance based bonus for each of their
term shall be approved by the Board and the remuneration committee
of the Company. Pursuant to the shareholders’ approval in the 2012
Annual General Meeting, Mr. Li Jianwen, the chairman of the Board
is entitled to an annual salary of RMB700,000 (tax inclusive), and a
performance based bonus, the standard of which has been approved
by the 2012 annual general meeting, and other allowance and benefits

in kind under applicable PRC law and regulations.

Each of the non-executive directors, Mr. Wang Weilin and Mr. Li
Shunxiang, has entered into service contract with the Company
pursuant to which Mr. Wang Weilin have agreed to act as a non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 2013 Annual
General Meeting, an Mr. Li Shunxiang have agreed to act as a non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 28 May 2013, both
of which will expire at the end of 2015 Annual General Meeting. They

will not receive any remuneration.

Each of the independent non-executive directors, Mr. Choi Onward,
Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping, has entered into a service
contract with the Company pursuant to which they have agreed to
act as independent non-executive directors for a three-year term with
effect from the 2012 Annual General Meeting, which will expire at
the end of 2015 Annual General Meeting. The terms of their service
contracts are identical in all material respects and they are entitled to
receive fixed directors’ fees. The director’s fee for Mr. Choi Onward is
RMB154,758 per annum (tax inclusive) and is RMB41,850 per annum
(tax inclusive) for each of Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping.
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Each of the supervisors, Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr. Yang Baoqun, Ms. Yao
Jie, Ms. Wang Hong, Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong,
has entered into a service contract or an appointment letter with the
Company pursuant to which each has agreed to act as a supervisor
for a three-year term with effect from 2012 Annual General Meeting,
and will expire at the end of 2015 Annual General Meeting. The
terms of the service contracts or appointment letter are identical in all

material respects save that:
i Mr. Yang Baoqun does not receive any supervisor’s fee;

i. each of Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong receives a

fixed supervisor’s fee of RMB35,100 per annum (tax inclusive);

ii. each of Ms. Liu Wenyu, Ms. Wang Hong and Ms. Yao Jie is
entitled to remuneration based on her executive duties and
responsibilities (other than being a supervisor) in the Company
which comprises of a fixed basic salary, a performance based
bonus which is determined by reference to the Company’s annual
financial results and other allowance and benefits in kind under

applicable PRC law and regulations.

None of the directors or supervisors had entered into or proposed
to enter into, any service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The directors’ and supervisors’ fees are subject to shareholders’
approval at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined
by the Board with reference to directors’ and supervisors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
The Company has established a remuneration committee to
formulate compensation policies and to determine and manage the
compensation of the Company’s senior management. Details of the
directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are disclosed in note (XI)4(2)

to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS

None of the directors and supervisors had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company, its controlling shareholder, or any of

their subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS IN
ACQUIRING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or its subsidiaries granted to any directors and supervisors
or their respective associates, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors and supervisors and other body

corporate to acquire such rights.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and positions of the
directors, supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as

follows:

Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Name Capacity
HE g1
Li Jianwen Personal
FEX fEA
Shang Yongtian Personal
sk A {[EVN
Li Chunyan Personal
FEK fEA
Liu Yuejin Personal
Eilliz31:3 fELA
Li Shunxiang Personal
gk & A
Yang Baoqun Personal
B R &l A
Liu Wenyu Personal
2135 EA
Yao Jie Personal
ok & A
Wang Hong Personal
FiT fEA
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EE EERFETHRABRRKRS - HER
o R ERERE T RS

LR RBDEXVE TR EE ) WD - HEK

M EEET  BAERBEZRATRRHDEXV
BB 78D BRA M & AN B R R AT RO M R BOR

BR(EERB(EZEMERIDERBIESURE © &
EWEFIRREANERIORD) - IRE(GE
ZRAEIGOIDFI2GREBCARRBRFEE
EMANERIORE - RIRE ETR KSR
ETADRE - BNG AR R as fok

BT
EARRNERZER

Approximate Approximate

Total number percentage of percentage
of domestic total issued of total
shares held domestic shares issued shares

FFERERRE GMERTRER EHERTEREK
BABE DL BABEIL

(%) (%)

1,482,579 0.64 0.36
449,451 0.20 0.11
395,992 0.17 0.10
375,151 0.16 0.09
5,210,428 2.26 1.26
1,042,086 0.45 0.25
265,151 0.12 0.06
125,051 0.05 0.03
82,525 0.04 0.02
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
directors, supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor any of
their associates and any interest and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within he meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they ere taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015 so far as is known to the directors,
supervisors or chief executive of the Company, the persons (other than
a director, supervisor or chief executive of the Company) had, or were
deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Name

&

Capacity
=37

Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Beneficial owner
Food Company

RS EIRMBA AT BmBEBA

EEEWE

BREXFEBEEN RZT—AF+ZA=+—
B BETAARRESE EERTBTRAR
1K RO E A A BN N R Sl AR ] B R B (IR
H N EEGDDEXVERATEE ) Ay - MR
R E#EED  BEARBERRBEEDDEXV
ERE7 I8 BRI & AN X B BB 2R T O R KoK
BR(ERERB(EZRPREHGRIDBBIEXDERHK
BREGNREIAR)  HREEF LG K
PI)E 3521 M E AR AR R BIRE B L MA R HE
BIORE - HRBEETRAM S TGRETRDR
E o AHEARA R FNERIOXR ©

FERR

R-_FE—RF+-_A=+—8 REQRFTEZE -
EENFETHRASHRA  THAT(KRAFE
o EFRFBTHRABRINAEAARMNRNR K
BERMSKEST - AR BEEIRIBGES

RHABEAINEXVE E2 R EIDMBAMERARR
B FTHIAERS SUK R - SR IRCE F R AR K5
SE3B6IERARLARRRFEECMARNERIAR
UM

KARRNERZHER
Approximate Approximate
Total number percentage of percentage
of domestic total issued of total
shares held domestic shares issued shares
FRERER HMERTRER (HERTEARE
YRR E BABDL BHABEDL
(%) (%)
167,409,808 72.77 40.61
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EEEWE

Positions in the H shares of the Company RAQXTHRZFAE
Approximate Approximate
percentage percentage
Total number of of total issued of total
Name H shares held H shares issued shares
18 FrEEE 81T EERITHR HE 1T
HAR A% & HEH K 4B B AN Y
BAEDE BRABED
(%) (%)

Schroders Plc (note 1)(Hf&E1) 19,977,000 (L) 10.96 4.85

Templeton Asset Management Limited (note 2)(Ff&E2) 18,314,900 (L) 10.05 4.44

JPMorgan Chase & Co. (note 3)(Mf5E3) 16,560,900 (L) 9.09 4.02

16,560,900 (P) 9.09 4.02

Citigroup Inc. (note 4)(IE4) 14,644,000 (L) 8.03 3.55

7,344,000 (P) 4.03 3155
Schroder Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited
(note 5)(MIFE5) 13,036,000 (L) 7.16 3.16
Genesis Asset Managers, LLP (note 6)(Ff£6) 12,749,000 (L) 6.99 3.09
Genesis Emerging Markets Opportunities Fund Limited
(note 7)(MI5E7) 12,749,000 (L) 6.99 3.09

(L) - Long Position L —Fg

(P) - Lending Pool (P) —AIEE L ARG,

Notes: BsE

1. These 19,977,000 H shares were held by Schroders Plc in its capacity as 1. 1t 19,977,000/%HA% FSchroders PIcIAI & 4532
an investment manager. B E DA

2. These 18,314,900 H shares were held by Templeton Asset Management 2. Itk %5 18,314,900 % H i% # Templeton Asset
Limited in its capacity as an investment manager. Management Limited A% B4 IR F D15 B HERS -

3. These 16,560,900 H shares were held by JP Morgan Chase & Co. 3. 1% 16,560,900 f% Hf% B3 JP Morgan Chase &
of which 16,560,900 H shares were lending pool in its capacity as a Co. 5 E T + 1% 16,560,90008HAX S & A &
custodian corporation/an approved lending agent. HERRD - HLMREAEE S EHREBASHD

FrAkEm o

4. These 14,644,000 H shares were held by Citigroup Inc. of which 7,344,000 4.  tt%14,644,0000%HAZ B Citigroup Inc.iE B #E -
H shares were in its capacity as a custodian corporation/an approved H 7,344, 0000 HIE AR B KB, O E BRI
lending agent and the other 7,300,000 H shares were in its capacity as a ANFHEERER - H#7,300,0008 HAR 2A 3% 15
person having a security interest. BEREEZOAFNFEER -

5. These 13,036,000 H shares were held by Schroder Investment 5. It % 13,036,000 f% Hf% f Schroder Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited in its capacity as an investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited AR & 432 H) &
manager. MDEEER -

6. These 12,749,000 H shares were held by Genesis Asset Managers, LLP 6. 1tk 12,749,000%HA% F Genesis Asset Managers,
in its capacity as an investment manager. LLPLAR B IR & 5 FFE s o

7.  These 12,749,000 H shares were held by Genesis Emerging Markets 7.  Itt 5 12,749,000 f% H % i Genesis Emerging

Opportunities Fund Limited in its capacity as an investment manager.
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Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the directors,
supervisors or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December
2015, no other persons (not being a director, supervisor or chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on public information and within the knowledge of the directors,
the Company’s public float complied with the applicable requirements
of the Listing Rules from 1 January 2015 and up to the date of this
report.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None of the directors, supervisors, the controlling shareholder or the
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates had engaged in any business that competed or might
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group,
or had any other conflict of interests with the Group during the
Reporting Period.

AUDITORS

The financial statements in this annual report for the year ended
31 December 2015 have been audited by Ruihua Certified Public
ETRNES AT (PR ERER)) (“Ruihua CPA”),
whose term of appointment will expire at the conclusion of the

Accountants LLP (e

forthcoming 2015 Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Li Jianwen

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
21 March 2016
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

FEE A
EEEawfRE

To the shareholders,

Since the incorporation of the Company, the supervisory committee
of the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) adheres to principles
of honesty and integrity in discharging its supervisory duties and
obligations loyally and diligently in accordance with the Listing Rules
of the Stock Exchange, the requirements under the relevant laws
and regulations of the PRC and Company’s Articles of Association to

safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the Company.

All the supervisors were re- election as supervisors at the 2012 Annual
General Meeting or the worker’s congress (as case may be) for a
three-year term, with effect from 2012 Annual General Meeting or the
worker’s congress and will expire at the end of 2015 Annual General

Meeting or the worker’s congress.

During the Reporting Period, four meeting of the Supervisory
Committee were held for reviewing the 2014 annual report, the report
of the Supervisory Committee for 2014, and the 2015 quarterly and

interim results. The attendance records of the Supervisors are set out

below:
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The major work performed by the Supervisory Committee included the
attendance of Board meetings and general meetings; inspection of
resolutions made by the Board, review of internal control system, strict
and effective monitoring of whether the policies and decisions made
by the management of the Company had confirmed with the relevant
laws and regulations and the Company’s Articles of Association,
safeguarding the interest of the Company and shareholders. The
Supervisory Committee has also reviewed the performance of the
directors and senior management in their daily operation activities
by various means, and examined the Group’s financial affairs and
connected transactions. As a result of our work, the Supervisory

Committee concluded that:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman) R (EE)
Ms. Wang Hong FiTz+

Ms. Yao Jie whiEL 4

Mr. Chen Zhong PeR §8 4 £

Ms. Cheng Xianghong Brsrt

Mr. Yang Baogun B R AE

1. The decision-making process of the Company is in compliance
with the Company’s Article of Association. Proper and adequate
internal control system has been established. The directors and
senior management observed their fiduciary duties and worked
diligently, loyally and legally. The Supervisory Committee is not
aware of any breach of the relevant laws and regulations and the
Company’s Articles of Association or actions against the interests
of shareholders by the directors and senior management of the

Company.

2. The Company’s 2015 financial statements reflected a fair view
of the financial position and operating results of the Group in

material aspects.

EFEEWmE
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Attendance/Number of meetings

HEEEAE

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
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3. All continuing connected transactions and connected transaction 3. REHAN - AEEHHEBEALEENME
&

conducted in the Reporting Period between the Group and its BEBEXFNEER ZFIKRE —REEZ
connected persons were in the ordinary course of business EWIZEBR ZWIHEMKAIT - RERTFE
and carried out pursuant to the terms of the agreement for the EREERR B KB RERNITE °

transactions, and no act that prejudiced the interests of the

Company and shareholders has been found.

4. The Group did not encounter any major litigation during the 4. REHRKREFET[IERFR °
Reporting Period.

We would like to express our appreciation to the strenuous supports HFIEREHAKRE  EFEREEBEIHAES
of the shareholders, directors and all staff to the Supervisory E&WANZHRERHE -
Committee during the Reporting Period.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE REEEm

Liu Wenyu 230

Chairman EEeTE

Beijing, PRC FEE R

21 March 2016 “E-RFE=ZRA=-+—H
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DIRECTORS', SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S PROFILES

S
DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jianwen, aged 55, is the Chairman of the Board and an
executive director. He worked in Beijing Jingkelong Shang Sha
(“dingkelong Shang Sha”), the predecessor of Beijing Jingkelong
Supermarket Chain Group Company Limited (“dingkelong
Supermarket”) (the predecessor of the Company) as the deputy
general manager from 1998 to 2002. From 2002 to 2004, he was a
director and the deputy general manager of Jingkelong Supermarket.
From November 2004 to June 2013, he was the managing director
of the Company. He has been the Chairman of the Board of the
Company since June 2013. He is also the Chairman of Beijing Chaopi
Trading Company Limited, an approximately 79.85% directly owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Shang Yongtian, aged 54, is the General Manager of the
Company and an executive director. Mr. Shang acted as the manager
of several retail outlets and the department manager of Chaoyang
Auxiliary from 1991 to 2004. From 2005 to 2009, he was the manager
of Operation Division of supermarket of the Company and the manager
of Operation Division of hypermarket of the Company. From January
2010 to April 2013, he was the assistant to the manager of the
Company. From April 2013 to May 2015, he was the assistant general
manager of the Company. He has been appointed as the general

manager of the Company since May 2015.

Ms. Li Chunyan, aged 43, is an executive director. Ms. Li obtained
a bachelor’s degree in law and subsequently a master’s degree in
private international law from China University of Politics & Law of
China. Ms. Li is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. She was the Officer of the Bureau of Law of Jingkelong
Shang Sha from 2001 to 2002. In addition, she was the Officer of
the Bureau of Law and the Secretary to the board of directors of
Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since November 2004,
she has been one of the executive directors of the Company. She has
been appointed as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer and deputy

general manager since December 2008.
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%  EERSHEEABNEALR

Mr. Liu Yuejin, aged 56, is an executive director. From 2000 to 2004,
he was the general manager of Jingkelong Langfang. Between 2002
and 2004, he was one of the directors of Jingkelong Supermarket.
Since November 2004, he has been an executive director of the
Company. From 2005 to 2009, Mr. Liu had held various positions in
the Company, including the manager of the First Operation Division,
the manager of the Jiuxiangiao Community Shopping Centre and the
manager of the Operation Division of Shopping Centre. From 2009
to 2012, he had been the manager of the First Operation Division of
Supermarkets of the Company. Since March 2012, he has been the

manager of the Operation Division of Hypermarkets of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Weilin, aged 52, is a non-executive director. From 2006
August to 2009 August, Mr. Wang served as the deputy general
manager of Beijing Hongchao Weiye Company Limited (“Hongchao
Weiye”). From 2009 August to 2012 October, he served as the general
manager of Hongchao Weiye. He has been the general manager of
Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company Limited since October
2012.

Mr. Li Shunxiang, aged 63, is a non-executive director. From
2000 to 2010, he was the general manager of Beijing Zhonglianjian
Construction Company Limited. From 2002 to 2004, he was a non-
executive director of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004,

he has been a non-executive director of the Company.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Liping, aged 58, is an independent non-executive director.
Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree in Economics and a PhD in
Management from Renmin University of China in 1985 and 2004,
respectively. He is currently the professor and doctorial supervisor
at the Institute of Business Organisation and the faculty of Human
Resources Management at Renmin University of China. He has
also been an independent non-executive director of China Haisum
Engineering Co. Ltd. (FEBH TEBERHER D
2009, which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Since 10 June
2010, he has been an independent non-executive director.

Al) since April

Mr. Chen Liping, aged 54, is an independent non-executive director.
Mr. Chen obtained a master’s degree in Business Operation from Aichi
University of Japan in 1999 and a PhD in Economics from Circulation
University of Economics of Japan in 2008. He is currently the Head,
associate professor and master supervisor of the faculty of Marketing
in the Institute of Business Management at Capital University of
Economics and Business of China. Since 10 June 2010, he has been
an independent non-executive director. Since September 2014, he has
been an independent non-executive director of Kunming department

store (Group) Company Limited.

Mr. Choi Onward, aged 45, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company and the chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Choi
currently serves as the acting chief financial officer of NetEase, Inc.,
which is listed on the Nasdaq Global Market (NASDAQ: NTES). Mr
Choi also serves as an independent director of Tuniu Corporation,
which is listed on the Nasdaq Global Market (NASDAQ: TOUR)
and an independent non-executive director of China ITS (Holdings)
Company Limited, which is listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (SEHK: 1900). Mr. Choi is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow member
of the CPA Australia, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a registered practicing Certified
Public Accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Choi holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in accountancy with honors from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Choi has been an independent non-executive director

since June 2010.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES

%  EERSHEEABNEALR

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Liu Wenyu, aged 44, is the chairman of the Company’s
supervisory committee. During the period from 1999 to 2008, Ms.
Liu has been appointed as the vice-chairman of the labour union of
Chaoyang Auxiliary and the Company, the deputy manager of the
First Operation Division and the officer of the Office of the Jiuxiangiao
Community Shopping Center coordination team of the Company.
Since October 2008, she has been the chairman of the labour union
of the Company. Since June 2010, she has been the chairman of the

Company’s Supervisory Committee.

Mr. Yang Baoqun, aged 63, is a supervisor of the Company. He was
a supervisor of Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since

November 2004, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Chen Zhong, aged 52, is a supervisor of the Company. Mr.
Chen obtained his doctorate from Peking University in 1989. He is
currently a professor of the School of Electronics Engineering and
Computer Science, the Head of the Advanced Financial Information
Research Centre at Peking University. Since June 2002 to July 2010,
he had been a professor and the Head of the School of Software and
Microelectronics, Peking University. Since January 2005, he has been

a supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Cheng Xianghong, aged 44, is a supervisor of the Company.
Ms. Cheng obtained her bachelor’'s degree and master’'s degree
in management from Renmin University of China. She is a qualified
accountant, certified public valuer and registered tax agent. She
has been the deputy general manager of Beijing Zhongguancun City
Construction Company since December 2003. Since January 2005,

she has been a supervisor of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES

Ms. Wang Hong, aged 45, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms.
Wang is a senior economist. She worked in Beijing Ruida Frozen
Foods Company Limited for about nine years and was appointed as
the assistant to general manager before joining the Company. Since
September 2003 to March 2012, she had been appointed as the
deputy officer of the Office of Managers, the purchase manager of
the In-house Brand Division of Purchase Center and the manager
of the Marketing Department of the Company. From March 2012 to
July 2012, she had been appointed as the deputy manager and the
manager of the Human Resources Department. Since August 2012,
she has been the Chief Human Resources Officer and the manager of
the Human Resources Department. Since June 2010, she has been a

staff-appointed supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Yao Jie, aged 53, is a supervisor of the Company. From 2002 to
2004, she was the deputy officer of the Human Resources Department
of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004 to July 2009, she
had been the deputy officer of the Human Resources Department
of the Company. From July 2009 to March 2012, she had been the
officer of the Manager Office of the Company. Since April 2012, she
had been the vice-chairman of the labour union of the Company.
Since January 2014, she has been the officer of the Comprehensive
Office of the Company. Since November 2009, she has been a staff-

appointed supervisor of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Shenlin, aged 52, is an assistant general manager of the
Company. Mr. Li acted as the manager of several retail outlets of
the Company from 1997 to 2007. From 2007 to 2009, he was the
manager of the Operation Division of Hypermarkets and the assistant
to the manager of the Company. Since August 2009, he has been the

assistant general manager of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES

%  EERSHEEABNEALR

Mr. Zhang Hongbo, aged 46, is an assistant general manager of the
Company. From November 1992 to October 1997, Mr. Zhang was the
deputy officer of Executive Office of the Silk Import & Export Group
Company of Hubei. From October 1997 to March 2003, he served
as the general manager of the Information Department of Shenzhen
Huarun Supermarket Company. From March 2003 to March 2006, he
was the Chief Information Officer and the Officer of the Information
Center of the Company. From June 2006 to August 2015, he was the
assistant to the manager of the Company and the Chief Information

Officer. Since August 2015, he has been the assistant general

manager of the Company.

Mr. Li Bo, aged 37, is the Company Secretary of the Company. He
graduated from Capital University of Economics and Business with
a bachelor’'s degree of economics in 2001 and obtained a master
degree of accounting from Macquarie University of Australia in 2004.
Mr. Li is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Certified Practising Accountant of Australia. Mr. Li
worked for Bank of Beijing from July 2001 to June 2002 as Loan
administration officer. He served as an auditor in Deloitte Beijing office
from December 2004 to July 2007. He served as a senior auditor in
the Audit office of New South Wales in Australia from August 2007
to September 2010, then served in Sinolink securities as a project
manager from September 2010 to March 2011. Mr. Li joined the
Company on 18 March 2011. From November 2013 till now, Mr. Li
also served as the Company secretary for Yunnan Water Industry

Investment Company Ltd.

Mr. Luan Jie, aged 34, is the board secretary of the Company.
He graduated from law school of Beijing University of Chemical
Technology with a bachelor of law degree. Mr. Luan served as a legal
clerk in Chaopi Auxilary Company from 2004 to 2007, he served as
a legal practitioner in Beijing Jingdu law firm in 2007-2008. Since
2008, he served as deputy manager and manager in the Company’s
securities and legal department. He was appointed as board secretary

from February 2010.
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To the Shareholders of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Beijing
Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance
sheets of the Group and the balance sheets of the Company as
at December 31, 2015, the consolidated income statement of the
Group and the income statement of the Company, the consolidated
statement of changes in shareholders' equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement of the Group and the statement of changes in

shareholders' equity and the cash flow statement of the Company for

the year then ended, and other certain explanatory notes.

1 Management's responsibility for the financial statements

The management of the Company is responsible for the
preparation and fair preparation of these financial statements. The
responsibilities include: (1) preparing the financial statements in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
to achieve fair presentation of the financial statements;
(2) designing, implementing and maintaining necessary internal
control to ensure that the financial statements are free from

material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

2  Certified public accountants' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an audit opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with China Standards on Auditing for Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements for Chinese Certified Public Accountants and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether

the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
TS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Company and the Group as at
December 31, 2015, and of financial performance and cash
flows of the Company and the Group for the 2015 year then
ended in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business

Enterprises.

Ruihua Certified Public Accountants
Chinese Certified Public Accountants
Beijing, China

Zhou Huiyan

Zhang Youquan

March 21, 2016
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
BHEERE

AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 2015%12531H 1L F &

2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E-EF —E—UF
+=ZA=+—-8| +t=ZA=+—H
Notes RMB RMB
ltem HH HiE AR® T ARETT
Current assets: REEE -
Cash and bank balances BEBES (Vi) 718,323,705 536,839,101
Accounts receivable FEUYBR X (V2 1,824,268,380 1,674,135,328
Prepayments JE A V13 1,366,408,098 649,633,624
Other receivables H A YR V4 147,135,270 132,051,916
Inventories 8 (V5 1,573,547,038 1,483,886,458
Other current assets HhmEh&E Ve 255,871,154 289,777,639
Total current assets REEESS 5,885,553,645 4,766,324,066
Non-current assets: REBEE :
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHHESHEE vz 28,789,200 4,578,000
Investment properties B M R E (V)8 141,196,430 147,805,414
Fixed assets BEEE (V)9 1,144,144,901 1,181,654,479
Construction in progress TEEIR (V10 101,244,425 94,384,816
Intangible assets B EE (V11 193,284,906 196,846,698
Goodwill EES vVn12 86,673,788 86,673,788
Long-term prepaid expenses REGFHER (V13 582,568,122 584,780,164
Deferred tax assets RIEFTEREE (V14 31,516,326 28,051,865
Other non-current assets HtIERBEE V16 175,798,659 150,403,808
Total non-current assets FRBEEESE 2,485,216,757 2,475,179,032
TOTAL ASSETS BEMAT 8,370,770,402 7,241,503,098
Current liabilities: REAEE:
Short-term borrowings RERERK V17 2,746,099,901 2,172,490,151
Notes payable AN (V18 624,557,573 76,088,972
Accounts payable FERTERRK (vn19 1,201,009,866 1,150,842,260
Advance from customers TEWGRTE (V)20 458,476,201 479,918,595
Payroll payable JFE A< B8 T 5 B (V21 1,347,826 1,935,503
Taxes payable ERTE V22 78,474,759 68,394,409
Dividends payable FEASBEF (V23 2,736,306 5,545,226
Other payables E MR (V)24 199,110,041 184,306,314
Non-current liabilities due within one year ~ —FRB|HHIERBI B E V)25 95,000,000 73,000,000
Other current liabilities Hitmehask V)26 51,212,042 49,290,684
Total current liabilities REAESE 5,458,024,515 4,261,812,114
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
BREERER

AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 2015412831 HI- &

2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E-REF ZE—UF
+=A=+-8| +t=ZA=+—H
Notes RMB RMB
Item B H TE AR® T ARMETT
Non-current liabilities: kRBEE
Long-term borrowings REIER Va7 - 95,000,000
Bonds payable e &S (V)28 746,158,430 744,820,080
Provision SCERR=NE (V29 910,612 910,612
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFSHAE (V14 1,986,869 4,715,063
Other non-current liabilities HibFERBEE (V)30 54,176,264 39,179,834
Total non-current liabilities ERBEESS 803,232,175 884,625,589
TOTAL LIABILITIES =Rk 6,261,256,690 5,146,437,703
Shareholders' equity: PR
Share capital A& A (V)31 412,220,000 412,220,000
Capital reserves BARRNE (V32 609,308,148 609,045,676
Other comprehensive income Hipsr Uz (V33 2,098,458 3,171,000
Surplus reserves B (V134 139,259,934 135,571,025
Undistributed profits FOBAE (V)35 473,625,451 493,671,848
Total equity attributable to BEREARRRERS
shareholders of the parent company 1,636,511,991 1,653,679,549
Minority interests DERERER 473,001,721 441,385,846
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY BREZEST 2,109,513,712 2,095,065,395
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EENREESA
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 8,370,770,402 7,241,503,098

o
%

SEB8HEH 259 A MM MK M T AR 54

financial statements. KBS -

The notes as set out from page 88 to 259 form an integral part of the

The financial statements as set out from pages 73 to 87 have been F73EEFSTHAMNPHRERHAUTALRE

signed by:
FEN FHK ®ER
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
JEEREKA FEEIIIERERA : BEHBEEA
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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BALANCE SHEETS OF THE COMPANY

NEIBEBRE

AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 2015%12531H 1L F &

2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E-EF —ZE—UF
+=B=+—-8| +tZA=+—H
Notes RMB RMB
ltem 1HE R AR® T AR
Current assets: REEE -
Cash and bank balances kg 249,032,801 145,369,262
Accounts receivable FEYBR X Xw)1 260,613,309 262,791,528
Prepayments iﬁ\/ﬁ %’XIE\ 2,283,911 1,814,092
Other receivables H At FEUIK (XV)2 895,413,328 583,444,731
Inventories VER{ 313,104,611 301,217,861
Other current assets HEMmEhEE 528,119,878 530,480,720
Total current assets REEESS 2,248,567,838 1,825,118,194
Non-current assets: ERBEE :
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ESHEE 24,935,200 =
Long-term equity investments RERRERE (XV)3 978,035,869 973,635,094
Investment properties RE S EHE 60,344,962 63,591,071
Fixed assets EEBEE 855,699,010 909,578,720
Construction in progress EEIR 93,355,262 89,304,695
Intangible assets B EE 89,967,375 89,862,330
Long-term prepaid expenses REIFHER 459,223,358 484,820,106
Deferred tax assets EIEFRS IR & E 1,062,821 -
Other non-current assets HthIEmeh&E 8,389,032 105,163,435
Total non-current assets FRBEEESE 2,571,012,889 2,715,955,451
TOTAL ASSETS EEMA 4,819,580,727 4,541,073,645
Current liabilities REEE
Short-term borrowings GHAfE X 1,209,947,704 840,000,000
Accounts payable ETERIR 756,240,818 724,206,529
Advance from customers TEUW IR 375,340,030 407,568,122
Payroll payable JE AT Bk T S 1,347,826 1,246,433
Taxes payable ERTE 5,865,764 11,899,877
Dividends payable FET AR A 625,251 312,626
Other payables H At TR 108,824,440 127,605,754
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FRNINHNIEREAE 95,000,000 73,000,000
Other current liabilities Hitmehas 39,401,106 34,908,470
Total current liabilities REBESET 2,592,592,939 2,220,747,811
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BALANCE SHEETS OF THE COMPANY

NRIBEBRER

AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 2015412831 HI- &

2015.12.31 2014.12.31

—E-REF —ET—mF

+=—H=+—H +=ZA=+—8H

Notes RMB RMB

ltem 1HE e AR¥ T AR
Non-current liabilities kRBEE

Long-term borrowings REMER - 95,000,000

Bonds payable FEHES 746,158,430 744,820,080

Provision ErtAfE 910,612 910,612

Deferred tax liabilities BLEAMSHARE - 2,366,461

Other non-current liabilities HidEReai 33,064,594 26,041,607

Total non-current liabilities *RBEESE 780,133,636 869,138,760

TOTAL LIABILITIES aE48st 3,372,726,575 3,089,886,571

Shareholders' equity: R

Share capital R A 412,220,000 412,220,000

Capital reserves BARNTE 610,293,521 610,293,521

Surplus reserves e YN 115,482,699 111,793,791

Undistributed profits Ao BEFE 308,857,932 316,879,762

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

RRER S

1,446,854,152

1,451,187,074

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

BENRRERAR

4,819,580,727 4,541,073,645

The notes as set out from page 88 to 259 form an integral part of the — ENF88H E F259H B 5 K M iE 2 AN 15 3R
financial statements. FMMERKES D ©
The financial statements as set out from pages 73 to 87 have been F73EEFS7TENTHERRHAUTALTEE

signed by:

FEX FHEK FER
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
JEERFHA - FEBIIIEARA - BEHEBAEA

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
EXARAVEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 2015 12531H 1L F &

2015 2014
20155 % 20145 E
Notes RMB RMB
ltem 5§ B3 AR¥R AR®T
. Total operating income - 1N 11,532,477,247 10,890,758,888
Including: Operating income Hep EEHA (V)36 11,532,477,247 10,890,758,888
Il. Total operating costs o BERERAK 11,441,439,767 10,780,101,765
Including: - Operating cost Hep: BERA (V)36 9,231,521,802 8,682,268,153
Business tax and surcharges EER S R (V1)37 77,259,534 71,536,583
Selling expenses BXEA (vi)38 1,711,479,315 1,588,772,754
Administrative expenses EEER (V)39 269,212,240 268,703,883
Financial expenses HBER (V)40 151,703,085 170,990,341
Impairment losses on assets BERERE (V)41 263,791 (2,169,949)

Add: Investment income (l0ss) o BERERRUAT - I5
1851) (VI)42 1,073,676 9,496,885
lll. Operating profit (loss) = - EEFE(SEN - 5%E5) 92,111,156 120,154,008
Add: Non-operating income e EEINIA (V)43 26,500,116 17,167,675
Including: Gains from disposal of non-current assets B EREEEREFNE 37,143 8,313
Less: Non-operating expenses BT (VIj44 5,232,159 4,818,344
Including: Losses from disposal of non-current assets Hh: EREBERERL 2,810,021 2,082,512
IV. Total profit (loss) m - FIBEE(BEAEN - RE5) 113,379,113 182,508,339
Less: Income tax expenses W e ER (VI)45 41,033,483 43,640,848
V. Net profit (loss) T OFRECFEELN - 5E5)) (VI)46 72,345,630 88,862,491
Net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent company SERTLAIRRAOFHE (V)47 24,864,512 41,329,845
Profit or loss attributable to minority interests DEREER 47,481,118 47,532,646
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
EXARAVEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 2015 12531H 1L F &

2015 2014
20155 F 201455
Notes RMB RMB
ltem 5§ HE ARETR ARET
V1. Net value of other comprehensive income after tax N AtEENENTATE (543,000) 538,500
Net value of other comprehensive income attributable FBEOATRENEMES NG
to shareholders of the parent company after tax MREFE (433,585) 538,500
Other comprehensive income which can be reclassified NEBENEEERN
into profit or loss subsequently Hibkra iz
Gains or losses from changes on fair value of HRNESREENS
available-for-sale financial assets BEZHER (VI)33 (433,585) 538,500
Net value of other comprehensive income attributable to SENVERENEMES
minority interests after tax Entiabiintoet (109,415) -
VII. Total comprehensive income t FalEEE 71,802,630 89,400,991
Total comprehensive income attributable to FERNEDARROGEKRAE
shareholders of the parent company 24,430,927 41,868,345
Total comprehensive income attributable to SERVERENGANERE
minority interests 47,371,703 47,532,646
VIIl.Earnings per share N Bl -
(\Basic earnings per share (—) BEXERYEE (V)47 0.06 0.10
(I)Diluted earnings per share (Z) RESRE N/A T N/A T

The notes as set out from page 88 to 259 form an integral part of the — EHNFESSE & F259 B M) B FE 3R & M 5% = AR B 75 3R

financial statements. REVMEREL S ©

The financial statements as set out from page 73 to 87 have been F73HEEFS7THANPHRERHAUTALTERESE

signed by:
FEX FHK *ER
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
JEEREKA FEEIIIEERA : BEHBEEA
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INCOME STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
NEIVRIVEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 2015 12531H 1L F &

2015 2014

20155 E 20145

Notes RMB RMB

ltem J5H i ARETR AREL

. Operating income — BEUA (XV)4 4,547,125,914 4,646,417,796

Less: Operating cost A BERR (Xv)4 3,622,847,187 3,686,565,590

Business tax and surcharges EERS R 30,714,357 30,543,273

Selling expenses EEBR 714,824,202 712,274,840

Administrative expenses ERER 158,894,307 159,008,768

Financial expenses HBER 40,854,922 48,368,245

Impairment losses on assets BERMERX 263,791 (2,169,949)

Add: Investment income (l0ss) o BEKSE BRI - J5785) (Xv)5 40,705,865 42,933,417

. Operating profit (loss) = EERE(EENM - I5ES) 19,433,013 54,760,446

Add: Non-operating income o0 BEIA 17,079,504 14,709,154
Including: Gains from disposal of non-current Ho: ERPEERENG

assets 29,593

Less: Non-operating expenses TR 1,048,985 997,893
Including: Losses from disposal of non-current B ERBEERERL

assets 617,022 336,563

lll. Total profit (loss) = MBgE(BREREN - 5RES) 35,463,532 68,471,707

Less: Income tax expenses B FERER (1,425,546) 7,769,651

IV. Net profit (loss) m - FFEOFBEA - 5ES) 36,889,078 60,702,056

V. Net value of other comprehensive income after tax 1 + Hftig A Wz a4 %4 S =

VI. Total comprehensive income N BANEEE 36,889,078 60,702,056

The notes as set out from page 88 to 259 form an integral part of the N E8SH F F259E ) &R = M i 2 AN &R
financial statements. KEEKE D o

The financial statements as set out from page 73 to 87 have been HE73HEZES7EMNTEREBAUTATER
signed by:

FEX THEK xER
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
JEEREKA FEEITIEREA - BIHEERA ¢
2015 3§
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

aftRTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 2015 12531H 1L F &

[tem

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from selling goods and

rendering services
Taxes and surcharges refunds received
Other cash received relating to operating activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities
Cash paid for purchasing goods and

receiving services
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees
Taxes and surcharges paid
Other cash paid related to operating activities
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities
Net cash flow from operating activities

. Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from short-term investment
income/interest income
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
and other long-term assets
Cash received from disposal of financial products
Cash received from withdrawal of margin deposits
Cash received from government grants related
to assets
Cash received from dividend paid
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,
construction in progress, intangible
assets and other long-term assets
Cash paid for increase of margin deposits
Cash paid for financial products
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries
Net cash paid for investment in other business units
Other cash paid related to investing activities
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities
Net cash flow from investing activities

R

—

-

REIDELNBLIRE
HERm - RHESH
WERES

WEIMB R RE
WREMERDEHERNR
B2EFREWAN G
BEAM  BXY

XHRE
XREBTIURARTIXNNERS
XANBERE

X EMESREHERNR LS
BEBRRML Gt
RERHELNREREFR

RETDELNZLRE
RERHRERR/ FERA
FriREI R L
RERTAENAMRIEE
P EEH &
WEEHERKEINAS
WERESFHARENRS
W3l A AR RO
B8
DEBEM R RS
REERGHERANG
BRETEE  ERTIRE -
BVEENRMRAEE
IHRE
EMRESFFAXNNRS
REBMERILNAE
REFRARXNNERS
HEMARREMXINRS
S EMEREEDHERNRS
RERBALRL Nt
RERBDELNREAEFR

Notes
T

(V)48

(V)48

(V)49

2015
2015 E

RMB
AR

13,015,828,532
5,111,351
257,411,430
13,278,351,313

11,066,394,539
732,416,879
338,547,548
1,100,720,684
13,238,079,650
40,271,663

14,217,912

757,663
1,465,000,000
212,048,694

24,985,700
70,000
1,717,079,969

189,585,758
340,986,166
1,399,900,000
5,050,000
24,935,200

1,960,457,124
(243,377,155)

2014
20145F
RMB
AR¥ETL

12,507,458,099

213,082,168
12,720,540,267

10,402,897,312
630,053,627
253,500,620
1,032,843,586
12,319,295,045
401,245,222

31,681,742

405,194
2,747,500,000
47,176,913

31,006,700

2,857,770,549

165,266,551
50,359,249
2,817,500,000

86,000,000
3,109,125,800
(251,355,251)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
afRERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 2015 12531H 1L F &

2015 2014
20155 20145 %
Notes RMB RVMB
ltem e AR¥T AR
lll. Cash flows from financing activities = EETRHELANRSRE
Cash received from investments RUHRERF RS 30,599,225 20,779,100
Including: Cash received from capital contribution B TR ERERE
from minority shareholders of helfnbiien
subsidiaries 30,599,225 20,779,100
Cash received from disposal of interests of HEF AR DR E
subsidiaries alreliopka 2,140,000 =
Cash received from borrowings ERUE RS 6,043,701,389 4,405,621,246
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities E g N 6,076,440,614 4,426,400,346
Cash paid for repayments of liabilities BREEIANES 5,598,263,234 4,168,821,994
Cash paid for repayments of bonds BEEFXANRS S 200,000,000
Cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries SN &
FisdRiosika - 2,100,000
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or AERFIRENTE
repayments of interests YEEE 222,794,850 273,022,811
Including: Dividends and profits paid by subsidiaries H FRAEARLERR
to minority shareholders Eoivel 50,981,538 48,143,722
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities EXFBHEL R A 5,821,058,084 4,643,944,805
Net cash flow from financing activities ELIHEANTERETE 255,382,530 (217,544,459)
IV. Effect on cash and cash equivalents due to CEXEHHRLRES
change in foreign currency exchange rate ZEYHTE 270,094 (277,518)
V. Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash I RERBSSENIENE (RD)
equivalents (V49 52,547,132 (67,932,0006)
Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents mn:ENEsRES
at the beginning of the year ZEMRE (V)49 521,621,307 589,553,313
VI. Balance of cash and cash equivalents A EXRBEERBSEENHE
at the end of the year (V49 574,168,439 521,621,307

HNFBAEF 259 M MK M TR
REERES -

The notes as set out from page 88 to 259 form an integral part of the

financial statements.

The financial statements as set out from page 73 to 87 have been H73HZES7TEMNTERERUTATEE

signed by:
FEX FHEK xER
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
JEEREA FEEIIEREA - BIHBEEA
2015 3§
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
NAIRERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 2015 12531H 1L F &

[tem

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from selling good and

rendering services
Other cash received relating to operating activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities
Cash paid for purchasing good and

receiving services
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees
Taxes and surcharges paid
Other cash paid related to operating activities
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities
Net cash flow from operating activities

. Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from short-term investment
income/interest income
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
and other long-term assets
Cash received from disposal of financial products
Cash received from entrusted loans
Cash received from government grants related
to assets
Cash received from dividend paid
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,
construction in progress, intangible
assets and other long-term assets
Cash paid for entrusted loans
Cash paid for capital injection to subsidiaries
Cash paid for capital injection to other company
Cash paid for financial products
Other cash paid relating to investment activities
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities
Net cash flow from investing activities

Note
EH G2
- RETHELENESRE
HER@ - RELH
ihedliojkn

WEHpELREHEENRE
REEPHRERANG

BEMMD  BREK
IR E
XREBIURARIXNNERS
XRNBERE
XREMEGRESARORE
REEHRALDRL /Nt
REIBELNREAEFR

ZREGFDELNRERE
REEHRERS/FERA
FrRZImRE
REETEENREMRYER
FrkE RS
WEEHERPEINAE
YEZEETFARERE
WEIMREERBNBEE

DERMEEINE
REERPRSRANG
BRETEE RRIE -
BYAENMRMRBEE
XRHRE
RRAEFANORE
HFNRABNMREMINNRE
HEMARRAMINRE
REBYERLNAS
XREMEREESARNRE
RERBRERM Gt
RERDELNASREFE

2015
2015 E

RMB
AR

5,268,031,770
148,051,241
5,416,083,011

4,370,503,542
387,393,247
136,540,712
354,324,802
5,248,762,303
167,320,708

63,779,020

233,583
1,001,300,000
350,000,000

16,255,700
40,092,400
1,471,660,703

115,871,903
250,000,000
4,400,775
24,935,200
981,200,000
317,000,000
1,693,407,878
(221,747,175)

2014
20145F
RMB
AR¥ETL

5,172,269,976
141,889,408
5,314,159,384

4,273,650,110
368,068,465
126,245,103
351,445,414
5,119,409,092
194,750,292

47,305,285

339,417
2,337,500,000
250,000,000

26,006,700
40,258,900
2,701,410,302

93,457,736
100,000,000

2,407,500,000
438,000,000
3,038,957,736
(337,547,434)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
NAIRERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 2015 12531H 1L F &

2015 2014
20155 20145 %
Note RMB RMB
ltem EH e AR¥R AR
lll. Cash flows from financing activities = EETHELANRSRE
Cash received from borrowings Bk E RS 1,829,947,704 1,437,080,016
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities ERTHRLTANG 1,829,947,704 1,437,080,016
Cash paid for repayments of liabilities BREEZANRS 1,533,000,000 1,073,080,016
Cash paid for repayments of bonds BEEFINNERS S 200,000,000
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or AERFRERFS
repayments of interests. YMEE 139,138,830 131,287,708
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities EETHRL TG 1,672,138,830 1,404,367,724
Net cash flow from financing activities ERTIHELNRERETFH 157,808,874 32,712,292
IV. Effect on cash and cash equivalents due to mERSHHESRES
change in foreign currency exchange rate ZENNY 281,132 (190,106)
V. Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash I RERBLEEMBEME(HD)
equivalents 103,663,539 (110,274,956)
Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents m: PR kRS
at the beginning of the year LEMHE 145,369,262 255,644,218
V1. Balance of cash and cash equivalents R EXRRERASESENSE
at the end of the year 249,032,801 145,369,262
The notes as set out from page 88 to 259 form an integral part of the ~ N FE88H EF 259 B MBI 15 &K M it B A1 7% 4%

financial statements.

The financial statements as set out from page 73 to 87 have been

FI3EEFESTEMMIEHRERAUT ALES -

signed by:
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
SEHRREREBE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 2015 12531H 1L F &

For the year ended at December 31, 2015
N155E
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent company
BERELARRNRRER
Other Total
Share Capital comprehensive Surplus  Undistributed Minority  shareholders'
capital reserves income reserves profits interests equity
e BRLE Aok BHOR ASEAE  JHRRER RRERAT
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
Item 1 AEETR AEETR AEETR AEETR AEER AEER AEER
| Balance at the end of last year - LEERBE 412,220,000 609,045,676 3171000 135,571,025 493,671,848 441,385,846  2,095,085,395
Add: Changes in accounting policies n: SHEREE - - - - - - -
Correction of prior errors AEEREE - - - - - - -
Business combination under R-E5 T EAH
common control - - - - - - -
Others =0 - - - - - - -
Il Balance at the beginning of the year = ~ REEHIHE 412,220,000 609,045,676 3,171,000  135571,025 493,671,848 441,385,846  2,095,065,395
Il. Increase or decrease amount = FEERESSE(RD
in the year AT - 1555 = %2472 (1072540 3688900  (20,046307) 31615875 14448317
() Total comprehensive income (-) Gakngg S = (433,585) - M864512 4737703 71,802,630
(I} Contrioution and reduction of (2) RREAMESD
Shareholders' capital BK - 262,472 - - - 34,586,753 34,849,225
1. Capital contrioution from 1 RRENER
shareholders - 262,472 - - - 34,586,753 34,849,225
2. Acquisition minority interests 2 WEFLALE
of subsidiaries EihE - - - - - - -
() Profit contribution (Z) FEsE - - s 3688909  (44,910,909)  (50,981,538)  (92,208,538)
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves 1 REEHLE - - - 3,688,909  (3,688,909) - -
2. Appropriation to general risk 2 RE-RER
reserve i - - - - - - -
3. Distribution to shareholders 3 HREMAE = - - - (41,222,000  (50,981,538) (92,208,538
4. Others 4 Efp - - - - - - -
(V) Internal transfer within (m) REERRS
Shareholders' equity o] = - (638,957) - - 638,957 -
1. Capital reserves transferred to 1 BRDRERE
capital (or shares) KRR - - - - - - -
2. Surplus reserves transferred to 2 BHAEELE
capital (or shares) R(ERE) - - - - - - -
3. Surplus reserves made up for 3 BYNERE
losses BE - - - - - - -
4. Others 4 Efp - ) (638,957) - - 638,957 -
V. Balance at the end of the year T - REERAE 412,220,000 609,308,148 2,098,458 139,259,934 473625451 473,001,721  2,109,513,712
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
AR R B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 2015 12531H 1L F &

For the year ended at December 31, 2014
M145F

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent company
FERBATRRNRRER

Other Total
Share Capital - comprehensive Surplus Undistributed Minority  shareholders'
capital reserves income reserves profits interests equity
e Ly YNE Y Y BeRE  AOENE  VHRRER  REERSH
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ltem Ef ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET
|, Balance at the end of last year - LEERHRE 412,220,000 610,792,439 2632500 129500819 499,634,209 421,571,069  2,076,351,026
Add: Changes in accounting policies n: giBRESE S e e e e - -
Correction of prior errors AIEEEET - - - - - - -
Business combination under R T REa
common control - - - - - - -
Others Bt - - - - - - -
I Balance at the beginning of the year = » REEHHE 412,220,000 610,792,439 2632500 129500819 499,634,209 421,571,069  2,076,351,026
Il Increase or decrease amount = FRERERLE(R)
in the year SAT - JoR 085 = (1,746,769) 538,500 6,070,206 (5,962,361) 19,814,787 18,714,369
() Total comprehensive income (-) GalnsE - - 538,500 - 4139845 47532646 89400991
(1) Contrioution and reduction of (2) BERARED
shareholders’ capital EX = (1,746,769) - - - 20,425,863 18,679,100
1. Capital contribution from 1 RERAEK
shareholders - 214,130 - - - 20,564,970 20,779,100
2. Acquisition minority interests 2 -WBTLRALG
of subsidiaries i - (1,960,89) - - - (139,107) (2,100,000)
(1) Profit contiouton (=) FEAR - - - BO0206 (47200208 (48143722 (89.365.722)
1, Appropriation to surplus reserves 1 REOESHLE - - - 6,070,206 (,070,206) = =
2. Appropriation 1o general risk 2 RR-RER
reserve iy - - - - - - -
3. Distribution to shareholders 3 HRRMAE - - - - (42020000 (48,143,722)  (89,365,722)
4, Others 4 Ef - _ _ _ _ _ _
(V) Internal transfer within (m) REERAE
shareholders' equity et - - - - - - -
1. Capital reserves transferred to 1 BRLNBELA
capital (or shares) A(HRE) - - - - - - -
2. Surplus reserves transferred to PRV N
capital (or shares) RkA) = = = = = = =
3, Surplus reserves made up for 3 BRNERE
losses BB = = = = = = =
4. Others 4 Eff - - - - - - -
V. Balance at the end of the year M- AEHRHE 42,220,000 609,045,676 3171000 135,571,025 493671848 441385846  2,005,065,395

The notes as set out from page 88 to 259 form an integral part of the  FH{NFESSHE F F 259 B )51 754 35 Ml 51 2 AN B 78 4R
financial statements. EEABRER D o

The financial statements as set out from page 73 to 87 have been E73EHEFESTEMMBERERUTATEEZ
signed by:

FEX FHEK KER
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
JEEREA FEEIGIIEARA - BIHEREEA -
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY OF THE COMPANY
ARRRESEDE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 2015 12531H 1L F &

For the year ended at December 31, 2015
20155
Other Total
Capital Capital  comprehensive Surplus  Undistributed  shareholders'
share reserves income reserves profits equity
A& EXNBE  EfiRaks BHAE FAWAE RREREH
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
Item HH ARHT N ARHT ARHT AR N
. Balance at the end of last year ~ — - FEERAE 412,220,000 610,293,521 - 111,793,791 316,879,762 1,451,187,074
Add: Changes in accounting m: EHRREE
policies - - - - - -
Correction of prior errors BIEZEEE = - - - - _
Others Hity - = = - - -
Il. Balance at the beginning ZAEERE
of the year 412,220,000 610,293,521 - 111,793,791 316,879,762 1,451,187,074
Ill. Increase or decrease amount = REEREHLE(HD
in the year AT = J5REE51) - - - 3,688,908 (8,021,830) (4,332,922)
() Total comprehensive income (=) RAMaER - - - - 36,889,078 36,889,078
(I) Contribution and reduction (Z) BRRBARR S
of shareholders’ capital &K - - - - - -
1. Ordinary shares contribution 1 RERAR
from shareholders LE% - - - - - -
2. Capital contribution from 2 EfERIA
holders of other equity BEERA
instruments B - - - - - -
3. Dividends payments 3 BRI EAFA
recognized in BRERN
shareholders’ equity % - - - - - -
4, Others 4 Efh - - - - - -
(Iny Profit contribution (Z) FBHE - - - 3,688,908  (44,910,908)  (41,222,000)
1. Appropriation to surplus 1 RBEBLE
reserves - - - 3,688,908 (3,688,908) -
2. Appropriation to general 2 RE-%AER
risk reserve £ - - - - - -
3. Distribution to shareholders 3 HRENAE - - - - (41,222,000  (41,222,000)
4, Others 4Bt - - - - - -
(IV)Internal transfer within (m) BREENDES
shareholders’ equity - - - - - -
1. Capital reserves transferred 1 ERREERE
to capital (or shares) NGRS - - - - - -
2. Surplus reserves transferred 2 RHBABELE
to capital (or shares) K(HBRK) - - - - - -
3. Surplus reserves made 3 BHRLERE
up for losses BB - - - - - -
4, Others 4Eth - - - - - -
IV Balance at the end of the year REHRGE 412,220,000 610,293,521 - 115,482,699 308,857,932 1,446,854,152
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY OF THE COMPANY
RIS E B R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 2015 12531H 1L F &

For the year ended at December 31, 2014

20145 E
Other Total
Share Capital  comprehensive Surplus  Undistributed ~ shareholders'
capital reserves income reserves profits equity
BA BADE  EftiRakaE vl YN ROLME  REERGH
RMB RMB RMVB RMB RMB RMB
Item R ARET ARET AR ARETL ARET ARET
. Balance at the end of last year — FEERHBE 412,220,000 610,293,521 - 105723585 303,469,912 1,431,707,018
Add: Changes in accounting n: exdnRg
policies - - - - - -
Correction of prior errors AIEZSEE = - - _ _ _
Others Hit = = = - - -
Il. Balance at the beginning = REEYHE
of the year 412,220,000 610,293,521 - 105723585 303,469,912 1,431,707,018
Il Increase or decrease amount S Mﬁiﬁﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ(ﬁé
in the year Al — J553E51) - - - 6,070,206 13,409,850 19,480,056
() Total comprenensive income (=) BRmER - - - - 60,702,056 60,702,056
{lly Contribution and reduction (Z) BERAMRS
of shareholders’ capital BA = S = = = =
1. Ordinary shares contribution 1 RERAR
from sharsholders LB - - - - - -
2. Capital contribution from 2 EfhEmTE
holders of other equity BEERA
instruments B - - - - - -
3. Dividends payments 3 RAZMFA
recognized in R R
shareholders’ equity Exd S S S S S S
4. Others 4 -Eip - - _ _ _ _
() Profit contribution (=) FEDE - - - 6070206  (47,292,206)  (41,222,000)
1. Appropriation to surplus 1 RRABAE
reserves - - - 6,070,206 (6,070,206) -
2. Appropriation to general 2 RE—RER
risk reserve £fE - - - - - -
3. Distribution to shareholders 3 HRENAE - - - - (41222,0000  (41,222,000)
4. Others Hit - - - - - -
(IV)internal transfer within (m) mem e
shareholders’ equity - - - - - -
1. Capital reserves transferred 1 EAREERE
to capital (or shares) NETv) - - - - - -
2. Surplus reserves transferred 2 RBABEILE
to capital (or shares) NETv) - - - - - -
3. Surplus reserves made 3 BRLERE
up for losses B = - - _ _ _
4, Others 4 Eft - - - - - -
IV. Balance at the end of the year 10 - AKEIERR#4EE 412,220,000 610,293,521 - 111793791 316,879,762 1,451,187,074

The notes as set out from page 88 to 259 form an integral part of the ~ N FE88H EHF 259 B Wy BI 165 & M 7t 2 AN 1 7% 4R
financial statements. KMVAERE S ©

The financial statements as set out from page 73 to 87 have been HF73EZEF7THMIIEHRERMANTALTEE
signed by:

TEX B33 xER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FS R It

AN

1y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 2015%12831H IFF /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (BR435Ia855) » £EEE [ BARKT)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”) is a joint
stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). On November 1, 2004, with the approval by
Beijing Administration for Industry and Commerce, the Company
(formerly known as “Beijing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain
Company Limited”) was established and the registered capital
of the Company was RMB246,620,000. The Business License
No. is 110000002315927. The registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are located at Block No. 45,
Xinyuan Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing. The Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the retail and wholesale distribution of daily consumer

products.

On September 25, 2006, the H shares issued by the Company
were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. On February 26, 2008, all the H
shares were transferred to the Main Board for listed trading. The
Company issued a total of 412,220,000 ordinary shares as at
December 31, 2015.

The controlling shareholder of the Company is Beijing Chaoyang

Auxiliary Food Company (“Chaoyang Auxiliary”).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and financial
statements of the Company, which are subject to consideration
at the general meeting pursuant to the Articles of Association of
the Company, were approved by the board of directors on March

21, 2016.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 2015%12831H IFF /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIz4B55) » £EEE N BARKET)

BASIS FOR PREPARASTION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements are presented on a going concern
basis. The financial statements are prepared based on the actual
transactions and events and in accordance with “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Standard” (issued by
Ministry of Finance No0.33 and revised by Ministry of Finance
No.76), 41 specific accounting standards, implementation
guidelines and explanations of enterprise accounting standards
and other relevant provisions issued on February 15, 2006 and
those updated afterwards (Hereafter collectively referred to as
“ASBE”), and the disclosure requirements of Company Ordinance
of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

In accordance with Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, the Company has adopted the accrual basis of
accounting. Except for certain financial instruments, the Company
adopts the historical cost as the principle of measurement in
the financial statements. When assets are impaired, provisions
for asset impairment are made in accordance with relevant

requirements.

STATEMENTS OF COMPLIANCE WITH ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS FOR BUSINESS ENTERPRISES-BASIC
STANDARD

The financial statements have been in compliance with ASBE,
truly and completely reflecting the financial position Company
and the Group as at December 31, 2015 and of the financial
performance, cash flows and other relevant information of the

Company and the Group for the 2015 year then ended.

—  UBHRRNERER

REEMBREAFBLEBRAER - R
BEREENRHMNEIE - ZRV BB
B SRR — EARER ) (BT ERE8 < 5533
SREEG - BIEERL S 765RIER]) 200642
RA158 R EBBAMEIT N4 IEARB SR
A - ESFERIERER - SEEHER
RIEREMEERAE(UTABI CESE
A1) - Boh - AEBERIRBCEBQTER)
IEBBMAZIMBERARES ETHRAD
CERBEBRAEBUBESR o

RIBEESHENNBERTE  AEEES
BRENBEEELHAER - BRULSRTA
S REAB MR ANEL KA Bt EER
BEMRFLRE - AIRBARERE A
FEHVBIEER -

v

BREEFRSFHERNES

AUBREFTACEGHERNHER &
T BEMRETARAF015F12A318K
REIREHH RN R2015FENARIREA
HEERRNRBRAHBERESTAHE

B o

o

2015 &R
IR RREEEEERNDERAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 2015%12831H IFF /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (BR435Ia855) » £EEE [ BARKT)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

- EESBERAME AR

Accounting period 1 BEHE

The Group adopts the calendar year as its accounting year TEERNSHFEALEFE  IGF
from January 1 to December 31. 1A1HE=12831H1E

Functional currency 2 v FRERAIHE

RMB is the currency of the primary economic environment ARBABREBEKEFTEN T ELER
where the Group operates, and the Group used RMB as BHRHEE  RAEBUARBAZER
the functional currency. The financial statements have been I HE o NEE R EWKREAERA
prepared in RMB. HEE/ARE o

Business combinations involving enterprises not 3 FR-EHTLESHNEE

under common control and goodwill

A business combination involving enterprises not under
common control is a business combination in which all of
the combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled by
the same party or parties before and after the combination.

The cost of combination is the aggregate of the fair values,
at the acquisition date, of the assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed and equity securities issued by the acquirer
in exchange for control of the acquiree. For the business
combination involving enterprises not under common control
and achieved in stages, the cost of combination is the price
paid at the acquisition date plus the fair value of previously-
held equity interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date.
The intermediary expenses incurred in respect of auditing,
legal services, valuation and consultancy services, etc. and
other associated administrative expenses attributable to the
business combinations are recognized in profit or loss when
they were incurred. The previously-held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value
and any resulting difference between the fair value and the
carrying amount are recognized as investment income for
the current period. Where the previously-held equity interest
in the acquiree involves other comprehensive income, the
relevant comprehensive income is transferred to investment
income in the period.
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M- EESTBERME R (2)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.

Business combinations involving enterprises not

under common control and goodwill (Continued)

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities or contingent
liabilities, acquired by the acquirer in a business
combination, that meet the recognition criteria are measured
as fair value at the acquisition date. Where the combination
cost exceeds the acquiree’s interest in the fair value of
identifiable net assets, the difference is treated as an asset
and recognized as goodwill which is measured at cost
on initial recognition. Where the combination cost is less
than the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of identifiable
net assets acquired in the business combination, the
measurement of the fair values of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities or contingent liabilities and combination
costs is firstly reassessed, if after the reassessment, the
combination cost is still less than the acquirer’s interest
in the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired in the
business combination, the acquirer recognizes the remaining

difference immediately in profit or loss for the current period.

The goodwill arising on the business combination is
represented separately and measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. The goodwill is tested for

impairment at least at the end of each year.

3
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.

Business combinations involving enterprises not

under common control and goodwill (Continued)

When conducting the impairment test for goodwill, the test
is conducted through combination with the related asset
group or portfolio of asset group. That is, the carrying
amount of goodwill is allocated to the relevant asset group
or portfolio of asset group benefited by synergetic effect
of merging since the acquisition date. If the recoverable
amount of asset group or portfolio of asset group which
contains the allocated goodwill is lower than its carrying
amount, relevant impairment loss is recognized. The amount
of impairment loss is first written-down carrying amount of
goodwill allocated to that asset group or portfolio of asset
group, and then written down to the carrying amount of
all other types of assets proportionally other than goodwill,
according to the weighting of the carrying amount of all
other types of assets within asset group or portfolio of asset

group.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the net value the
fair value of an asset less costs of disposal and the present
value of the future cash flow expected to be derived from

the asset.

The impairment loss of goodwill is recorded in profit and
loss for the current period and shall not be reversed in

subsequent accounting period.

3
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidation scope in consolidated financial statements
is determined on the basis of control. The control refers to
the power to influence the investee and participate in its
operating activities to obtain benefits, the amount at which

shall be effected by the power.

Major accounting policies and accounting periods
adopted by the subsidiaries are defined according to the
standardized accounting policies and accounting periods

stipulated by the Company.

All significant intra-group balances and transactions are

eliminated on consolidation.

The portion of a subsidiaries’ equity not attributable to the
parent company is treated as the minority interests and
represented as minority interests in the consolidated balance
sheets within shareholder’s equity. The portion of net
profits or losses of subsidiaries for the period attributable to
minority interests is represented as minority interests in the

consolidated profit and loss statement under net profit item.

When the loss amount of the subsidiary attributable to
minority shareholders of a subsidiary exceeds minority
shareholders’ portion of the opening balance of owner’s
equity of the subsidiary, the excess amount are still

allocated against minority interests.

M- EESTBERME R (2)
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

For the transactions of acquiring minority interests of the
subsidiaries or disposing part of its subsidiaries’ equity
without losing control, treated as equity transaction, the
book value of shareholder’s equity attributable to the parent
company and that of minority interests should be adjusted
to reflect the change in the company’s interests in the
subsidiaries. Differences between the adjustment of the
minority interests and the fair value of consideration are
adjusted to capital reserve. If the difference exceeds capital

reserve, retained earnings shall be adjusted.

Recognition criteria of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group comprise cash,
deposits that can be readily withdrew on demand, short-
term (usually within a period of 3 months from purchase
date on) and highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an

insignificant risk of change value.

Foreign currency transactions

The foreign currency transactions are, on initial recognition,
translated to the functional currency at the spot exchange
rate on the dates of transactions, foreign currency monetary
items are translated using the spot exchange rate at
the balance sheet date. The exchange difference arising
from the difference between the spot exchange rate at
the balance sheet date and the spot exchange rate on
initial recognition or at the pervious balance sheet date is

recognized in profit or loss for the period.

4
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. For financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs are recognized in profit and loss for
the current period. For other financial assets and financial
liabilities, transaction costs are included in their initial

recognized amounts.

7.1 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
Where there is an active market, the Group adopts
the quotation in the active market as the fair value
of financial instruments. Quoted prices in an active
market are the prices which are easily and regularly
obtained from an exchange, broker, trade association
and the pricing service etc., and those prices represent
actual and occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. If the market for financial assets is not
active, the Group establishes fair value by using a
valuation technique. Valuation techniques include using
recent arm’s length market transactions between
knowledgeable, willing parties, reference to the current
fair value of another instrument that is substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing

models etc.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7.

Financial instruments (Continued)

7.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of

financial assets

Financial assets purchased or sold in regular way are
recognized and derecognized based on the accounting
at transaction date. On initial recognition, the Group's
financial assets include financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments,
loans and receivables, and available-for-sale financial

assets.

7.2.1Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and those

designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial asset held for trading is the financial
asset that meets one of the following conditions:
A. the financial asset is acquired for the purpose
of selling it in a short term; B. the financial
asset is a part of a group of identifiable financial
instruments that are collectively managed, and
there is objective evidence indicating that the
enterprise recently manages this group for the
purpose of short-term profits; C. the financial
asset is a derivative, except for a derivative that
is designated as effective hedging instrument, or
a financial guarantee contract, or a derivative that
is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
an unquoted equity instrument (without a quoted
price from an active market) whose fair value

cannot be reliably measured.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETTHREMER AR E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

ERMITAE)

7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7>

7.2 THEENSE - BEAGE
(%)

7.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

7.2.1Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 721X R BEFGEAREE

(Continued) EHIBm A E (&)
A financial asset meeting one of the following FETHEHEz—HEHE
requirements can be designated as a financial E - EVREREIEEAR

asset measured at fair value and of which
the variation is included in the current profits
or losses: A. the designation can eliminate
or obviously deduce the discrepancies in the
recognition or measurement of related gains

or losses arisen from the different basis of
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RZEHMEEMNTERERT
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measurement of the financial assets; B. the R B.ASERREEK
official written documents on risk management REXBNEREMXHE
or investment strategies of the Company have HE - HZeRMEEMTH
recorded that the combination of financial assets cHEEHENEHEEN
and financial liabilities will be managed and EREBEEAURAAREBER
evaluated on the basis of their fair values and be EETER  FTELMA
reported to the key management personnel. REBAEBRE o

Financial assets at fair value through profit or NARBEFEBEEEZHH
loss are subsequently measured at fair value. AEHEZNESREERA
The gains or losses related to financial assets at AREBEEETRENE A
fair value through profit or loss and dividend or R EEZBEKNFGERIE
interest income related to those financial assets KAREZE S FEEMRE
are recognized in profit or loss for the current B9 AR A AN F) B U A ET A S B
period. B o
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

 EERHBEARHEH ()

7> ﬁﬁﬂlﬂ‘

7. Financial instruments (Continued)

7.2 THEENSE - BRAGE
(#&)

7.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

72215 HEHRE

7.2.2Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed maturity, fixed or
determinable payments and that an entity has the

positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Such kind of financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or amortization are

recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability (inclusive of a group
of financial assets or financial liabilities) and
the interest income or expense of each period,
using the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated
future cash flows through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the current
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial

liability.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETTHREMER AR E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7 S@MIAE)

7.2 THEENSE - BEAGE

7.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of

financial assets (Continued) (%)

7.2.2Held-to-maturity investments (Continued) 7221 R RHIRE (&)
When calculating the effective interest rate, the EAEERNER - AEH
Group estimates future cash flows considering BEEREMEEN SR A

all contractual terms of the financial asset or

financial liability (without considering future credit

BATE S B ER 18
AARKRERE(FEBARK

losses), as well as consider all kinds of charges, MIERABX)  AREFER
transaction fees and discount or premium paid TREEXCRHAEES

forming an integral part of the effective interest 72 EZ AR ERE - BR
rate paid or received between both parties of ERF RAEKE DS IB U

financial asset or financial liability contract.

7.2.3Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Financial
assets classified as loans and receivables by the
Group include receivable, accounts receivable,
interest receivable, dividends receivable, and

other receivables.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Gain or loss arising from derecognition,
impairment or amortization is recognized in profit

or loss for the current period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

 EERHBEARHEH ()

7> %EEHIE‘

7. Financial instruments (Continued)

7.2 THEENSE - BRAGE

(%&)

7.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

724 (I ELHEE

7.2.4Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-
derivative financial assets that are designated
on initial recognition as available for sale, and
financial assets that are not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans

and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

The final cost of investment in an available-
for-sale debt instrument is determined using
amortized cost method. Namely the amount is
measured at initial recognition amount minus
principal repayment, plus or minus the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method
of any difference between that initial amount and
the maturity amount, and minus any reduction
for impairment. The final cost of investment in
an available-for-sale equity instrument is its initial

acquisition cost.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETTHREMER AR E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7 S@MIAE)

7.2 THEENSE - BEAGE

financial assets (Continued) (%)

7.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of

7.2.4Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued) 724 ELREE (&)

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Except that impairment
losses and exchange differences between foreign
monetary financial assets and amortized costs
are recorded in profit or loss for the period, gains
or losses arising from changes in fair values
are recognized in other comprehensive income.
When the financial assets are derecognized,
gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are transferred out and
recognized as profit or loss for the period. But
an equity instrument in unquoted active market
whose fair value can not be reliably measured and
a derivative financial asset that is linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted
equity instrument are subsequently measured at

cost.

Interest received from an available-for-sale
financial asset and cash dividend declared to
distribute by the investee are recognized in

investment income.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7.

Financial instruments (Continued)

7.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the
carrying amounts of financial assets other than those
at fair value through profit or loss. If there is objective
evidence that a financial asset is impaired, the Group

determines the amount of any impairment loss.

For a financial asset that is individually significant,
the Group assesses the asset individually for
impairment. For a financial asset that is not individually
significant, the Group assesses the asset individually
for impairment or includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. If
the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset (whether significant or not), it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively reassesses them for
impairment. Assets for which an impairment loss is
individually recognized are not included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics

for collective assessment of impairment.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETTHREMER AR E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7 SRMIAE)
7.3 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 7.3 HEERMEE)

7.3.1lmpairment of held-to-maturity investment, loans 731 B2 HRE - EXFE

and receivables

A financial asset measured at cost or amortized
cost is decreased from the carrying amount to the
present value of estimated future cash flow, the
decrease amount is recognized as the impairment
loss and recorded in profit or loss. If, subsequent
to the recognition of an impairment loss on the
financial assets, there is objective evidence of a
recovery in value of the financial assets which
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment is recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed, the
carrying amount after reversal of impairment
loss of the financial asset should not exceed the
amortization cost at the reversal date assumed if

no impairment loss is provided.

7.3.2Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

When an available-for-sale financial asset is
impaired, the cumulative loss arising from decline
in fair value previously recognized directly in
capital reserves is reclassified from the capital
reserves to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is reclassified from capital
reserves to profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortization) and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial

asset previously recognized in profit or loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

 EERHBEARHEH ()

7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7 SETA(

7.3 HEEREE)

7.3 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

7.3 2R E 2B A ERE ()

7.3.2Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

(Continued)

If, subsequent to the recognition of an impairment
loss on available-for-sale financial assets, there is
objective evidence of a recovery in value of the
financial assets which can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment is
recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed. The amount of reversal of
impairment loss on available-for-sale equity
instruments is recognized as other comprehensive
income, while the amount of reversal of
impairment loss on availa-ble-for-sale debt

instruments is recognized in profit or loss.

If an impairment loss has been incurred on an
investment in unquoted equity instrument (without
a quoted price in an active market) whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, or on a
derivative financial asset that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
instrument, the impairment loss on such financial

asset is not reversed once it is recognized.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7 SRMIAE)

7.4 THEEBBHERKENE

7.4 Recognition and measurement of financial asset

transfer

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when:
(1) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire; or (2) it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity; or (3) it
transfers the financial asset, neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership but has not retained control over the

financial assets.

For a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety that
satisfies the derecognition criteria, the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred and the sum of the consideration received
from the transfer and any cumulative change in fair
value that has been recognized in other comprehensive

income is recognized in profit or loss.

For a transfer of part of a financial asset that satisfies
the derecognition criteria, the carrying amount of
the financial assets transferred is amortized at its
corresponding fair value between the derecognized
and the non-derecognized, the difference between the
sum of the consideration received from the transfer
and cumulative change in fair value that has been
recognized in other comprehensive income and the
forgoing carrying amount amortized is recognized in

profit or loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

 EERHEEAR A ()

7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7 SETA(
7.5 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities 7.5 ZHEENSENGE
On initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified TRIE BREVRERR D RBUR
as either financial liabilities at ‘fair value through profit REEFEEEEFHHAEHNAE
or loss’ or ‘other financial liabilities’. Financial liabilities, SNERAEENEMSRAE -
on initial recognition, are measured at fair value. MisEReMAE  WARBEE
For financial liabilities at fair value through profit or e c HRUAREBESERER
loss, relevant transaction costs are recorded in profit FEi AZHEZNEREE -
or loss for the period. For other financial liabilities, HENRSBEREET AL BIE
relevant transaction costs are recognized in their initial = HREMERAE  BEX
recognition. SBRAFAVIBERSEE -
7.6 Derecognition of financial liabilities 7.6 ZEEEHARILER
The Group derecognizes a financial liability or part of CRHEENRERER LIS
it only when the underlying present obligation or part EERRE - TRELLERZS
of it is discharged. An agreement between the Group MEBEIE D - FXEB(E®
(an existing borrower) and an existing lender to replace AN)EREREAZHEZRET i - LK
the original financial liability with a new financial liability EremafriAgniTema
with substantially different terms is accounted for as an & BEffemaERRTFLeRE
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the ENEREREE LR/
recognition of a new financial liability. IR FeMAE - WRRHE
REIeWMBE -
When a financial liability or a part of it is derecognized, cREEEBIT O KRIEER
the difference between the carrying amount of B BERIEERBYNEEEE
the financial liability or part of the financial liability BYNHHE(ERELNFERS
derecognized and the consideration paid (including any BENAENTeRAE) 2HN
non-cash assets transferred or new financial liabilities ER  GFAEHER -
assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued)

7.7 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

When the Group has a legal right that is currently
enforceable to set off the recognized financial assets
and financial liabilities, and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realize the financial asset and settle
the financial liability simultaneously, financial assets
and financial liabilities are offset with the net amounts
presented on the balance sheet. Otherwise, financial
assets and financial liabilities are separately presented

on the balance sheet without offsetting.

8. Accounts receivable

Receivables include accounts receivable and other

receivables etc.

8.1 Recognition of provision for bad debts

The Group assesses the carrying amount of accounts
receivable at the balance sheet date. Where the
following objective evidence indicates an impairment of
accounts receivable, the provisions for impairment shall

be made.

(@ Significant financial difficulties of the debtor;
(b) A breach of contract by the debtor such as a

default in interest and principal payments;

(c) It becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganizations;
(d) Other objective evidence which indicates there is

an impairment of accounts receivable.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

 EERHBEARHEH ()

8. Accounts receivable (Continued) 8 - ERFIE(E)

8.2 BIREFENFIELZ(E)

82 1B HE HEAL EFGTEE

8.2 Provision for bad debts

8.2.1Receivables that are individually significant and for

which bad debt provision individually assessed

A receivable over RMB5 million is recognized by
the Group as an individually significant receivable.
For the receivable that is individually significant,
the Group assesses the receivable individually
for impairment. The financial asset which is
not impaired individually shall be included in
the financial asset group with similar credit risk
characteristics and assessed for impairment.
The receivable for which the impairment loss is
recognized shall not be included in the group with

similar credit risk characteristics for impairment
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8. Accounts receivable (Continued)

8.2 Provision for bad debts (Continued)

8.2.2Receivables which bad debt provision is

collectively assessed on portfolio basis

Basis for determining a portfolio according
to credit risk characteristics

The Group classifies the receivables that
are not individually significant and those that
are individually significant but not impaired
into groups of financial assets according
to the similarity and relevance of credit
risk characteristics. The credit risks usually
reflect the debtor’s ability to pay amounts
due at maturity under contractual items of
related assets and relevant to the estimation
of future cash flows of the assets subject to

assessment.

Bad debt provision for a portfolio according

to credit risk characteristics

As collectively assessing the impairment
on portfolio basis, the amount of bad debt
provision is determined according to that the
historical experience on losses and current
economic conditions for the receivables’
portfolio structure and similar credit risk and
predicted impairment losses that have been

existed in the portfolio.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEESREMEER(E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8. Accounts receivable (Continued) 8 ~ EFRIE(
8.2 Provision for bad debts (Continued) 8.2 BEREMHIGHER % (&)
8.2.3Receivables which are not individually significant 823BEIE LM T EAHEIE

but for which bad debt provision is individually FEEARE B A EW K E
assessed
Impairment test is individually conducted by TEBUHBEBESEIEN BE
the Group on accounts receivable that are not EEEBERPECDBERENEK
individually significant but deemed to be impaired MR BEETRENR BT
by objective evidence to determine the impairment BB - G AEHER -

losses recorded in profit or loss.

9. Inventories 9 HFE

9.1 Classification of inventories 9.1 FEWSE
Inventories include raw materials, turnover materials FEXERERME - AEME
and goods in stocks, etc. MEFE® °

9.2 The measurement of inventories received and issued 9.2 FERESNELHYHELE
The inventory is initially measured at the actual cost; GFEERSHZERKAE -
Inventory costs comprise costs of purchase, costs GFERABREBEAAN - MIK
of conversion and other costs. Cost of sales is RFDE M BCA o B PN B R ER
determined using First in first out. RE#EENERERHFENER

BXAR -
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Inventories (Continued)

FR BT FE R AR EER

9.3 Recognition of the net realizable value and

measurement of provision for decline in value of

inventories

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. If the
net realizable value of the inventory is lower than the
cost, a provision for decline in value of inventories
is recognized. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. The
Group determines the net realizable value of inventories
based on solid evidence obtained and after taking
into consideration the purpose for which the inventory
is held, and the effect of events occurring after the

balance sheet date.

For the inventory with tremendous number and
relatively low unit price, the decline in value of inven-
tories is provided according to the type of inventory;
for other inventories, the decline in value of inventories
is provided at the difference of the cost of a single
inventory item exceeding its net realizable value.
After the provision of decline in value of inventories
is made, if the circumstances that caused the value
of the inventory to be written down below cost no
longer exist so that the net realizable value is higher
than the carrying amount, the original provision for

decline in value is reversed and the reversed amount is

recognized in profit or loss for the period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Inventories (Continued)

9.4

9.5

The stock count system for inventories

The perpetual inventory system is adopted for stock

count.

Amortization methods of low-value consumables
and packaging materials
Low-value consumables are written off in full when

issued for use. Packing materials are written off in full

when issued for use.

10. Long-term equity investments

A long-term equity investment is the long-term equity

investment of the Group that is able to control, jointly

control or significantly influence on the investee. The long-

term equity investment of the Group that is not able to

control, jointly control or significantly influence on the

investee is recognized as the held-for-sale financial asset or

the financial asset measured at fair value through profit or

loss.

10.1 Determination of investment cost

For a long-term equity investment acquired by a
business combination involving enterprises under
common control, the initial investment cost of long-
term equity investment is the share of the carrying
amount of the owner’s equity of the merged party
in the consolidated financial statements of ultimate
controlling party at the acquisition date. For a long-term
equity investment acquired by a business combination
involving enterprises not under common control, the
initial investment cost is the cost of acquisition. The
long-term equity investment through means other than

a business combination is initially measured at its cost.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

10.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss

The long-term equity investment that is able to jointly
control or significantly influence in the investee adopts
the equity method. In addition, the financial statement
of the Company adopts the cost method for the long-
term equity investment that is able to control over the
investee.

10.2.1 A long-term equity investment accounted for
using the cost method

Under the cost method, a long-term equity
investment, on its initial recognition, is measured
as cost and adjusted according to the amount
of additional investment or disinvestment.
Except for cash dividends or profits which
include in actual payment or consideration as
the Group obtains the investment but have not
been paid, the investment income for the period
is recognized according to cash dividends or
profits declared to distribute by the investee.

10.2.2 A long-term equity investment accounted for

using the equity method

Under the equity method, where the initial
investment cost of a long-term equity
investment exceeds the Group’s share of
the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net
assets at the time of acquisition, no adjustment
is made to the initial investment cost. Where
the initial investment cost is less than the
Group’s share of the fair value of the investee’s
identifiable net assets at the time of acquisition,
the difference is recognized in profit or loss for
the period, and the cost of the long-term equity
investment is adjusted accordingly.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

- EEEBERAME AR ()

10 - RBRERE(H)

10. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

10.2 BE B RIB2 R T % ()

10.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss (Continued)

10.2.2 Em Z BRI RARER

10.2.2 A long-term equity investment accounted for

using the equity method (Continued) & (&)
Under the equity method, the Group recognizes HKRAEREZER - 2R
its share of the net profit or loss and other ng—ﬁi)ﬁ TJ*E’J%&TEE

comprehensive income made by the investee
as investment income and other comprehensive
income respectively, and adjusts the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment
accordingly; The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced by the portion of any
profit distributions or cash dividends declared
by the investee that is distributed to the Group;
the share of changes in owners' equity of the
investee other than those arising from net profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and profit
distribution are recognized in the capital reserves
the carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment is adjusted accordingly. The Group
recognizes its share of the investee’s net profit or
loss after making appropriate adjustments based
on the fair value of the investee’s individual
separately identifiable assets, etc. at the
acquisition date. Where the accounting policies
and accounting period adopted by the investee
are not consistent with those of the Group, the
Group shall adjust the financial statements of
the investee to conform to its own accounting
policies and accounting period, and recognize
investment income and other comprehensive
income based on the adjusted financial
statements. For the Group's transactions with
its associates and joint ventures where assets
contributed or sold does not constitute a
business, unrealized intra-group profits or losses
are recognized as investment income or loss to
the extent that those attributable to the Group's
proportionate share of interest are eliminated.
However, unrealized losses resulting from the
Group's transactions with its investees which
represent impairment losses on the transferred
assets are not eliminated.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETTHREMER AR E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
10. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 10 - REIRERE(E)

10.2 ZAEET B R BEERT % (E)

10.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss (Continued)

10.2.3 Acquisitions of minority interest 10.2.3 WiEL S HE

When the Group prepares the consolidated
financial statements, the difference between the
long-term equity investment arising from the
acquisition of minority interest and shares of
the subsidiary’s net assets attributable to the
Company which are continuously calculated
from the purchase date (or the acquisition date)
based on new additional proportions of shares
is used to adjust capital reserves, if capital
reserves are not sufficient to be written down,

the retained earnings shall be adjusted.

Disposals of long-term equity investment

In consolidated financial statements, when the
parent company disposes a part of a long-
term equity investment without losing power
of control, the difference between its disposal
price and its subsidiary’ net assets attributable
to the Company corresponding to the disposal
of long-term equity investment is recorded in
owner’s equity. For other circumstances of
disposing of a long-term equity investment, the
difference between its carrying amount and
actual purchase price is recorded in profit or

loss for the period.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 2015%12831H IFF /&
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11.

12.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation, or both, including rented land use
right, land use right which is held and prepared for transfer
after appreciation, and rented building.

The initial measurement of the investment properties shall
be measured at its actual cost. The follow-up expenses
pertinent to the investment properties shall be included
in the cost of the investment properties, if the economic
benefits pertinent to this real estate are likely to flow into the
enterprise, and, the cost of the investment properties can
be reliably measured. Otherwise, they should be included in

the current profits and losses upon occurrence.

The Group adopts the cost model for subsequent
measurement of investment properties, and the depreciation
or amortization policies are consistent with that of building

and land use right.

When an investment properties is sold, transferred, retired
or damaged, the Company recognizes the amount of
any proceeds on disposal of the asset net of the carrying
amount and related taxes in profit or loss for the current

period.

Fixed assets

12.1 Recognition of fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use
in the production of goods or supply of services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and
have a useful life of more than one accounting year.
Fixed assets are only recognized when the related
economic benefits probably flow to the Group and the
cost can be reliably measured. Fixed assets are initially
measured at cost as well as taking into account the

effect of estimated disposal costs.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

12 -BEEE#E)

12. Fixed assets (Continued)

12.2 Method for depreciation of different fixed assets 122 5 BB EEEWNES %
Fixed assets are depreciated on straight-line basis BElF & ENERITEE ATE Ak
over their estimated useful lives from the month after KA KAFRFEEEERR
they are brought to working condition for the intended FaAFHRTE - RBETEEE
use. The useful lives, estimated net residual values and mEMFZS - B FRENFR
annual depreciation rates of each category of fixed ExmT
assets are as follows:
Residual Annual

Useful life value% depreciation %
Category Al MEFR(EF) BR{EE(%) FHIEE(%)
Buildings B E REEY 20-35 3-4 2.70-4.85
Machinery and equipment W22 2815 5-10 3-5 9.50-19.40
Office equipment FENSITc 5 3-5 19.00-19.40
Vehicles BRI 5-8 3-4 12.00-19.40

Estimated net residual value is the amount which
would be obtained from the disposal of the assets after
deducting of estimated costs of disposal, if the asset
were already of the age and in the condition expected

at the end of its useful life.

12.3 Recognition, measurement method of fixed assets

leased under finance leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred.
Consistent depreciation policies are adopted to
finance leased fixed assets. Leased fixed assets are
depreciated over the estimated useful lives when it is
reasonably determined that the ownership of the asset
will be obtained after the lease term is over. Otherwise,
the leased assets are depreciated over the shorter
period between the lease term and the estimated

useful lives of the assets.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

 EERHEEAR A ()

12. Fixed assets (Continued) 12 - EEEE(

12.4 Other explanations 12.4 Hfthad 85

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed asset
are recognized in the cost of fixed assets when the
associated economic benefits will probably flow
to the Group and the related cost can be reliably
measured, and the carrying amount of replaced part is
derecognized. All the other subsequent expenditures
are recognized in profit or loss for the period in which

they are incurred.

A fixed asset is derecognized on disposal or when
no economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. When a fixed asset is sold, transferred,
retired or damaged, the Group recognizes the amount
of any proceeds on disposal of the asset net of the
carrying amount and related taxes in profit or loss for

the current period.

The Group reviews the useful life, estimated net
residual value of a fixed asset and the depreciation
method at least at each financial year-end. A change
in the useful life, estimated net residual value of a fixed
asset or the depreciation method shall be accounted

for as a change in accounting estimate.
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13. Construction in progress 13 -EEIRE

ERIEKARERIEHEE &
FRERPRBENSHEIREXE T2
during the construction period, borrowing costs capitalized ERTEE A AMRER N E MM ER

ERAREMEHEERS - £ETIE
FEEREE A AREREERETEE

o

Construction in progress is measured at its actual costs.

The actual costs include various construction expenditures

before it is ready for intended use and other relevant costs.

Construction in progress is transferred to a fixed asset when

24

it is ready for intended use.
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

14. Borrowing costs 14 - BEREH

Borrowing costs include interest expenses, amortization
of discount or premium, auxiliary expenses, exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings etc.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying asset are capitalized
when expenditures for such asset and borrowing costs
are incurred and activities relating to the acquisition,
construction or production of the asset that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale have
commenced. Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases
when the qualifying asset being acquired, constructed or
produced becomes ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.

Where funds are borrowed under a specific-purpose
borrowing, the amount of interest to be capitalized is the
actual interest expense incurred on that borrowing for
the period less any bank interest earned from depositing
the borrowed funds before being used on the asset or
any investment income on the temporary investment of
those funds. Where funds are borrowed under general-
purpose borrowings, the Group determines the amount of
interest to be capitalized on such borrowings by applying
a capitalization rate to the weighted average of the excess
of cumulative expenditures on the asset over the amounts
of specific-purpose borrowings. The capitalization rate is
the weighted average of the interest rates applicable to the
general-purpose borrowings.

The qualifying assets to be capitalized are fixed assets,
investment properties and inventories which need to be
acquired, constructed or produced through a long period of
time, in order to become ready for its intended use or sale.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during
periods in which the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset is suspended abnormally and when
the suspension is for a continuous period of more than 3
months. Capitalization is suspended until the acquisition,
construction or production of the asset is resumed.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5"

16.

17.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include land use right, software

development costs and distribution network software.

Intangible assets are initially measured as cost. When an
intangible asset with a finite useful life is available for use, its
original cost is amortized using straight line method over its

estimated useful life.

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, the useful life
and amortization method shall be reviewed at the period

end, and the adjustments shall be made if necessary.

Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses are expenses which have
occurred but shall be amortized over the reporting period
and subsequent periods of more than one year long-term
prepaid expenses shall be amortized evenly over expected

benefit periods.

Long-term assets impairment

For non-current and non-financial assets such as fixed
assets, work in progress, intangible assets with a finite
useful life, investment properties measured at cost, long-
term equity investment of joint ventures and associated
enterprises etc., the Group assesses if any of them is
impaired at the balance sheet date. If there is any evidence
indicating that an asset is impaired, recoverable amounts
shall be estimated for impairment test. Goodwill and
intangible assets with a uncertainty useful life and intangible
assets which have not reach work condition shall be tested
for impairment annually regardless of whether there is any

evidence indicating that the assets have been impaired.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

17 - REEEREE)

17. Long-term assets impairment (Continued)

If the result of the impairment test indicates that the
recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying
amount, a provision for impairment and an impairment loss
are recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and the present value of the future cash flows expected
to be derived from the asset. An asset’s fair value is
determined based on the sales price agreed in an arm’s
length transaction. When no sales agreement but the active
market of an asset is available, its fair value is determined
according to a buyer’s bid. When no sales agreement and
the active market of an asset are available, its fair value
is estimated on the basis of best information which is can
be obtained. The disposal expenses include asset- related
legal expenses, relevant taxes, handling fees and direct
costs incurred for the asset intended sale. The present
value of expected future cash flows of an asset is the
amount that an asset’s expected future cash flows arising
from its continuous use and final disposal are discounted
at an appropriate rate. Provision for asset impairment is
determined and recognized on the individual asset basis.
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the recoverable amount of a group of
assets to which the asset belongs is determined. A group
of assets is the smallest group of assets that is able to

generate independent cash inflows.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

17.

18.

Long-term assets impairment (Continued)

Goodwill that is separately presented in the financial
statements is tested at least annually for impairment,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that it may
be impaired. In conducting the test, the carrying value of
goodwill is allocated to the related asset groups or groups
of asset groups which are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the business combination. If the result of the
test indicates that the recoverable amount of an asset group
or group of asset groups, including the goodwill allocated,
is lower than its carrying amount, the corresponding
impairment loss is recognized. The impairment loss is
first deducted from the carrying amount of goodwill that
is allocated to the asset group or group of asset groups,
and then deducted from the carrying amounts of other
assets within the asset groups or groups of asset groups in

proportion to the carrying amounts of other assets.

An impairment loss recognized on the assets mentioned

above shall not be reversed in the subsequent period.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits mainly include short-term employee
benefits, post-employment benefits and resignation benefits.

Short-term benefits include salaries, bonuses, allowance
and benefits, employee benefits, medical insurance,
maternity insurance, work injury insurance, housing fund,
labor union running costs and employee education cost and
non-monetary benefits etc. Actual short-term benefits are
recognized as liabilities during the accounting period when
employees render services and are charged into profit or
loss for the period or capitalized in costs of related assets.

Non-monetary benefits are measured at fair value.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

18.

19.

Employee benefits (Continued)

All post-employment benefits of the Group are defined
contribution plan. The amounts to be contributed under
defined contribution plan are recognized as liabilities
during the accounting period of when employees render
service and are charged into profit or loss for the period or

capitalized in costs of related assets.

Revenue

19.1 Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods are transferred to the buyer, the Group retains
neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold, and it is probable that the
economic benefit associated with the transaction will
flow to the Group and the relevant revenue and costs

can be measured reliably.

For sale of goods that result in award credits for
customers, the Group allocates the consideration
received or receivable between the revenue from sale
of goods and the fair value of the award credits. the
consideration received or receivable after deduction of
the portion attributable to the fair value of the award
credits is recognized as revenue, the portion of the fair
value of the award credits is recognized as deferred

income.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

N EESTBORME A5 (E)
19. Revenue (Continued) 19 ~ KA (&)

19.1 BRHEERA (&)

19.1 Revenue from sales of goods (Continued)

When a customer redeems the award credits, the
Group reclassifies the amount associated with the
credits redeemed from deferred income to revenue.
The amount of revenue recognized is based on the
number of award credits that have been redeemed in

exchange for awards, relative to the total number of

EPABMBERENR  AEEE
JREH A R Yo 2k ) B P 3 375 23 4R
RO ERRRA - RSN
B BB DATR S M P i SR ER AR B Y
D BEIE TR R AN
BIRTE D BB L ) R B AT B

award credits expected to be redeemed. TE e
19.2 Revenue from rendering of services 19.2 IR HEHEWA

When the amount of revenue from rendering of services
can be reliably measured, the associated economic
benefits probably flow into the Group, the stage of
completion of the transaction can be measured reliably
and the costs incurred and to be incurred for the
transaction can be measured reliably, the revenue from

rendering of services is recognized.

Where the outcome cannot be estimated reliably,
revenues are recognized to the extent of the costs
incurred that are expected to be compensated, and
the service costs incurred are regarded as the current
cost; if the service costs incurred are not compensated

as anticipated, no revenue is recognized.

Revenue from service of the Group mainly includes the
promotional activities. When the various services have
been provided and related economic benefit probably
flow into the enterprise, revenue from provision of

service is recognized.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20. Government grants

21.

Government grants are transfers of monetary assets and
non-monetary assets from the government to the Group at
no consideration except for any capital contribution from
the government as an investor. Government grants include
government grants related to assets and government grants
related to income. If a government grant is a transfer of
a monetary asset, it is measured at amounts received or
receivable. If a government grant is a transfer of a non-
monetary asset, it is measured at fair value. If no reliable fair
value is available, the grant is measured at nominal amount

and charged to profit or loss.

A government grant related to assets is recognized as
deferred income and evenly allocated to the profit or
loss for the period over the useful life of related assets.
For a government grant related to income, if the grant is
a compensation for related expenses and losses to be
incurred in subsequent periods, the grant is recognized as
deferred income and charged in the profit or loss over the
period in which the related costs are recognized; if the grant
is a compensation for related expenses and losses already
incurred, the grant is recognized immediately in profit or loss

for the current period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

21.1 Current income taxes

At the balance sheet date, current income tax
liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be paid
(or recovered) according to the requirements of tax
laws. The taxable income used for calculation of
current income tax is calculated based on the current
period adjusted taxable profit in compliance with the

regulation of taxation law.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

 EERHBEARHEH ()

1 EEFRBHREE ELERSHAR

[ 4=
7=

21. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

N

(Continued)

2.2 BEFEHEERBELSHERE

21.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

For temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of certain assets or liabilities and their tax
base, or between the carrying amount of those items
that are not recognized as assets or liabilities and their
tax base that can be determined according to tax laws,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized using

the balance sheet liability method.

For taxable temporary difference which is related
to the initial recognition of goodwill and the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither accounting profits
or taxable income (or deductible losses), a deferred
tax liability is not recognized. In addition, for taxable
temporary difference arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the Group
shall recognize a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary difference except to the extent that the
Group is able to control the timing of reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

1 EEFBBEE ELEFMBHAE

(Continued) (%)

21.2 BN EEREEFEHEE

21.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

For deductible temporary difference which is related
to the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit or taxable income (or deductible
losses), a deferred tax asset is not recognized. In
addition, for deductible temporary difference arising
from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, the Group shall recognize a deferred tax
asset for other deductible temporary difference to
the extent that it is probable that taxable income will
be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be deducted except to the extent that
it is not probable that the temporary difference will
reverse in the foreseeable future or taxable profit will
not be available against which the temporary difference

can be utilized.

For deductible losses and tax credits that can be
carried forward, deferred tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible losses

and tax credits can be deducted.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEESREMEER(E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 1 EEFBEHEE ELEFEHAR
(Continued) (#&)
21.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities N2 BB EEREZFSHER
(Continued) (%)
At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and BEBEBERB  HRELEMER
liabilities are measured at the tax rates, according to BEMEEMBHEBE  REM
tax laws, that are expected to apply in the period in ERT  RRBHKEABEE
which the asset is realized or the liability is settled. B ERRAERRNERR KT
g .
At the balance sheet date, the carrying amount of BEEAGBRA  HELEMEH
deferred tax assets is reviewed and reduced if it is no EEMNREEEETER MR
longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be RIRR ] B RIS 2 S RN TR
available in the future to allow the benefit of deferred FriS g AR REFT S B EN
tax assets to be deducted. Such reduction in amount Ma - ADREELEFREHEER
is reversed when it is probable that sufficient taxable REEE TERUEESEHN
income is available. RN FTISRER - WA SET
LABE[A] o
21.3 Income tax 21.3 FiRHER
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. FrigBi & A eEs HmEHRL
FRig®i »
Income tax is recognized as an income or an expense MRiER AEMER S WS EERTA
and included in the income statement for the current REREENR S MEBERENE
period, except to the extent that the current income tax SRMBELEMEHF ARMERE
related to a transaction or events which is recognized Wi s - ARBESH
under other comprehensive income or directly EANBELEMSHAZEENERRA
recorded in equity, deferred tax recorded under other BEIN - EHREHASHAET
comprehensive income or equity, and deferred tax e & Ak lasst A & B -

arises from a business combination that have impact

on the carrying value of goodwill.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 21V EEFBHEE EEFEHREE

(Continued) (&)

21.4 FFig# a9 18 85

21.4 Offsetting of income taxes

When the Group has a legal right to settle on a net
basis and intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, current tax assets and current tax lia-

bilities are offset and presented on a net basis.

When the Group has a legal right to settle current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, and deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis or to realize the assets and
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities
are expected to be reversed, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset and presented on a net

basis.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND EEETEEMEHER(E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

22. Lease 22 &
Finance leases are the leases in which substantially all the MENEATEE TR THEAEMAE
risks and rewards of asset ownership are transferred, the EENEBEBMKMOEE - EirE

BRI - AT ER - A
HENIMEMBEEREEHE -

ownership will be transferred or may not be transferred

eventually. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

221 FEEERBRBACHBEHEFE
¥
KERENHe I NEREHNK
EEBERERETAREEEK
AL EHER - VHRERER
AEHEBEZ - XKAHERERE

are charged to profit or loss for the period. Contingent ERETAE BER o

22.1 The Group as lessee under operating leases

Operating lease payments are recognized on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the lease, and are either
included in the cost of related asset or charged to

profit or loss for the period. Initial direct costs incurred

rents are charged to profit or loss in the period in

which they are actually incurred.

222 FEEERHBATHBEHEF

22.2 The Group as lessor under operating leases

e

Rental income from operating leases is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs with more than an
insignificant amount are capitalized when incurred, and
are recognized in profit or loss on the same basis as
rental income over the lease term. Other initial direct
costs with an insignificant amount are charged to
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the

period in which they actually arise.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETTHREMER AR E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23 - EXEFHHE ML

23. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
the Group is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of items in the
financial statements that cannot be measured accurately,
due to the internal uncertainty of the operating activities.
These judgments, estimates and assumptions are based on
historical experiences of the Group’s management as well
as other factors that are considered to be relevant. These
judgments, estimates and assumptions affect the reporting
amounts of the income, expenses, assets and liabilities as
well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the balance
sheet date. However, actual results due to the uncertainty
of these estimates possibly vary from the current estimates
made by the Group management and therefore lead to
significant adjustments of carrying amounts of assets or

liabilities which will be affected in the future.

The Group regularly reviews the aforesaid judgments,
estimates and assumptions on the basis of continuous
operation. Where the changes in accounting estimates only
impact the current period, the impact shall be recognized
during the current period; where such changes impact
both the current and future periods, the impact shall be
confirmed during the current and future periods when such

changes occur.

The significant areas where the Group is required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions regarding financial

statement items are listed as follows:

(1) Operating lease -as the lessor

The Group had contract on the investment properties.
The Group retains all the significant risks and rewards
according to the lease contract and thus accounts for
the operating lease.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

(Continued)

&)

3

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests whether the goodwill is impaired
at least annually. This requires the evaluation of the
present value of the future cash flows on the groups
of assets or group of assets with allocated goodwill.
Upon the evaluation of the present value, the Group
should evaluate the future cash flows of the group
of assets or groups of assets using the appropriate
discounted rate. When the actual cash flows are lower
than the predicted cash flows, there might be material

impairment.

Provision for inventory impairment based on the

net realizable value

The Group recognizes provision for inventory
impairment according to the net realizable value of
the inventory. Provision for inventory impairment is
required to be recognized when there is sign showing
that the net realizable value is lower than cost. The
Group will reevaluate whether the inventory is obsolete
and slow-moving, and the net realizable value is
lower than the cost at each year end. If the result of
new estimation differs from current estimation, such
difference will impact the book value of inventory for

the corresponding period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

(Continued)

(4)

(5)

Provision for bad debt of receivables

The Group recognizes provision for bad debts
according to the management’s judgement on re-
coverability of receivables. When there is sign
showing that a the recoverable amount is lower than
its book value, provision for bad debts is required
to be recognized. The management will conduct the
revaluation at each year end. If the result of new
estimation differs from current estimation, such dif-

ference will impact the book value of receivables for

the corresponding period.

Depreciation

The Group accounts for the depreciation on straight-
line basis in the predictable useful life after considering
the residual value. The Group reviews the predictable
useful life to calculate the amount of depreciation in
the reporting period. The Group estimates the useful
life of fixed assets based on experience of actual
useful life of fixed asset of similar nature and function.
Significant changes relating to the estimation will result

in adjustment of depreciation in future periods.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

(Continued)

(6)

(7)

Deferred tax assets

At the balance sheet date, the Group will assess
whether the recognition of the deferred tax assets will
be made. A deferred tax asset should be recognized
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences or unused tax losses can be utilized and
the Group should make appropriate estimates and
judgments when considering whether there will be
enough taxable profit. Deferred tax assets should be
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled. If the actual earnings accrued in the future
is more than estimates, or the actual tax rate is higher
than estimates, such deferred tax asset shall be
recognized in the consolidated income statement in the

six months in which they are incurred.

Credits system for customers

Sales of goods that result in award credits for
customers, under the Group’s customer loyalty pro-
gramme, are accounted for as multiple element revenue
transactions and the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable is allocated between the goods
sold and the award credits granted. The consideration
allocated to the award credits is measured by reference
to their fair value. Such consideration is not recognized
as revenue at the time of the initial sale transaction but
is deferred and recognized as revenue when the award
credits are redeemed and the Group’s obligations have

been fulfilled.
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V. TAXATION HIE

1 TEFHERBER

1. Major taxes and tax rates

Tax types Tax basis Tax rate%
HnE B IE Ei7ReS
Value-added tax Note 1 17%/13%/11%/6%
BER A1
Business tax Taxable sales subject to business tax 5%/3%
B TN
Consumption tax Taxable sales subject to consumption tax 5%
JHE BB ETIA
City construction and Value-added tax, business tax and

maintenance tax consumption tax 5%/7%
YR T A SR AR A &S MEE T
Education surcharge Value-added tax, business tax and consumption tax 3%/4%
HE B M FEAZ AT
Local education surcharge Value-added tax, business tax and consumption tax 2%
7720 E BT N SR
Corporate income tax Taxable income 25%
REMEH JEATH PS5
Note 1: The value-added tax payable is the residual value of the 1 EAVEET R HIES R o I IER

BHERE - SRR BRIREARTUERE
AHEMNEEREAE -

output value-added tax after deduction of input value-added
tax. The output value-added tax is computed on a basis of

sales resolved by relevant tax laws.

2. Tax incentives and approvals 2 BBREERIX

HRIR BT BB I B R B 5 48 /2008 611
A20 B WM EK AR BHZER EMB
RESBROEER DN IEHEHT)
BimANEB6IE(—)ETERMEE - A&
B S S BB SR 0 B E R AR N
IELMMIFABEHENDEMSEH -

According to the Circular of the paragraph 86, item1, point
7, the scope of the preferential policy of primary processing
of agricultural products relating to the business tax issued
by the Ministry of Finance, State Administration of Taxation
on November 20, 2008, the Group obtained the right of
exemption of relevant income tax of the primarily processed

agricultural products in the fresh logistics center.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X * &t HREBEA TR

All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated. PREBEFREIN RIERNSBEEMHAARKE
T e
1. Cash and bank balances 1. EES

2015.12.31 2014.12.31

—E-HF —E O
ltem 1HH +=A=+—-H | +=ZA=1+—H
Cash on hand EFRE 23,271,277 28,868,213
Cash in bank RITIER 550,897,162 492,753,094
Other cash and bank balances (Note 1) Efi&#& & (551) 144,155,266 15,217,794
Total i 718,323,705 536,839,101
Including: Overseas deposits (Note 2)  Er : 7RI BINFIBLE 5 (552) 4,786,079 =

Note 1: As at December 31, 2015, the Group’s margin deposits 51 R2015%F 128310 - AEEMATEE

with use restrictions was RMB138,005,266(December SZERFHOBEBEREFSTRABARE

31,2014: RMB15,217,794), and details were referred to 138,005,266 C(2014F12831H : A

Note (VI) 18 Notes payable. The credit margin deposits R#15,217,7947) * 2 R WX

amounted to RMBB6,150,000. 18 - BNERE - EAERILERS

AR #6,150,0007T ©

Note 2: The overseas deposits were the deposits of Chaopi P2 ¢ FRAER AN RIT I R AR B A
Maolisheng (Hongkong) Company Limited in The Hongkong (BB)BRARIFHNREBEZRT -

and Shanghai Bank Corporation Limited.
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All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIz4B55) » £EEE N BARKET)

il

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)
2. Accounts receivable 2 - FEWERFK
(1) December 31, 2015 (1) 2015%12H31H
Presentation of accounts receivable by category: FEUSBR TR D FE 4 TR -
2015.12.31
“E-IET-A=t-A
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
FESE RRER
Rate Net book
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount (%) value
Category LoF] k2] HA(%) S8 HRIA) FAEE
Recelvables that are individually significant and ¥4 BEXT EBHETE
for which bad debt provision is BRI
assessed individually S S = - -
Receivables for which bad debt provision is REREREHAAHREE
assessed by groups acoording to EENENE
credit risk characteristics 1,824,268,380 100 - - 1,824,268,380
Recelvables that are not individually significant SR EAEAEEBHREE
but for which the bad debt provision is EENENE
assessed individually 1,753,916 - 1,753,916 100 -
Total At 1,826,022,296 100 1,753,916 1,824,268,380
Presentation of accounts receivable according to aging FEUTBR R E A UL A TR B BRRETE A
analysis on the basis of the date when revenue is BRERIAT ¢
recognized:
2015.12.31
—E-HF+=H=+—H
Carrying Proportion Bad debt Net book
amount (%) provision value
Aging BRI k] el (%) HREE FREEE
Within 1 year 1FELAA 1,631,405,426 89 - 1,631,405,426
1-2 years 1Z24F 112,839,639 6 - 112,839,639
2-3 years 2E3F 23,315 S o 23,315
3-4 years 3R44F 1,753,916 - 1,753,916 -
4-5 years 455 - = _ _
Over 5 years 59 LA E 80,000,000 ) - 80,000,000
Total SN 1,826,022,296 100 1,753,916 1,824,268,380
2015 &3

IERREEREEERRNARAT
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 2015%12831H IFF /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (BR435Ia855) » £EEE [ BARKT)

il

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS N » 8B BRREETEE)
(Continued)
2. Accounts receivable (Continued) 2 - FEWERFR(E)
(1) December 31, 2015 (Continued) (1) 2015%128318 (%)

Receivables that are not individually significant but for HREESEIENBEFERE

which the bad debt provision is assessed individually: BREER EUERTX ¢
Content of accounts Bad debt
receivable Amount provision Rate(%) Reason
JEWERRAR R TH BAEE HRESE  FHRLSI(%) EH
Liu Liangguo 1,753,916 1,753,916 100 Controversial debts which
are unlikely to recover
2556 BERAHXREEREDT
W B BT BE MR K
Reversals in the current year: AREERIMBERAOT
Accumulated
bad debt
provision
prior to
Basis of recognizing reversals
Content of accounts Reversal the previously bad LR Amount of
receivable reasons debt provision BT RAEER reversals
BURERARE BEHREAE BERERERNKE EHELH EHESH
Liu Liangguo Partially recovered Controversial debts which
are unlikely to recover 1,890,579 136,663
2556 B 285 Bl BRSNS RREEREE N
if 45 [B1 AT B 14N K
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIz4B55) » £EEE N BARKET)

1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /~ 8B BRREEZTE(E)
(Continued)
2. Accounts receivable (Continued) 2 EWERFK(E)

(2) 2014%12H31H

FEW AR R D JAIREE

(2) December 31,2014
Presentation of accounts receivable by category:

2014.12.31
“E-BEt-A=t-R

Carrying amount Bad debt provision
BEAE SRER
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) Nt book value
Category i 8 551%) 28 EHRILAIC) BAER
Recelvables that are indiiduall signficant and for ~ BEAEEAY EB:HTEE
which bad debt provision is assessed individually — EEHEIFIE - - _ - _
Receivables for which bad debt provision is RERERREAAHREE
assessed by groups according to credit BEOEWZE
risk characteristics 1,674,135,328 100 - - 1,674,135,328
Receivables that are not individually significant EECETEAEEEHRER
but for which the bad debt provision is EENRIGE
assessed individually 1,890,679 = 1,890,579 100 =
Total At 1,676,025,907 100 1,890,579 1,674,135,328
Presentation of accounts receivable according to aging R R RER IR ATER A TR
analysis on the basis of the date when revenue is BRERINT -
recognized:
2014.12.31
—F-NF+=-_A=+—H
Carrying Bad debt Net book
amount Proportion(%) p*rovi\sion value
Aging ARER iy | EE151(%) IR BREEE
Within 1 year 1F AR 1,567,848,338 92 - 1,567,848,338
1-2 years 13229 26,286,990 2 - 26,286,990
2-3 years 2FE34F 1,890,579 1 1,890,579 -
4-5 years 4ZB5F 80,000,000 (9 - 80,000,000
Total Sl 1,676,025,907 100 1,890,579 1,674,135,328
Receivables that are not individually significant but for HREESEINENBEEIRE
which the bad debt provision is assessed individually: BRZEE R ER X
Content of Bad debt
accounts receivable Amount provision Rate(%) Reason
JEWRF AR AREFARE EERSH FHRLEBI(%) FEA
Liu Liangguo 1,890,579 1,890,579 100 Controversial debts which are
unlikely to recover
g pge B A S KRB R T
I E AT RE MK
2015 &3

IERREEREEERRNARAT
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 2015%12831H IFF /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (BR435Ia855) » £EEE [ BARKT)

1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

N AHMBERERABERE)

2 - BWERR(E)

2. Accounts receivable (Continued)
(3) BXRTGEERARGERI TSN
FEWRERF 1SR
2015%F12H31H

(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of

accounts receivable

December 31, 2015

Proportion of

the amount
to the total Closing
accounts balance of
receivable bad debt
Relationship with (%) provision
Name of entity the Group Amount  Aging RS BRER
eSS HASERE ¢ ER BEHLA(%) HAeE
Beiing Wu-mart Store Co., Ltd.("Wu-mart’) Independent third party 482,101,773 Within 2 years 26 -
ERMEGARTARAR (A TERE 1£)) BUE=H 2EHR
Beijiing Jingdong Century Trade Co., Ltd. (“Jingdong”) Independent third party 127,849,922 Within 1 year 7 -
IRRRELESERAR A THE RR)) Bug=H 1EAR
Shoulian Group Co., Ltd. (“Shoulian Group”) Independent third party 80,000,000  Over 5 years 4 -
FREMEEEEARAR (UTHRE AHEE]) BUEZH 58N
Beijing Hualian Comprehensive Supermarket Co., Ltd. (*Hualian”)  Independent third party 74,356,987 Within 1 year 4 -
ERERGARTRAERA A THR ) BIE=H 1ER
Vipshop (China) Holdings Limited (*Vipshop’) Independent third party 66,741,921 Within 2 years 4 -
ERg(PE)ERAF A THRE ERE]) Big=H 2EHA
Total 830,050,603 45 -
&t
December 31, 2014 2014%12A31H
Proportion of
the amount
to the total Closing
accounts balance of
receivable bad debt
(%) provision
Name of entity Relationship with the Group Amount  Aging ThREES: SHRER
B AR HAZERK i BEALLHI%) BReE
Wu-mart Independent third party 466,602,902 Within 2 years 28 -
S BiE=H 2ELIA
Shoulian Group Independent third party 80,000,000  4-5 years B -
]3] BUE=H 4-5F
Beijing Carrefour Commercial Co., Ltd. (‘Carrefour’) Independent third party 77,005,544 Within 1 year 5 -
FRFEREZARLFATHR FLE) BUE=H 1ER
C.P Lotus Co., Ltd. (‘Lotus”) Independent third party 76,375,921 Within 2 years 5 -
IRSMETERETERRE (U TR 5787 BU%E=h 2EHR
Hualian Independent third party 71,213,686 Within 1 year 4 -
i BUE=H 15AR
Total 771,198,053 47 -
&t
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 2015%12831H IFF /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIz4B55) » £EEE N BARKET)

1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < 8B EHREETE (2
(Continued)

2. Accounts receivable (Continued) 2~ EWIRR(E)

(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of

(3) BRI EFEARI KR BRI BB

accounts receivable (Continued)

Presentation of aging analysis of accounts receivable

due from Shoulian Group:

FEEWRR 157 (8)
LEMEENRUARKARENT

2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E-IfF —TF
Aging AR +=-HA=+—H +=Z—A=+—8H
4-5 years 4B - 80,000,000
Over 5 years 5F A 80,000,000 -
Total =1 80,000,000 80,000,000

On December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the
Group had an amount of RMB80,000,000 due from
Shoulian Group which belonged to accounts receivable
that are individually significant, and it was already
overdue more than 3 months. In the opinion of the
directors, no impairment is necessary on December
31, 2015, and December 31, 2014 in view of the
following consideration: the accounts receivable bear
interest at the rate stated below and all the interest
has been received in full. Moreover, certain buildings
and land use rights with a total value of not less than
the overdue accounts receivable have been pledged
in favor of the Company, so there is no need for

impairment to be made.

The Group normally allows a credit period of no more
than 90 days to its customers with a longer credit
period of 180 days granted to its major customers.
Accounts receivable bear no interest except the
amount due from Shoulian which bears interest at 1 to

5 year loan rate.

#2015F12 4318 k2014512 A
318 ' BEESEEAMEIKIRK
PEEBEENEEETEAA
R #80,000,0007T + B¥HE @ HA3
EAKE - B2015F128318 &
2014%12A318 » ARAEER
REREZEEAERRTIZR
TR E R AT B B R B 2RI
B - BREBHSENARAAEEBET
R E i HAFE N BR AR B B 7
T E RREE R IR - TE

BiHREERR -

FEW R ERBBERIOR « £
BEFALUERZE180K - By
BEENEREZIRBIT—ERF
HERFET S EZSHEREF
2 EBUCEI SN - E R RE U BR TR

e -

2015 &R
IR RREEEEERNDERAR
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All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (BR435Ia855) » £EEE [ BARKT)

II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /< - &ffiiHREETE (9

(Continued)
2. Accounts receivable (Continued) 2~ EWIRF(Z)
(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of (3) BXRTGEERARGERI TSN

accounts receivable (Continued) FEW R &S (B)
On December 31, 2015, the total accounts R2015F 128318 « HYE * K
receivable due from Wu-mart, Carrefour, Lotus, %I - HYEI - L FOKERBT
Yonghui Superstores Co. Ltd., Jingdong, Jumei BRAR K REEREXER
International Holdings Limited, Vipshop, and Lefeng BHEBERAR - MoE - 2£8( L
(Shanghai) Information Technology Company Limited )15 BEMT AR A A/ FEBER K

amounted to RMB354,891,600 (December 31, 2014:
RMB458,975,301) were limited by being factored to

A7 AR ¥354,891,6007T(2014
F12H318 : AR%458,975,301
TORMEHE  RAUHBBRER
PREBRITERMZ BIR G

secure certain bank loans of the Group.

Pursuant to the factoring agreement between the
Group and HSBC, HSBC provides a bank loan for
amount of not exceeding 70% of accounts receivable
factoring to the Group. HSBC collected the entire
amount of accounts receivable and is only required
to pay the Group any amount it collects in excess of
the loan amount. As the Group has not transferred
specifically identifiable cash flows, fully proportionate
share of all or part of the cash flows or part of
specifically identifiable cash flows, the Group cannot
apply the derecognition model to part of the factored

accounts receivable.

Since factored accounts receivable is on full recourses
basis, the Group has not transferred the significant
risks and rewards relating of these receivables, it
continues to recognize the receivables and has
recognized the cash received from the bank as

accounts receivable secured loan (See Note (VI) 17).

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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BEAEEEEQRITEZNRE
B ELRITMAEERHET
78 38 FE U5 AR SR IR 3R € B 70% 1Y 3R
TER o B RITWEUE WAR K
2HeE  ERAEEXFHEA
BERSENRIE - AREERER
BYRRESREPETE - AT HRH0
D bAREB2TREREN —
ELAISBEEREREE « ATk
RBAB—FELLH - Bt - A&
BT TIR A FE R BR B
KIETERBLY o

B

RETHZRENEEERES
BRE AEEYTRBEZERE
Yo B 3R AT ) KRR A ¥R
B Rt EEERERER X
HEAEERTT I B B0 3R 2 HER A W BR
SR E (ML ~ 17) ©
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < 8B EHREETE (2
(Continued)

2.

3.

Accounts receivable (Continued)

accounts receivable (Continued)

2 EBWRMR(E)

(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of

FEEWRR 157 (8)

(3) BRFTEHENRKRGENTEN

Factoring accounts receivable

on full recourses basis

(1) Presentation of prepayments according to aging

(1) BENFBLZEEIIT

BERENEWRRRRE
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—Z-hf —TUeF
Content of accounts receivable +=A=+—-H| +tZA=+—H
Carrying amount of transferred assets EREENREERE 354,891,600 458,975,301
Carrying amount of related liabilities B ENERAEE 107,814,886 190,177,877
Net book value R 247,076,714 268,797,424
Prepayments 3 FEMNNE

IERREEREEERRNARAT

analysis
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E-Ef+-A=t-H —E-MET-A=1—H

Amount  Proportion(%) Amount  Proportion(%)
Aging BRER cx] Lt (%) -} b 191l(%)
Within 1 year 1ELAA 1,366,408,098 100 649,633,624 100
Total CH) 1,366,408,098 100 649,633,624 100

2015 3§
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /< - &ffiiHREETE (9

(Continued)
3. Prepayments (Continued) 3 EMNRIEB)
(2) Top five entities with the largest balances of (2) EANHREERHARGEIEEN
prepayments FANFIER
December 31, 2015 2015612A31H
Relationship with
Name of entity the Group Amount Aging Unsettled reason
EER RASEEE 8 R KEERE
Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Co. Ltd. Independent third party 357,772,088 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
HELRREGHEAREEAT BUE=H 1A ARG
Sichuan Yibin Wuliangye Group Import and Export Co. Ltd.  Independent third party 299,999,540 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
MIEEELRASEELOBRAR BUE=H 15U HAMEIED
Shanghai Nestle Products Services Co. Ltd. Independent third party 67,202,859 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
FEREERREERAR BUE=) 1ELR WARMEIED
Enjoy Trading and Development (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. Independent third party 63,916,530 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
REBHER(VINERRA BUE=H (BN HAKEIEY
Beijing Red Bull Vitamin Drink Co. Ltd. Independent third party 26,995,081 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
ERTAG B R RRERRERT BUE=H 155 HAMEIED
Total 815,886,098
At
December 31, 2014 2014%12831H
Relationship with
Name of entity the Group Amount Aging Unsettled reason
BfHHE EREERE o R FEERA
Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Co. Ltd. Independent third party 157,266,956 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
HENERERHEEREALT BUE=H 1EUR HAKEIEY
Shanghai Nestle Products Services Co. Ltd. Independent third party 68,102,734 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
EERERREERAT BUE=H [EN ARG EY
Nivea(Shanghai) Co. Ltd. Independent third party 39,349,942 Within 1 year ~ Haven't received goods
T8 BRAR BUE=F 1EIAR MARYEEY
Maotai Liquor (Guizhou Renhuai) Marketing Co. Ltd. Independent third party 27,835,130 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
BIEZ & (BMCE) EHERAA BUE=H 15U HAMEIED
Beijing Creative Hall Trading Co. Ltd. Independent third party 21,744,544 Within 1 year ~ Haven't received goods
HREIEERERRAT BUE=) [ENS WARMEIED
Total 314,299,306
ait
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /<

(Continued)

4. Other receivables

(1) December 31, 2015

1y

RIS RaR B R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 2015F12H31HILF&E

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIz4B55) » £EEE N BARKET)

Presentation of other receivables by category:

4 -~

(1)

B BBRRABERE)

H b FE KK

2015128318

HAtb YR 7 AR -

2015.12.31
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
RHSE BRER
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) Net book value

Category Bl kxS EE (%) ®8  HHRHA%) RAEE
Other receivables that are individually EEHEATEERE

significant and for which bad debt FERNERER

provision is assessed individually 6,212,250 4 4,224,750 68 1,987,500
Other receivables for which bad debt RERRRFAEAHER

provision s assessed by groups FERNEMERT

according to credit risk characteristics 144,268,242 95 - - 144,268,242
Other receivables that are not individually ~ BB BT EX(EEH:TR

significant but for which the bad debt BRERHEBREL

provision is assessed individually 2,051,300 1 1,171,772 57 879,528
Total A3 152,531,792 100 5,396,522 147,135,270

Presentation of other receivables according to aging

H YR ARER T

analysis:
2015.12.31
Bad debt

Carrying amount Proportion(%) provision  Net book value
Aging iR kX E (%) BREE REEE
Within 1 year 1ELAR 125,087,452 82 - 125,087,452
1-2 years 122F 19,180,790 13 - 19,180,790
3-4 years 3R4F 2,051,300 1 1,171,772 879,528
Over 5 years 5ELAE 6,212,250 4 4,224,750 1,987,500
Total At 152,531,792 100 5,396,522 147,135,270

Other receivables that are individually significant but for

which the bad debt provision is assessed individually:

Content of other receivables

EftRUF AR

Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co. Ltd.

EREERRRETEERAR

Carrying
amount

RESE
6,212,250

Bad debt

provision Rate(%)
BREEE  HREH(%)

4,224,750 68

HAREESREAY EBHBER

Y4 A HL b LSRR -
Reason
b

Full bad debt provision for the part unrecovered,
according to the agreement

BEETHE - SRREBFHEERER

2015 &R
IR RREEEEERNDERAR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 2015%12831H IFF /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (BR435Ia855) » £EEE [ BARKT)

II/

VI.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

4. Other receivables (Continued)

(1) December 31, 2015 (Continued) (1)
Other receivables that are not individually significant
but for which the bad debt provision is assessed
individually:

Carrying Bad debt

Content of other receivables amount provision . Rate(%)
A EUSHAE RESE BReE  HREAI%)
Beijin Ba|||tongdaEcommerce Co. Ltd. 2,061,300 1,171,772 57

ERBFREREERAR

N AHMBERERABERE)

4~ EAbFEWRK(E)

2015612531 H ()

HARERGENENEEEARE
RIS RO EL b PR UK -

Reason
B

Full bad debt provision for the part unable to
recover, pursuant to the judgment awarded
by the court o

BRER IR - SREREEHHRRRER

There is no reversal of other receivables in the current

year.

AN O] SRR

(2) December 31, 2014 (2) 2014%F12H31H
Presentation of other receivables by category: H YR FEH R R
2014.12.31
—F-MFt-A=1-A
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
RHSE ZhRER
’ Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) Net book value
Category LR £8 £ 51%) S8 FHRILAI) FREE
Other receivables that are individually BESES AU EBRE
significant and for which bad debt REBHEEL
provision is assessed individually R 6,549,750 5 4,224,750 65 2,325,000
Other receivables for which bad debt RERRREACHRE
provision is assessed by groups REBNEENG
according to credit risk characteristics . 128847388 94 = - 128,847,388
Other receivables that are not individually ~ BB BAEAAEBHIES
significant but for which the bad debt RGN EIN
provision is assessed individually. 2,061,300 1 1,171,772 57 879,628
Total At 137,448,438 100 5,396,522 132,051,916
Presentation of other receivables according to aging H b EUWGRERERR IO T -
analysis:
2014.12.31
“E-RET-A=T-H
) Carrying amount Proportion(%)  Bad debt prov\swon Net book value
Aging & Eai 4 f71(%) BRER RHER
Within 1 year 1EA 128,847,388 % - 128,847,388
2-3 years ZISE 2,051,300 1 1,171,772 879,528
4-5 years 4Z5F 6,549,750 5 4,224,750 2,325,000
Total &t 137,448,438 100 5,396,522 132,061,916
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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II/

RIS RaR B R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 2015%12831H IFF /&
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VL. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

4.

Other receivables (Continued)

(2) December 31, 2014 (Continued)

Other receivables that are individually significant but for

which the bad debt provision is assessed individually:

Content of other receivables

R GAATS

Beumg Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co. Ltd.

IREEBRYETHARD

Carrying
amount

RENE

6,549,750

Bad debt
provision

4,224,750

S BT BHRERERE)

4~ HEWR(E

(2) 2014%412H31H ()

HRBRSBEAL EFAHBER
BB E M RYK

Rate(%) Reason

sHEDI%)  EA

65  Full bad debt provision for the part unrecovered,
according to the agreement

BEENHE - HRREBAHRERER

Other receivables that are not individually significant

but for which the bad debt provision is assessed

individually:

Content of other receivables

O GAATS

Beijing Ballitongda E-commerce Co. Ltd.
ERANBEHEERAR

Carrying
amount

RERE

2,061,300

Bad debt
provision

1,171,772

MARBESEINENEERTIRE

BREFRE MUK -
Rate(%) Reason

sHEOI%)  EA

57 Full bad debt provision for the part unable
to recover, pursuant to the judgment
awarded by the court

BEERAR - BRERDHDHRERER

Reversals in the current year:

Content of other receivables

EiEUHAE

Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale
Market Co. Ltd.
TRERERETEERAR

Reversal reasons

#omRR

Partially recovered

A EK

AEGRMERNAT -

Accumulated
bad debt
provision prior
to reversals

Basis of recognizing the EEIEE Amount of
previously bad debt provision B AR AR reversals
e IR BR R KR EESHE BESE
Controversial debts which 6,687,500 2,462,750

are unlikely to recover
EBABRIEESE

EEEEA:ZIN

2015 &3
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /< - &ffiiHREETE (9

(Continued)
4. Other receivables (Continued) 4~ HiEWR(E)

(3) Presentation of other receivables by nature (3) EREMEIREMERL
Nature of other receivables H it eI E 2015.12.31 2014.12.31
Receivables of promotional activities FEWRSHE R 122,116,843 112,940,121
Receivables of deposit ERRES LHE 5,851,379 6,060,666
Others Eifb 19,167,048 13,051,129
Total AFr 147,135,270 132,051,916

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other (4) BEXRFGEHEENRRGHEINAEER
receivables e EYL %

December 31, 2015 2015%12H31H
Proportion
of the amount
to the Closing
total other balance of
receivables (%) bad debt
Closing REMERE provision
Company name Nature of other receivables balance  Aging kb BREE
BUER REME HAeE KR (%) HRHE
Guangdong Jingxing Health Receivables of 10,053,983 Within 1 year 7 -
Products Co. Ltd. promotional activities 1ELA
BERRAGEARERAT EY{REER
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Receivables of 6,212,250  Over 5 years 4 4,224,750
Market Co. Ltd. prepaid rent 5 F
IREEERETRERAR B
Reckitt Benckiser (China) Co. Ltd. Receivables of 4,099,103 Within 1 year 3 -
FI2ERIL(RE)ERAF promotional activities TER
EhEHER
Penglai COFCO Food Co. Ltd. Receivables of 3,969,410 Within 1 year 3 -
PRERRERERAR promotional activities 1EHUR
e REAER
Luzhou Laojiao Northern Wine Co. Ltd. Receivables of 3,771,446 1-2 years 3 -
BEMEEEFEHELBERNERAR promotional activities 1526
EREHER
Total 28,106,192 20 4,224,750
At
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < 8B EHREETE (2
(Continued)

4. Other receivables (Continued) 4~ HEWRKE)

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other

(4) BXAIEENH KRG EER
o IE R (1)

2014%12A31H

receivables (Continued)

December 31, 2014

Proportion
of the amount
to the Closing
total other balance of
receivables (%) bad debt
Nature of other Closing B E R provision
Company name recelvables balance  Aging BB RHRER
B AR TEHE HReE K (%) KBS
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Receivables of 6,549,750  4-5 years 5 4,224,750
Market Co. Ltd. - prepaid rent 4F5F
FREEAREETSERAR BNHE
Guangdong Jingxing Health Receivables of 5,409,461  Within 1 year 4 -
Products Co. Ltd. promotional activities TENUR
EXSEEEARERAT EAREE
Luzhou Laojiao Northern Wine Go. Ltd. Receivables of 3,771,446 Within 1 year 3 -
BEMEEERRHENEERNERAR promotional activities 1ELR
RREHER
Beijing Yang River Trade Co., Ltd. Receivables of 2,782,805  Within 1 year 2 -
ERFAEEERAR promgtgnal activities 1R
Chongqin% Langai Cosmetics Co., Lid. Receivables of 2280223 Within 1 year 2 -
BRI MR BRAR promotional activities 1EUR
EREHER
Total 20,793,685 16 4,224,750
ait
5. Inventories 5+ FH
(1) Presentation of inventories by category (1) FEHE
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
Carrying Net book Carrying Net book
amount Impairment value amount Impairment value
Item JEH REHE BLEER REEE FEBE BERERE REBE
Merchandise inventory B 1,565,318,067 1,666,282 1,563,651,785 | 1,476,760,332 1,265,828  1,475,494,504
Raw material R 9,895,253 - 9,895,253 8,391,954 - 8,391,954
Total = 1,575,213,320 1,666,282 1,573,547,038 | 1,485,152,286 1,265,828  1,483,886,458

2015612 4318 k2014512
318 - MANEAKEROTE -

As at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, no

inventories were pledged or guaranteed.

2015 &R
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /< - &ffiiHREETE (9

(Continued)
5. Inventories (Continued) 5 BFE(&
(2) Impairment allowance of inventories (2) HFEKRBERE
For the year ended at December 31, 2015 2015 F
2015.1.1 2015.12.31
—E-1E Provision  Decrease in the current year —E-1E
ltem REEE —A—H RERE TERD +=ZA=+-H
Reversal Written-off
Hp B
Merchandise inventory EFEm 1,265,828 400,454 - - 1,666,282
For the year ended at December 31, 2014 20145 E
2014.1.1 2014.12.31
—EF Provision  Decrease in the current year —T-pF
ltem FERER —A—H AERE AEFD +ZRA=+—AH
Reversal Written-off
&) i
Merchandise inventory EFEm 1,454,904 292,801 - 481,877 1,265,828
6. Other current assets 6 HMRBEE
ltem B A 2015.12.31 2014.12.31
Short-term investments (Note 1) EEHIRE (1) 70,000,000 135,000,000
Deductible input value-added tax FFIEFIEIER 137,569,970 113,351,192
Prepaid lease expenses FHESER 44,012,296 36,468,012
Prepaid heating expenses HEHREER 2,559,072 2,739,100
Other prepaid expenses (Note 2) HibF#ER(GE2) 1,729,816 2,219,335
Total A& 255,871,154 289,777,639
Note 1: On December 31, 2015, the Company held principal- 71 AARIK2015F12 831 H AL RIEE
guaranteed floating-income financial products of TRM AR DB ARNZE YR
RMB70,000,000 managed by Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd. with I Bf 2 n A R #70,000,0007T - H
annual yield 0% to 2.1%. The principal and interest of such FlLWHEB0%E2.1% ° K2016
short-term investments were fully recovered respectively on F1A4H - ZZEEHRECD2HK
January 4, 2016. =S
Note 2: Prepaid property fees, cleaning fees and security fees, etc. 2 EMEHREBEAIEREENME
are the primary expenses of other prepaid expenses. & - RRE  RLEBZE -
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < - &t HREETE (2

(Continued)
7. Available-for-sale financial assets 7 AHESREE
(1) Details of available-for-sale financial assets (1) AHRHEELEBEERRT
2015.12.31 2014,12.31
“E-RETZA=t-A “Z-BE+R=1+-A
Carrying Net book Cammying Net book
- amount  Impairment value amount  Impairment ~velue
ttem L BERE  AEEG  REEE | RERE ERE  REEE
Available-for-sale equity instrument THEERETA
Including: Measured by fair value (Note 1) 2 BALBEEN 3,854,000 - 3,854,000 | 4578000 - 4578000
Measured by cost (Note 2) ARG S 2,123,200 1,188,000 24935200 | 1,183,000 1,188,000 -
Total At 20,977,200 1,188,000 28,789,200 | 5766000 1,188,000 4,578,000
(2) Available-for-sale financial assets measured at fair (2) BABAABHEIENTHYHES
value at the end of period AEE
Available-for-sale equity instrument
AftHERRTA
o 2015.12.31 2014.12.31
Category ARHESHEELTE —E-1% —Z-mF
+=A=t-8| +-A=t-H
Cost of equity instrument (Note 1) BRI AMKAR(GE) 350,000 350,000
Fair value AnBEE 3,854,000 4,578,000
Accumulative amount of other Retet AR MES B EH
comprehensive income by fair value AnBEEEZYSE 3,504,000 4,228,000
Accrued amount of asset impairment BiRRESE S =
(3) Available-for-sale financial assets measured at cost 3) HAEBEKAFENTHRHESHE
at the end of period E
December 31, 2015 2015%12H31H
Carrying amount Provision for impairment of assets
RESE BEER
Increase in  Decrease in Increase in  Decrease in Share  Cash divi-
Opening ~ the current  the current Closing Opening ~ the current  the current Closing propor-  dend in the
Investee balance period period balance balance period period balance fion (%) period
EhRE
o ‘ ‘ BER Ay
BREER 2 fBED AEED E B ABgN xER) E fhiee)  BedA
Bejing Lianchao Commercial Co., Lid.
(Henchao Gormmercia) (Note 2]
FRBEEZARLT
(W TERERER (32 - 90 - 90 - - - - 15 -
Luoyang Chundu Group Limfted
(Luoyang Chundu) (Note 3)
HEEHERRAERLT
(W THERMABES] () 1,188,000 - - 1088000 1,188,000 - - 1188000 012 =
TAmaI 1188000 24,985,200 - 26123000 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000 -
ai

2015 &R
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

N AHMBERERABERE)

7 AHHESREEH)

7. Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
(3) HAERAFFAENATREESHE
E(B)
2014%12H31H

(3) Available-for-sale financial assets measured at cost

at the end of period (Continued)

December 31, 2014

Carrying amount Provision for impaiment of assets
FERE HEEE
Increase in  Decrease in Increase in  Decrease in Share  Cash divi-
Opening ~ the current  the current Closing Opening ~ the current  the current Closing propor- dend in
Investee balance period period balance balance period period balance tion (%]~ the period
EhiRE
BfiER x4
RREER 8 xEEn ABED 7 2 fBEm AEED S ) ReAH
Luoyang Chundu Group Limted
(Luoyang Chundu) (Note 3)
AREREEIARLT
(W THERIARES]) (53) 1,188,000 - - 1188000 1,188,000 - - 1188000 0.2 -
Total 1,188,000 - - 1188000 1,188,000 - - 1188000 -
&it
Note 1: Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company H1: ARBZFRAAARBER
subscribed for 100,000 legal person shares (RMB1 1993F 11 AUBKE: ARK
per share) of Shanxi Xinghuacun Fen Wine Factory 358 TR L A IER DB
Co., Ltd. (Shanxi Xinghuacun) for RMB350,000 in B BR AR A TERE LA
November 1993. In the same year, Shanxi Xinghuacun BIER)EABRI0ER(FK
was listed in Shanghai Stock Exchange. On May 18, HEARE1.007T) - LTS
2012, Shanxi Xinghuacun issued a stock dividend TERR1993F i HIBESFRSH
of 10 for 10 stocks based on the total shares as Fi BT o ILAABIEN 720125
at December 31, 2011 to all shareholders through 5818 B #2011 FEEA T A
the notice of 2011 annual general meeting. As at eRFENE - M2011F12A
December 31, 2015, Chaopi Trading possessed STEMBIRANAEE - M2
0.023% of its equity in total (December 31, 2014: A% B 1OMX 1O AT A » &1k
0.023%). In the current year ended at December 31, 2015128318 * BALHE
2015, the decrease in fair value, namely its market A LA TER A E A B 2R
value, of the Group's available-for-sale financial assets BE208 M - R2015F 12 431
was RMB724,000 (2014: increased by RMB718,000) B SitEmE LA H0.023%
and has been recognized into other comprehensive (20145128318 : 0.023%)
income (Note (V1) 33). ERRHE - R2015FEHDARE
B(MAEMSEE)ZH R
D AR #724,0007T(2014F
E : #IARK718,0007T) -
EFtAEMARE W - 2R
78 23830
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7. Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

(3) Available-for-sale financial assets measured at cost

at the end of period (Continued)

Note 2:

Note 3:

The registered capital of Lianchao Commercial was
RMB10,000,000. Including: In July 2015, the monetary
contribution of the Company was RMB24,935,200
which was composed of RMB1,500,000 of
registered capital and RMB23,435,200 of capital
reserves; the subscribed capital of the Shoulian
Group was RMB141,299,400 with building (No:
X-Beijing House Property Right Certificate Xing Zi
065778; location: Apartment 1 and Apartment 5,
No.6, Xihongmen Streest, Daxing District) and land
use right (No: BXGY[2011]00052; location: No.6,
Xihongmen Streest, Daxing District) which composed
of RMB8,500,000 of registered capital and capital
reserves RMB132,799,400.

Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
subscribed for 60,000 legal person shares (RMB1 per
share) of Luoyang Chundu for RMB1,188,000 in June
1993. On December 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014, Chaopi Trading possessed 0.12% of its equity.
As the deterioration of operating condition of Luoyang
Chundu, the Group took full provision for the long-
term equity investment whose recoverable amount
is less than the carrying amount and such decrease
expected not to be recovered in the foreseeable

future.

7

N AHUBBRRABERE)

AR ESREE (S

(3) HABRHEAFEBHNTHHESHE

E (%)

2

3

Bt iR 7 % 71 & A< % 1,000
BETARB - Hd: AR
AIR2015F7ANEBHE
2493528 T AR « H
150BTARBRIMER -
2,343 52B T RERRAE  &F
B E14,129.94 8 T A
R UEE(BE XRE
HEHTES778%  BE
AR - KEIR PRATPIRE 651 18
So@EREERERR : R}
HE 2011 ] 0005255
4% KEREBAPIEGH)
HE - HPgs08 T AEME
K 13,279.94B T AE AR

& o

AABZFRAGHBER
1993 F6 ANERES AR
#118.88 TRE XS FLE
ABR60BIR(GREEARE
1.007T) ° 2015612 A31A K
20144 12A31H - S#HLtEE
BEEH0A2%HIREIE - mR
BEEHEERRABILERA
[IEEERR LT I EEdE
SEENBENEREEE @ I
BEBRENEBEERTELN
RRHE AT EERE - 2
BEHRRELER -
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /< - &ffiiHREETE (9

(Continued)
8. Investment properties 8 BREMEHE
Investment properties under the cost method B ARG BEANREMEHE
December 31, 2015
2015%12A31H
Buildings  Land use rights Total
Item BH FEREEY T fE AR &t
. Original carrying amount — RERE
1.2014.12.31 1. B8 128,943,553 61,834,184 190,777,737
2. Increase in the period 2. KHEME R 29,369 - 29,369
(1) Transferred from the fixed assets MRETBEEEA 29,369 - 29,369
3. Decrease in the period S AHRLeE 138 - 138
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets MEBAEEEE 138 S 138
(2) Transferred to the intangible assets RQEANETVEE = = -
4, 2015.12.31 4. BIREAEE 128,972,784 61,834,184 190,806,968
II. Accumulated depreciation = BRIEN R EH
and amortization
1, 2014.12.31 1. 8B0eR 35,644,831 7,327,492 42,972,323
2. Increase in the period 2. REREMEE 5,009,883 1,628,332 6,638,215
(1) Accrual or amortization ()aHEs s 4,372,696 1,628,332 6,001,028
(2) Transferred from the fixed assets RQURETEEBA 637,187 - 637,187
3. Decrease in the period RN R S = -
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets NEAEEEE = - -
(2) Transferred to the intangible assets QEBANEFEE = = -
4. 2015.12.31 4. BiRERE 40,654,714 8,955,824 49,610,538
lll. Net book value = RAEE
1. Net book value as at 1. HREERE
December 31, 2015 88,318,070 52,878,360 141,196,430
2. Net book value as at 2. BREEE
December 31, 2014 93,298,722 54,506,692 147,805,414
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < - &t HREETE (2

(Continued)
8. Investment properties (Continued) 8 BEMEHEE
Investment properties under the cost method (Continued) B EBE I REMEHE (1B)
December 31, 2014
2014F12A31H
Buildings Land use rights Total
ltem JHE FEREEN T fE R At
I. Original carrying amount — RAREA
1.2013.12.31 1. 5L 8 88,617,171 66,651,861 155,269,032
2. Increase in the period 2. REBEmMERE 41,262,197 = 41,262,197
(1) Transferred from the fixed assets (REEEEBA 41,262,197 - 41,262,197
3. Decrease in the period 3. AHE EE 935,815 4,817,677 5,753,492
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets NWEABTEE 935,815 - 935,815
(2) Transferred to the intangible assets RQEBANEFEE - 4,817,677 4,817,677
4, 2014.12.31 4, BiREREE 128,943,553 61,834,184 190,777,737
IIl. Accumulated depreciation and amortization = ~ Z3HTEM 25+
1. 2013.12.31 1. 8788 20,887,989 6,137,131 27,025,120
2. Increase in the period 2. AHEME R 15,036,596 1,628,332 16,664,928
(1)Accrual or amortization ()atiRs sy 3,483,921 1,628,332 5,112,253
(2) Transferred from the fixed assets RQRETEEBA 11,552,675 - 11,552,675
3. Decrease in the period RN b R 279,754 437,971 717,725
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets NEAETEE 279,754 - 279,754
(2) Transferred to the intangible assets RQEBAEFARE - 437,971 437,971
4. 2014.12.31 4, BiREREE 35,644,831 7,327,492 42,972,323
Ill. Net book value = FAEEE
3. Net book value as at 1. BREEEE
December 31, 2014 93,298,722 54,506,692 147,805,414
4, Net book value as at 2. HYEEERE
December 31, 2013 67,729,182 60,514,730 128,243,912
As at December 31, 2015, the investment properties with R2015F 12 A31H " FEHAR
the approximate net book value of RMB1,037,511 (December # 1,037,511 7t(2014F 12 31 H :
31, 2014: RMB20,304,654) were pledged to secure certain 20,304,654 70 ) IR E M EmED AE
of the Group's long-term bank loans, and details were ST REIE RO IAY o 2R Mz -
referred to Note (VI) 27. 27 o
As at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, all land 2015912 31 HfM2014F 12 A 31
use rights in the investment properties of the Group are H ANEFEREUEMEFOLHFA
medium-term lease. BEHBRFEEE -
2015 &3
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

9. Fixed assets

Item

I, Original carrying amount
1.
2.

4.
. Accumulative depreciation

1. 2014.12.31

2. Increase in the period

Increase in the period

(2) Transferred from the
construction in process
(3) Transferred from the
investment properties
. Decrease in the period

(2) Transferred to the
investment properties

(2) Transferred from the
investment properties
3. Decrease in the period

investment properties
4. 2015.12.31
Net book value
1. Net book value as at
December 31, 2015
2. Net book value as at
December 31, 2014

EH

- RERE

1. A%

2 ABRME
(1)BE
QERIEEA

QEEERLESA
3R EE D

() AHRE
QBARERFE

4 MRHE

© Rt

1 4

2. KL g

(1) A 85He
QEANERESA

SAHELE
() AHRE
QEBARERFE

4 MRBE

- REEE

1 BREEEE
2. BEEEE

N AHMBERERABERE)

9 BIEEE

Buildings
EEREEY

1,000,150,182
20,650,764
20,650,626

138
29,369

29,369
1,020,771,577

251,447,653

35,944,523
35,944,523

637,187

637,187
286,754,989

734,016,588

748,702,529

December 31, 2015
2015F12A318
Machinery Electronic
and  devicesand  Transporta-
equipment others  tion vehicles

HERHE ETRERIM BaRh

875,052,990 137,514,356 52,327,064
43,920,734 19,309,041 10,479,037
41,588,865 17,673,282 9,817,955

2,331,869 1,635,759 661,082

16,972,873 6,109,994 2,706,623
16,972,873 6,109,994 2,706,623

902,000,851 150,713,403

60,099,478

494,034,601 109,062,118 28,845,741
69,330,878 12,269,863 7,611,832
69,330,878 12,269,863 7,611,832

12,117,995 5,118,941 1,232,678
12,117,995 5,118,941 1,232,678

551,247,484 116,213,040

35,224,895
350,753,367 34,500,363 24,874,583
381,018,389 28,452,238 23,481,323

Total
a3

2,065,044,592
94,359,576
89,730,728

4,628,710
138
25,818,859
25,789,490

29,369
2,133,585,309

883,390,113

125,157,096
125,157,096

19,106,801
18,469,614
637,187
989,440,408
1,144,144,901

1,181,654,479
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)
9. Fixed assets (Continued) 9 BEEEEME)
December 31, 2014
2014F12A31H
Machinery Electronic
and devices and Transporta-
Buildings equipment others tion vehicles Total
Item EH FEREEN HERE STREREM BRRE At
I Original carrying amount - RARE
1. 2013.12.31 1. B%E 1,034,717,908 848,115,039 130,818,260 51,743,952  2,065,395,159
2. Increase in the period 2 KHE 3 6,694,471 39244906 12,558,963 3200933 61,699,273
(1) Purchase NBE 5,758,656 31,292,055 9,585,606 3,200,933 49,837,250
(2) Transferred from the
construction in process QfERIEEA - 7,952,851 2,973,357 - 10,926,208
(3) Transferred from the
investment properties QREEFHEEA 935,815 - - - 935,815
3. Decrease in the period 3.REE D 41,262,197 12,306,955 5,862,867 2,617,821 62,049,840
(1) Disposal NAHRE = 12,306,955 5,862,867 2,617,821 20,787,643
(2) Transferred to the
investment properties QBARENEE 41,262,197 - - - 41,262,197
4. 2014.12.31 4 HRBE 1,000,150,182 875,062,990 137,514,356 52,327,064  2,065,044,592
Il. Accumulative depreciation - ZiEH
1. 2013.12.31 1. B%E 226,080,504 485,432,367 101,572,160 22,982,417 786,067,448
2. Increase in the period 2 REENNEE 36,919,824 70,123,355 12,743,636 7,396,775 127,183,590
(1) Acorual (1)K ER 36640070 70123355 12743636 7396775 126903836
(2) Transferred from the
investment properties QEREEFHEEA 279,754 = = 279,754
3. Decrease in the period SRR 11552675 11,521, 5253678 1533451 029,860,925
(1) Disposal NAHRE - 1,521, 5,253,678 1,533,451 18,308,250
(2) Transferred to the
investment properties (QBAREEEE 11,552,675 - - - 11,552,675
4. 2014.12.31 4 HRBE 261,447,653 494,034,601 109,062,118 28,845,741 883,390,113
Ill. Net book value = REEE
1. Net book value as at
December 31, 2014 1. BREEBE 748,702,529 381,018,389 28,452,238 23,481,323 1,181,664,479
2. Net book value as at
December 31, 2013 2 BNEEEE 808,637,404 412,682,672 20,246,100 28,761,535 1,279,327,711
At December 31, 2015, the fixed assets with net book value R2015%F 12 A31H FEARE
of Nil (December 31, 2014: 57,380,803) were restricted as Z (2014 F 12 A31H: AR
they were been pledged to secure certain of the Group’s 57,380,803 7T ) Ky [E & & 7 W) P A 1
short-term bank loans, and details were referred to Note BERTEHERMNIERY M X E
(V1) 17. And the fixed assets with net book value of RHl - ZRMzEN 17 FEARE
RMB48,781,303 (December 31, 2014: RMB117,596,777) 48,781,30370( 201451283180 : AR
were restricted as they were been pledged to secure certain #117,506,777 0 EE EEM T B #
of the Group’s long-term bank loans, and details were A R ERTT R BIfE R AR Y X 2R
referred to Note (VI) 27. Hil o Z2REMFEN 27 ©
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(Continued)
9. Fixed assets (Continued) 9 BEEEEMR
Fixed assets of which issued certificates of title have not MN20155F12A31H @ R ZEREES
been obtained as at December 31, 2015: HEEEERBR
Reasons for Expected time
not obtaining of obtaining
Net book certificates certificates
value of title of title
APREERE FESHMEER
Item HH BREFE BERE BERE
Room1-201,1-202,2-201, AFRIEEIEE13-1-201 2,946,996 In progress 2016
2-202,3-201,3-202, Unit 13, 13-1-202 * 13-2-201 - PSR 20164
Chenxin Garden, Datong 13-2-202 - 13-3-201
13-3-202 &
Xinyishangzhen — the office Momy — R LR 20,220,623 In progress 2016
building and the factory IEfEgIE 20164
Fixed assets of which issued certificates of title have not MR2014F12A381H » ANZEREEE
been obtained as at December 31, 2014: METEEEBN
Reasons for Expected time
not obtaining of obtaining
Net book certificates certificates
value of title of title
RIMZERE TEErRGEERE
ltem IHH BREFE BERA BERME
Room1-201,1-202,2-201, RNEREEE13-1-201 2,989,279 In progress 2015
2-202,3-201,3-202, Unit 13, 13-1-202 » 13-2-201 - FEHE S 20154
Chenxin Garden, Datong 13-2-202 -+ 13-3-201 -
13-3-202 &
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(Continued)

10. Construction in progress

(1) Details of construction in progress:

&
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /<

10 EEIRE

(1) EBZIEBHHAUT :

B BEHRIEE ERE)

2015.12.31 2014.12.31
“B-Ef+ZA=+-R L
Carrying Net book Carrying Net book
amount  Impairment value amount  Impairment value
Item BE REGE  REER REFE REsE  AEER REFE
Shuangaiao Project BETR 50,232,653 - 50,232,653 | 50,163,443 - 50,163,443
Pingfang Project TEIR 36,694,407 - 36,694,407 | 36,694,407 - 36,694,407
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project ~ FRAEIRE 6,000,000 - 6,000,000 - - -
System Software Project ZGEMHER TR 6,449,806 - 6,449,806 | 3,285,445 - 3285445
Renovation Project of Fresh ERIATR
Food Distribution Center - - - 1,759,806 - 1,759,806
Warehouse No.5 of Logistics MRS TER 24
Security System 1,105,800 - 1,105800 | 1,105,800 - 1,105,800
Convenience store ERERRTIE
Reconstruction Project 265,738 - 265,738 866,636 - 866,636
Jiuxianaiao Project BETR 53,430 - 53,430 509,279 S 509,279
Guanzhuang Project BHETR 374,772 - 374,772 - - -
Xihongmen Project MR 67,819 - 67,819 - - -
Total At 101,244,425 - 101,244,425 | 94,384,816 - 94,384,816

Changes in significant construction in progress in

the current year

For the year ended at December 31, 2015

(2) EEFBIREBAFEERER

2015 E

Transferred to
fixed assets,
intangible
assets or long-
term prepaid
expenses
Budget 2015.1.1 Increase in  BABTEEE » Other 2015.12.31
Item amount —E-1% the period BYEER deduction —E-1%
BEER REY -A-H rEEm REGHER Hitd +=A=1-H
Shuanggiao Project (Note 1)* 108,988,036 50, 163,443 69,210 - - 50,232,653
EBIR(E)
Pingfang Project (Note 2) 73,655,986 36,694,407 - - - 36,694,407
TRIRG?)
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project 35,047,286 - 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
THERELR
Xihongmen Project 41,134,552 377,174 17,904,977 18,214,332 - 67,819
BAMTIRE
Others 111,817,776 7,149,792 23,246,662 20,429,379 1,717,529 8,249,546
HEfpERIR
Total 94,384,816 47,220,849 38,643,711 1,717,529 101,244,425
ait
2015 &3
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <  §0fBiHRRxBEA T (&)

(Continued)
10. Construction in progress (Continued) 10 - ERBIRE(E)
(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in 2 EErZIBREEAFEHERER
the current year (Continueqd) (#&)
For the year ended at December 31, 2015 (Continued) 2015FE (&)
Amount
injected as a Amount of Including: Interest
proportion of accumulated Capitalized  capitalization
budget amount capitalized interest in the rate for the
(%)  Construction interest period period (%)
Project name IRRAME  progress (%) FISERE Hb:FEFE KIS Source of funds
ERER BEWA(%) — IREE%) it EXeE  EALE%) EEXR
Shuanggiao Project (Note 1)* 46 46 3,000,000 - - Own funds and bank loans
ERIR(E)" BRESREAT-RER
Pingfang Project (Note 2) 50 50 425,988 - - Own funds and bank loans
TEIR(2) BRESRBT-RER
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project 17 17 - - - Own funds and bank loans
TERELIR BRESRBT-RER
Xihongmen Project - - - - - Own funds and bank loans
HmAMIR BRESRET-RES
Others 17 t0 100 17 t0 100 162,037 95,153 5.84 Own funds and bank loans
IR 1731100 172100 BRESRET-RET
Total 3,588,025 95,153
Ait
For the year ended at December 31, 2014 20145 E
Transferred to
fixed assets,
intangible assets
or long-term
prepaid expenses
2014.1.1 Increase in ~ BABEEE - Other 2014.12.31
Item Budget amount —F-mF the period BVEER deduction i3
BEREH BEY -A-H AEEN REGRER EtRd  TZA=t-H
Shuanggiao Project (Note 1)* 108,888,036 49,825,460 337,983 - - 50,163,443
ERIRGH)
Pingfang Project (Note 2) 73,655,986 36,694,407 - - - 36,694,407
TRIE(:H2)
Renovation Project of
Shuanglong Store 34,504,295 - 34,504,295 34,504,295 - -
SRERNIR
Renovation Project of Dry-salter
Distrioution Center 9,466,748 713,685 2,365,840 3,079,525 - -
HERRTRE
Others 36,635,607 6,833,501 24,947,272 24,253,807 - 7,526,966
HfpERIR
K’ﬁ' 94,067,053 62,155,390 61,837,627 - 94,384,816
=]
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &8 EHEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

10. Construction in progress (Continued) 10 - EEIR(#)

2 EEEZIEHEEAFEEREN

(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in

the current year (Continued) (%)
For the year ended at December 31, 2014 (Continued) 20145 E(4)
Amount injected Amount of Including: Interest
as a proportion of accumulated Capitalized capitalization
budget amount Construction capitalize interest in rate for the
Project name % progress _interest the period period(%) Source of funds
- TEENE \ FgERl, e AEAE REfE
BRAR TEL51(%) TRER%) ESE Frs(fa BALE() EEKR
Shuanggiao Project (Note 1) 46 46 3,000,000 - = Own funds and bank loans
SRTE(H) ARBERATRIER
Pingfang Project (Note 2) 50 50 425,988 - = Own funds and bank loans
TRIE(GHR) BRAERBA-RER
Renovation Project of 100 100 141,303 141,308 553 Own funds and bank loans
Shuanglong Store BEERETRER
SEERULIR
Renovation Project of Dry-salter 38 33 30,085 16,400 553 Own funds and bank loans
Distibution Center BEEERETHiER
GERRTR
Others 1510 100 1510 100 86,894 79,863 5.53 Own funds and bank loans
EfERTR 152100 152100 BEESY/ RET-RER
Total 3,684,270 237,556
At

* o ZEHEARBERUERFESHM
BIRNEESHELEREH
MHENIEARERTRERAE
BERLLH -

According to the revised budget amount for
subsequent years/periods, the project budget and the
proportions of project investments of the total budget
in respective periods were restated.

R IRNRATIZRLME
B o mREUR LIS R AR B
RELEBCFERRA - ARAHR
RS LiEARERE - RIEAAT
B RS [ E A RBUT
AT LI LB E B &
RBENOE - WRFEERRK
BB B REA L
MmEMRER - AR RBEE
AP ARBUR S 2 WA & 88
ERREERF - Bt - EEE
REZETLIETFERERR -

Note 1: The costs of Shuanggiao Project mainly consisted of
land compensation cost. Due the change in planning
policies on the requisitioned land, the Company
has not obtained the land use right certificate yet.
Pursuant to the Land Requisition and Compensation
Agreement between the Company and the People's
Government of Guanzhuang Township, Chaoyang
District, Beijing and its supplemental agreement, the
amount prepaid to the latter shall be refunded in full
to the Company in case of any change in policies or
any other situation that may affect land requisition of
the Company. Therefore, the management believes
that there is no risk of impairment for the project.

Note 2: As at December 31, 2015, the costs of Pingfang 2 HE2015F12A31BFEIEN

Project mainly consisted of civil engineering. The
Company was in process of obtaining the builder’s
license and predicted to start the project in 2016.
Therefore, the management believes that there is no
risk of impairment for the project.

BAXEAETETIR - AQAIE
R MBRES - BE
2016F BT - BERERRZEBEL
BIAFERERR

2015 &R
IR RREEEEERNDERAR
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VI.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

11.

Intangible assets

December 31, 2015

N AHMBHERAEERE)

11 -BREE
2015%12A31H

Operation rights

of distribution

Land use rights Software network Total

Item ER 1ibfERE B SHARCHE &it
I Original carrying amount - RERE

1, 2014.12.31 1. BUBE 193,182,196 23,587,177 33,954,633 250,724,006

2. Increase in the period 2. KEENEE - 5,648,709 300,000 5,948,709

(1) Purchase (1) BE - 4,469,222 300,000 4,769,222

(2) Transferred from the construction in process Q) EEIREA - 1,179,487 - 1,179,487

(3) Transferred from the investment properties (8 BEURHEEA S S = S

3. Decrease In the period 3. AHRVEE 40,379 - - 40,379

4, 2015.12.31 4, HRHBE 193,141,817 29,235,886 34,254,633 256,632,336
Il. Accumulated amortization BB

1, 2014,12.31 1. Bi%E 29,191,573 12,867,935 11,817,800 53,877,308

2. Increase in the period 9. KEENSE 5,170,616 1,433,006 2,866,500 9,470,122

(1) Accrual (1) &R 5,170,616 1,433,006 2,866,500 9,470,122

(2) Transferred from the investment properties 2 RAEEHEEA - - - -

3. Decrease in the period 3. KERVEE S s = -

4, 2015.12.31 4, HRHE 34,362,189 14,300,941 14,684,300 63,347,430
Il Net book value = KafE

1. Net book value as at December 31, 2015 1. BREREE 158,779,628 14,934,945 19,570,333 193,284,906

2. Net book value as at December 31, 2014 2. BNEEEE 163,990,623 10,719,242 22,136,833 196,846,698

December 31, 2014 2014%12H31H
Operation rights of

Land use rights Software  distribution network Total

Item ER THfERE gt SERREEE Bt
I Original carrying amount - BERE

1, 2014.1.1 1. BnE 188,364,519 19,061,658 33,354,633 240,780,810

2. Increase in the period 9. KEENSE 4,817,677 4,525,519 600,000 9,943,196

(1) Purchase (1) BE - 3,176,459 600,000 3,776,459

(2) Transferred from the construction in process (2 EEIEEA - 1,349,060 - 1,349,060

(3) Transferred from the investment properties (3 BREURMEEA 4,817,677 S = 4,817,677

3. 2014.12.31 3. HWRHE 193,182,196 23,587,177 33,954,633 250,724,006
Il. Accumulated amortization = RitEE

1. 2014.1.1 1. BnE 23,542,607 10,761,087 8,976,300 43,280,494

2. Increase in the period 2. KHENEE 5,648,966 2,106,848 2,841,000 10,596,314

(1) Accrual (1) 3R 5,210,995 2,106,848 2,841,000 10,158,343

(2) Transferred from the investment properties Q) BERRGEEA 437,971 - - 437,971

3. 2014.12.31 3. WRHBE 29,191,573 12,867,935 11,817,800 53,877,308
Il Net book value = KAfE

1. Net book value as at December 31, 2015 1. BREEER 163,990,623 10,719,242 22,136,833 196,846,698

2. Net book value as at December 31, 2014 2. BEREER 164,821,912 8,300,571 24,377,833 197,500,316
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)
11. Intangible assets (Continued) 11 -BREEEE)
As at December 31, 2015, the land use rights with net R2015F 128318 » FEHAREST
book value of Nil (December 31, 2014: RMB6,290,530) 7t(2014%12 A31H :6,290,5307T)
were pledged to secure certain of the Group’s short-term Wt RAEERERTEHEBERD
bank loans, and the land use rights with net book value of WY - 2RMFEN 17 FEHOA
Nil (December 31, 2014: RMB13,094,704) were pledged to R¥ZTIL(2014F12A31H : AR
secure certain of the Group’s long-term bank loans. Details 13,094,704 7T ) By T b F A #EE A{ER
were referred to Note (VI) 27. TREAERNERY - 2R S -
27
As at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, all land 2015912 431 HfM2014 12 A 31
use rights in the intangible assets of the Group are medium- B AEE&EPEETHLERAES
term lease. B EAEE -
12. Goodwill 12 « 58
2015.12.31
and 2014.12.31
Name of the investee or WREENVEBR 2015.12.31
item resulting in goodwill FREENEE %2014.12.31
Acquisition of Shouchao Group WS HEB 86,673,788
On December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the 2015412 A31 A k2014512 A 31
balance was the goodwill arising from the acquisition of H ZHpBEsEaREmEETAT
Shoulian Supermarket and its subsidiaries (“Shouchao (ATEEA EBERE] RIELRRHBE
Group”) as well as Beijing Jingchao Commercial Company EERARI(ATHHEA B EEN
Limited (Hereinafter referred to as “Jingchao”). e
The impairment tests of goodwill acquired through the AEBEREGBERRRBIESHEE
purchase of Shouchao Group and Jingchao were conducted e RBENERERTETEER
on the group of assets in relation to the retailing business HENEEER —EEEMEITRE
segment of the Shouchao Group after consolidation of AR - ZEEEBRTES o
Jingchao.
2015 F4}
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

12. Goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the group of assets had been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to calculate the present value of a future stream
of cash flows was 11% (2014: 12%). The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the subsidiary beyond the

five-year period was 3% (2014: 3%).

As at December 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014,
certain key assumptions are taken into consideration of
the calculation of the present value of the cash flow of
Shouchao Group. Below are the key assumptions made
by the management in forecasting the present value of a
future stream of cash flows to conduct impairment tests of

goodwill:

Expected gross profit — The estimation of gross profit is
based on the average gross profit realized in previous year,
and then appropriately increased according to the increase

of expected efficiency and market expansion.

Discount rate — Using the discount rate before tax which

reflects Shouchao Group's specific risks.
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(Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. Long-term prepaid expenses

14.

RS el bE

1:||||/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 2015%12831H IFF /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIz4B55) » £EEE N BARKET)

N Bt BEmRIEEERE)

/

13 - RIGHEH

For the year ended at December 31, 2015 20156 &
2015.1.1 Increase in  Amortization in Other 2015.12.31
Item “E-1f the period the period deduction ZE-TE Reason for other deduction
&R -A-A AHEm rHaEY EtHS  tZR=t-B RfESRE
Transferred from construction in progress 506,035,047 79,324,586 69,118,345 1,793,969 514,447,319 Disposal
to leasehold improvements
Bef \EREESRT EE
Rent 78,745,117 - 819,238 9,805,076 68,120,803 Transferred to current assets
2 EZfBEE
Total 584,780,164 79,324,586 69,937,583 11,599,045 582,568,122
At
For the year ended at December 31, 2014 20145 E
201411 Increase in ~ Amortization in Other 2014.12.31
ltem 2 the period the period deduction “Z—[E  Reason for o ther deduction
L] -A-A REEm TEERS #Es  +-A=t-B EEIRR
Transferred from construction in progress 531,143,003 49,562,359 73,494,906 1,175,410 506,035,047 Disposal
to leasehold improvements RE
BER N ETAERATL
Rent 34,083,233 56,108,201 - 10,441,317 78,745,117 Transferred to current assets
2 UERHEE
Total 565,226,236 104,665,560 73,494,905 11,616,727 584,780,164
At
Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities 14 - EEFBHEE ELEFfMEHERE
(1) Deferred tax assets without offset (1) KA REE TS E A
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
ZE-RFtZA=t-H “Z-mE+-A=T-H
Deductible Deductible
temporary Deferred temporary Deferred
differences tax assets differences tax asset
Item EH AENEBEER BEFMEHEE | THENERMZER ERFEHAE
Deductible loses AENEE 110,595,207 27,648,802 107,832,461 26,958,115
Taxable govenment grants ~ EAHHFHEL 39,334,651 9,833,663 21,390,166 5,347 542
Total At 149,929,858 37,482,465 129,222,627 32,305,657
2015 Fif
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(Continued)

14 - EERESHEE BEEFRSHAE

14. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

(2) Deferred tax liabilities without offset

(%)

(2) ARABEHWBELFTEHEEHH

2015.12.31 2014.12.31
ZE-RF+tZA=t-H “E-mE+ZA=+-H
Taxable Taxable
temporary Deferred tax temporary Deferred tax
differences liabilities differences liabilities
G 413 e B
Item A UREER FERas BRHER FEfak
Fair value adjustment of assets arising ~ FEEHEERBRAEE
from non-monetary asset exchange A% {BEHE 15,738,706 3,934,677 16,805,144 4,201,286
Changes on the fair value of available-  AIEHESBEELS
for-sale financial assets BEES 3,504,000 876,000 4,228,000 1,057,000
Capitalized interest adjustment of BRERAMSERIAE
borrowing costs 8,125,848 2,031,462 9,675,869 2,418,967
Difference between the fair value and  HEFRRIREEENAR
the carrying amount of subsidiary BEZR
merger and acquisition 4,443,477 1,110,869 5,166,406 1,291,602
Total A 31,812,031 7,953,008 35,875,419 8,968,855

(3) Net deferred tax assets or liabilities with offset

(3) UBHEFHEITHELFEHE

EREE
Amount after
Amount after  Offset amount offset of
Offset amount offset of of deferred deferred tax
of deferred tax deferred tax tax assets and assets and
assets and assets and deferred tax deferred tax
deferred tax deferred tax liabilities in the liabilities in
liabilities at the liabilities at the beginning  the beginning
end of year end of year of year of year
BEFRSEH EHBRIEL EEFEH HEHRELT
BEENEE FEHEEDR EENEE FEHEER
ltem BH FREHSE SBERHE FUEEEE ABF0UHE
Deferred tax assets FELFREREE 5,966,139 31,516,326 4,253,792 28,051,865
Deferred tax liabilities EEMEHAR 5,966,139 1,986,869 4,253,792 4,715,063
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)
14. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued) EEFMEHEE EZEFREHERE
(#&)
(4) Details of unrecognized deferred tax assets (4) KREZBLEFEHEEDH
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—2-IF T —MF
ltem 1HH +=A=Z+—-8B | tZH=+—H
Deductible temporary differences KT IEER 10,004,720 9,740,929
Deductible losses AMEHEE 82,213,076 47,997,525
Total (SiE) 92,217,796 57,738,454
In the view of the management of the Group, deferred EETRERBARRTZRAEE
tax assets are not recognized since it is not probable A R Lt TR Es e A T 3K
that taxable profit will be available against which the MEREEZENEMATMSE -
deductible temporary differences or deductible loses A AR FER A T8 B IR EFSH
can be utilized. BE °
(5) Deductible losses of unrecognized deferred tax (5) KRIEREZFTEHEEN T HIE
assets will expire in the following years BRERUTEEZH
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E-HF —E—OF
Year Fn +=A=+—8 | +t=—A=+—8H
2015.12.31 2015.12.31 - 2,361,236
2016.12.31 2016.12.31 248,114 248,114
2017.12.31 2017.12.31 984,414 984,414
2018.12.31 2018.12.31 18,081,827 18,081,827
2019.12.31 2019.12.31 23,539,119 26,321,934
2020.12.31 2020.12.31 39,359,601 -
Total ST 82,213,075 47,997,525
2015 3§
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)
15. Details of provision for assets impairment 15 - EEREEEHHA
For the year ended at December 31, 2015 20155
Decrease in the year
KERD
Increase in
2015.1.1 the year  Reversal Written-off 2015.12.31
—“E-1F —E-1F
ltem EH —-A-8 KRERLM BE B T+T-A=t-8
Bad debts provision BIREE 7,287,101 - 136,663 = 7,150,438
Provision for inventory FEREER

impairment ‘ \ 1,265,828 400,454 - - 1,666,282
Impairment of available-for-sale AT E S RE EREERE

financial assets 1,188,000 - - - 1,188,000
Total At 9,740,929 400,454 136,663 - 10,004,720
For the year ended at December 31, 2014 20145 &

Decrease in the year
KEFD
Increase in

2014.1.1 the year  Reversals  Written-off 2014.12.31

Stk ) —T-mE

ltem EH —A—A AEHEM o) B +-A=+—H

Bad debts provision ZIRERE 9,749,851 - 2,462,750 - 7,287,101
Provision for inventory )

impairment FERELERE 1,454,904 292,801 - 481,878 1,265,828
Impairment of available-for-sale \ )

financial assets A HESHEERBEER 1,188,000 - - - 1,188,000
Total At 12,392,755 292,801 2,462,750 481,878 9,740,929

16. Other non-current assets 16 ~ HittdE RBEE
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E—EHF —E—UF
ltem IHH +=A=+—H +—A=+—H
Long-term receivables due from HEBEENRAEYR(GE)

Beijing Shoulian Group (Note 1) 149,000,000 133,500,000
Security deposit HeRED 23,019,886 16,903,808
Prepaid construction fees TR TR 3,778,773 =
Total SR 175,798,659 150,403,808
Note 1: As at December 31, 2015, such long-term receivables 51 R20155F 12 A31H  ZERIIEUK

consist of borrowings lent by Shoulian Supermarket to AEBETRAEBHERRENESTK
Shoulian Group due on December 31, 2016 as agreed & HHTENREB2016F12A31
upon. The long-term receivables bear interest at 6.00% H o it R R IE & 7 %6.00%5T
per annum. Meanwhile certain buildings and land use B oAl ZERKFARRBEET
rights of Shoulian Group with a total fair value not less BERZERRZKRBNEBERREER
than the balance of the long-term receivables have been T FAREIE IR EIR o
pledged for these long-term receivables in favor of Shoulian
Supermarket.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /<
(Continued)

17. Short-term borrowings

Bt BmRAEERE)

17 ~ BHIER

2015.12.31 2014.12.31

—ZE-8F —Z—OF
ltem THH +=-HA=+-—H +=-A=+—H
Accounts receivable secured loan (Note 1) JEUBE FIRIBfEFR(FE1) 107,814,886 190,177,877
Guaranteed loan (Note 2) REBEER(GE2) 1,988,285,015 1,532,312,274
Unsecured loan (Note 3) EAEFR(GES) 650,000,000 250,000,000
Mortgage loan (Note 4) EIRE R (GE4) = 200,000,000
Total A 2,746,099,901 2,172,490,151

As at December 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014,
the short-term borrowings above bore annual interest
rates ranging from 4.05% to 4.60% and 5.60% to 7.20%

respectively without any due but unsettled ones.

Note 1: As at December 31, 2015, such short-term loan was
obtained by several accounts receivable factoring of the
Group totaling to RMB354,891,600 (December 31, 2014:
RMB458,975,301), and details were referred to Note (VI) 2.

Note 2: As at December 31, 2015, among such short-term
bank loans, RMB559,947,704 was borrowed by the
Company upon a surety provided by Chaopi Trading;
RMB940,000,000 was borrowed by the Company's
subsidiary Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by
the Company; RMB354,337,311 was borrowed by a
subsidiary of Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by
Chaopi Trading; and RMB134,000,000 was borrowed by a
subsidiary of Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by the

Company.

As at December 31, 2014, among such short-term
bank loans, RMB390,000,000 was borrowed by the
Company upon a surety provided by Chaopi Trading;
RMB747,618,207 was borrowed by the Company's
subsidiary Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by the
Company; and RMB394,694,067 was borrowed by a
subsidiary of Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by
Chaopi Trading.

2015912 31 A %2014 12 A 31
B FREHERNFENES B A
4.05% % 4.60% % 5.60%%=7.20% * B
T GFEBRIHRAEROMER o

1 R2015F12A31H + ZFEBERK
RUAREE S AR ¥354,891,600
(2014 F12 A31B: AR ¥
458,975,301 70) 9 %5 T & W AR 7138 3B
REBLHES - 282

(2015612 A318 » xERHERF
B ARM559,947,704 0 BARA AIEE
R HEMEERERERR  ARE
940,000,0007T /A A A2 F 2 AEAH
EENER - BARIHEHIRBER
AR¥354,337, 311 T AEAIEE 2 F
RRAIMER - AR ERERERE
R+ AR¥134,000,000T &8 # A E
ZTFRAIMMER - AR AIRMHREBE
1R o

M2014%F12A318 + ZEEEERF
A AR#390,000,0007c B4R A& &
A BPMEERARERER AR
747,618,207 T RA AR Z F AR
BEENER - BARAHRHREER
AR 394,694,067 T AFAMEE 2 F
NAIMER - BAREBEIREREE
R e

2015 &R
IR RREEEEERNDERAR
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

17. Short-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 3: As at December 31, 2015, the credit loans included
RMB250,000,000, RMB50,000,000, RMB300,000,000
and RMB50,000,000 respectively granted by Beijing Rural
Commercial Bank, Mizuho Bank (China), Ltd., Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China Co., Ltd. and Bank of

Communications on an unsecured basis.

As at December 31, 2014, the credit loans included
RMB100,000,000, RMB50,000,000 and RMB100,000,000
respectively granted by Beijing Rural Commercial Bank,
Mizuho Bank (China), Ltd., and Industrial and Commercial

Bank of China Co. Ltd on an unsecured basis.

Note 4: As at December 31, 2014, buildings, land use rights,
and the investment properties with the approximate
net book value of RMB57,380,803, RMB6,290,530,and
RMB4,206,406 respectively were pledged to secure the
mortgage loan.

18. Notes payable

- B BRRERERE)

17 ~ EHIER(E)

3 R2015F12A318 - FARBRFHFL
FENBERT  HERT(RERA
FRARF - RETERITAARRRF
B BB B R 1T M AN 2 B 43 Bl B R
12 HIfE 5 Rl &/ A R ¥ 250,000,000
7T~ AR M 500000007 © AR
300,000,000 7T & A R # 50,000,000
7T BARZERRAAEEERRH
ER o

R2014612A318  ERERF AL
RENEERT WERT(RE)E
RARKRPEIEERITAARRT DB
B 72 B 18 3R A R ¥ 100,000,000
7T+ AR #50,000,0007T kAR
100,000,0007C * B RBEZFERAA
EEERREER -

¥4 0 R2014F12A31H - HABHAX
N RBREFER AR #57,380,8037T
MERKEEY  EEFEAARE
6,290,5307T A £ 1 F 4 I BR T (B
BARA4,206,406 TTHR E M EIHE
TR IR -

18 ~ BT E#E

2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E—EF —_Z-lEF
Category EH +=A=+—-H| +TZA=+—8H
Trade acceptances BEANIESR
Bank acceptances RITHEGESR 624,557,573 76,088,972
Total &t 624,557,573 76,088,972

As at December 31, 2015, security deposit for the issuance
of bank acceptances above amounted to RMB138,005,266
(December 31, 2014: RMB15,217,794).

All of the bank acceptances of the Group will be due within

one year.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)
19. Accounts payable 19 ~ EEfTERRR
Aging of accounts payable based on date of pick-up: FERBRFENIKRE B BARENRR N
T
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E-EHF —T—mE
ltem HE +=B=+—8H +=—BA=+—H
Within 1 year 1F AR 1,179,925,690 1,141,456,710
1-2 years 1824 12,747,369 4,640,894
2-3 years 2FE34F 4,287,482 4,744,656
Over 3 years 3ELAE 4,049,325 -
Total S 1,201,009,866 1,150,842,260
The majority of accounts payable aging over one year IRECEB BT FNENREREEAEMH
consist of the final payments for suppliers. EREHMERER °
20. Advance from customers 20 ~ FEFKIE
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E-AE T
ltem HE +=—A=+—R8B| +=ZA=+—8H
Procurements received in advance TEWER 458,476,201 479,918,595
Total = 458,476,201 479,918,595
As at December 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, R2015%F 12 A31H & 201412 A 31
the advance from customers consisted of procurements B AEBEKFIEHYAEWRER
received in advance, among which there were no significant I AR QR A1 F A R BB TR R o
advance from customers aged more than one year.
2015 &3
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <  §0fBiHRRxBEA T (&)

(Continued)
21. Payroll payable 21 ~ FE{TER T 57
(1) Details of payroll payable (1) ERBIHMZR
For the year ended at December 31, 2015 20156 E
Increase in Decrease in
2015.1.1 the period the period 2015.12.31
—E-5% —E-1%
ltem BH -A—H AEHEM XEHS T=A=t-8
1. Short-term remuneration 1 EEEH 1,935,503 661,104,776 661,692,453 1,347,826
2. Post-employment benefits-defined 2 + BB} 1EF]—

contribution plans (Note 1) RERFE GH) - 70,724,426 70,724,426 =
3. Dismissal compensation 3 BHRIEA = - - -
4. Other welfare due within one year 4 + —ERZ| BB AIEF s = = -
Total A&t 1,935,503 731,829,202 732,416,879 1,347,826

For the year ended at December 31, 2014 20145 E

Increase in Decrease in
2014.1.1 the period the period 2014.12.31
B 2
ltem BH —A—A ZREBSE N KRS TZRA=1—H
1. Short-term remuneration 1 EHEH 3,128,350 560,765,426 561,958,273 1,935,503
2. Post-employment benefits-defined 2 - BEERA1EF]—

contrioution plans (Note 1) RERFEEIGE) - 68005254 68,095,254 -
3. Dismissal compensation 3 BHRAEA - - - -
4. Other welfare due within one year 4+ — &R HKE 15 F) = - - -
Total At 3,128,350 628,860,680 630,053,527 1,935,503
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Bt BmRAEERE)

II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

(Continued)
21. Payroll payable (Continued) 21 - ERBIEM(E)

(2) Short-term remuneration

(2) HERIFBIIT

For the year ended at December 31, 2015 20155 F
Increase in  Decrease in
2015.1.1 the period the period 2015.12.31
—E-1f “E2-1F
ltem R —-A-H KEEM xEHS +ZA=t-H
1) Wages or salaries, bonus, - I% %% 28
allowance, subsidies ket - 550,907,253 550,907,253 -
2) Staff welfare =S H&I?Eﬂ% - 25,423,927 25,423,927 -
3) Social security = iHeRk - 42,428,867 42,428,867 -
Including: Medical insurance He: gf RRE - 38,021,686 38,021,686 -
Work injury insurance THERBRE - 1,363,957 1,363,957 =
Maternity insurance iﬁ ReE - 3,043,224 3,043,224 s
4) Housing funds M- FEAESR - 30,565,549 30,565,549 -
5) Labor union expenses and il I@,@%ﬁuﬂ%ﬁﬁ,ﬁg%
employees’ education expenses 1,935,503 11,779,180 12,366,857 1,347,826
Total ait 1,935,503 661,104,776 661,692,453 1,347,826
For the year ended at December 31, 2014 20145 E
Increase in - Decrease in
2014.1.1 the period the period 2014.12.31
—ZT-mF —T-mF
ltemn BH —R—H AEEM KEREY +ZR=+—-8
1) Wages or salaries, bonus, - I% - %% ZHNEE
allowance, subsidies - 454,646,690 454,646,690 -
2) Staff welfare - H&Imw% - 26480524 26,480,524 =
3) Social security = HERER - 39,041,301 39,041,301 -
Including: Medical insurance Hep Eﬂﬂf% S 35,000,504 35,000,504 -
Work injury insurance TERRE - 1,242,820 1,242,820 -
Maternity insurance EERIRE - 2,797,977 2,797,977 =
4) Housing funds n - FREAES - 29,447,848 29,447,848 -
5) Labor union expenses and I ISRENBIHELS
employees’ education expenses 3,128,350 11,149,063 12,341,910 1,935,503
Tota A 3128350 560765426 561,958273 1935503
2015 &3
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VI.

(Continued)
21. Payroll payable (Continued)

(3) Details of defined contribution plan

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N AHMBHERAEERE)

21 - BB ITEHM(E)

(3 REEFEZT

For the year ended at December 31, 2015 2015 F
Increase in  Decrease in
2015.1.1 the period the period 2015.12.31
—E-EfF —E-EF
Item EH -B—H AEIE rHEY +T=A=t-H
Basic retirement insurance EREZRBE - 67,298,618 67,298,618 =
Unemployment insurance KERBE - 3425808 3,425,808 =
Total el - 70,724,426 70,724,426 -
For the year ended at December 31, 2014 20145 E
Increase in - Decrease in
2014.1.1 the period the period 2014.12.31
—F-mE / —E-lmF
ltem EH —A—H AHBE ABEL +ZRA=+—H
Basic retirement insurance ERBZRBE - 64,699,619 64,699,619 -
Unemployment insurance RERRE - 3395635 3,395,635 =
Total el - 68,095,254 68,095,254 -
Note 1: The Group participated in social security contributions 1 AREBIRBEFELR2AMARTHEE

and the unemployment insurance plan established
by government institutions as required. According to
such plan, the Group contributes 20%, 1% monthly
to such plans based on the employee’s basic salary
each month. Besides above monthly contributions, the
Group will not take responsibility for further liabilities.
Corresponding payment occurred shall be accrued in

current period profit or loss or related assets cost.

In the current year, the Group should contribute
RMB67,298618 and RMB3,425808 (201 4:
RMB64,699,619 and RMB3,395,635) to social security
contributions and the unemployment insurance plan
accordingly. As at December 31, 2015 and December
31, 2014, there are no unsettled social security
contributions and the unemployment insurance in the

accounting period.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &8 EHEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

22. Taxes payable 22 - EXBE

2015.12.31 2014.12.31

—E-EHF —ET—OF

ltem 1HE +=ZA=+—-8 | +t=ZA=+—H

Value-added tax 18(EF 56,134,044 42,657,707

Business tax R 5,991,100 6,379,977

Corporate income tax TEMSH 10,727,545 11,580,613

City construction and maintenance tax W R 2,786,185 3,247,053

Education surcharge HE BN 1,198,847 1,562,946

Others Efth 1,637,038 2,966,113

Total Sl 78,474,759 68,394,409

23. Dividends payable 23 ~ ERRR

2015.12.31 2014.12.31

—E-fE ZE—F

ltem 155 +=-A=+—H +ZA=+—H
Ordinary shares dividend LR FI(RER)

(domestic-owned shares) 625,251 312,625

Other minority shareholders’ dividend H i D BRE R AT 2,111,055 5,232,601

Total = 2,736,306 5,545,226

24.

Other payables

(1) Presentation of other payables by category

24 ~ AR

(1) BHBEMESTAMENK

2015.12.31 2014.12.31

—EB-HF —ZT—F
ltem 15§ +=—BA=+—H +=ZRA=+—H
Construction fees payable B TR 89,915,406 102,739,471
Deposit e 42,412,421 37,795,621
Rent received in advance & 10,758,517 10,835,552
Others Hith 56,023,697 32,935,670
Total = 199,110,041 184,306,314

(2) Significant other payables aging over one year

As at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014,

the majority of other payables aging over one year

consist of deposit and construction fees payable.

(2) BREEBIFHAHAMEAKIE

Ruya e -

2015612 4318 k2014512
318 - MRikE® — FaHMEN
REIBARERTRERANER
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

25. Non-current liabilities due within one year

N AHMBHERAEERE)

25 - —FRIBVFERBER

(1) Long-term borrowings due within one year (1) 1FERFEBHHREE
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E-AF —ZE—mE
ltem 1EH t=A=+—-B | +Z-H=+—H
Secured loans R 95,000,000 73,000,000
Total A5 95,000,000 73,000,000
(2) Details of long-term borrowings due within one (2) 1FAFHHRAE B
year
Interest

[tem Start date Maturity date Currency rate (%) 2015.12.31 2014.12.31

e . . . —¥-1F L
EREN EE =] EEEla= & FIE%) |tZA=+-B |tZA=1T—8H
Shanghai Pudong Development

Bank, Beijing Branch 2013.1.24 2015.6.20 RMB 5.70 2,500,000
HERRERBTRAT AR -
Shanghai Pudong Development

Bank, Beijing Branch 2013.4.12 2015.6.20 RMB 5.70 2,500,000
HERRRRETERAT N -
Shanghai Pudong Development

Bank, Beijing Branch 2013.1.24 2016.1.23 RMB 451 -
tiﬁ%?"@fﬁﬂibﬁ' P17 AR 57,500,000
Shanghai Pudong Development

Bank, Beijing Branch 2013.4.12 2016.1.31 RMB 451 -

HERRBRITIRAT AR 37,500,000
Bank of Communications 2012.12.14 2015.9.20 RMB 5.70 30,000,000
RRITRINBRAA ARE S
Bank of Communications 2012.12.26 2015.9.20 RMB 5.70 38,000,000
RBFIROERAF AR =
Total
Bt 95,000,000 73,000,000

As at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014,
the Group had no overdue but unsettled borrowings.

26. Other current liabilities

MR2015512 A31 8 k2014512 A

31H
REENER -

26 - HttRBAaE

CAKRETFECDIMER

2015.12.31 2014.12.31

—E—-hF —ET—UF

ltem HE +=ZA=+—-8B | +tZA=+—H

Accrued expenses JEIRE A 39,863,912 41,481,971

Deferred income due within one year 1F R HRELE W= 11,348,130 7,808,713

Total (Sl 51,212,042 49,290,684
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)

26. Other current liabilities (Continued)

26 - HttmEBEE (&)

(1) Accrued expenses (1) BEEEH
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E-hF —ZE—UF
ltem EE +=A=+-8 | t=ZA=1+—8H
Accrued interest expenses TERANEER 19,823,397 20,425,777
Accrued rent expenses BIREHE 11,128,840 12,649,696
Accrued audit expenses TAREE 1,440,000 2,026,792
Others Hh 7,471,675 6,379,706
Total &%t 39,863,912 41,481,971
(2) Deferred income due with one year (2) 1FAFRIRIEL K2
Notes 2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E-FEF —E—p4E
ltem 1HH FaE +=—BA=+—-H | tZA=+—H
Asset-related government grants —FREHNEEE  Note 1
due within one year MERARBAT B ) 7,294,087 4,313,010
Considerations allocated to the DECA ERENE D Y Note 2
award credits HELE 2 4,054,043 3,495,703
Total SiE) 11,348,130 7,808,713
Note 1: Asset-related government grants due within one 1 —FRE A B E MR A I

Note 2:

year consisted of deferred income due within one
year generated from special funds received in 2005,
2013, 2014 and 2015 by the Group and would be
recognized as revenue in the next year, and details

were referred to Note (VI) 30

The Group offers membership credit cards to
customers, and awards credit reaching certain
points can be converted into cash while shopping.
As deferred income, considerations allocated to the
award credits will be recognized as revenue when the
award credits are converted or cleared in the next

year.

B RAKEER2005FF
20134 & + 20144 [ 20154
FREINBIEE S EEMNETER
HP—FRNIBEHID - WHER
T—FEBRANZE - 2R

7N ~30°

2
BlEEHE

FAEBEEBERTERRO K
HIVEBRDER —

ERENEPED A AR

TERRESER -

DER R

B RHEREFERRLE RS -
I 1E SRR 0 4 B R R R U

A °
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)
27. Long-term borrowings 27 - REIER
(1) Presentation of long-term borrowings by category (1) REGEHSHE
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E-RF —E e
ltem 1HH +=—A=+—H +ZA=+—8~
Secured loans IRHEK - 95,000,000
Total &5 - 95,000,000
As at December 31, 2015, long-term borrowings ®2015F 12 A31 8 » REE K
(including long-term borrowings due within one year) E1FRIBHRBER) 2
were secured by certain of the Group’s buildings RN 25 AASBEE®
and investment properties with carrying amount of FEABARKA8,781,303 TH &
RMB48,781,303 and RMB1,037,511 correspondingly. EREZEY  EEFEAARKE
1,037,611 TR B F I EE R
HEIRER -
As at December 31, 2014, long-term borrowings M®2014F 12 A31 8 » REEK
(including long-term borrowings due within one year) (B1FAI M RBEFBASE
were secured by certain of the Group’s buildings, BEIREFEAARK117,506,777
investment properties and land use rights with carrying THEENREEY - REFEAR
amount of RMB117,596,777, RMB20,304,654 and ARH20,304,654 THIR & 145
RMB13,094,704 correspondingly. ENEREFEAARE13,094,704
TOR) T b (E FRREVE K ARHEAR
(2) Details of long-term borrowings (2) REEMBH
Interest
ltem Start date Maturity date  Currency  rate (%) 2015.12.31 2014.12.31
. —E-RF —E—-E
BEHE ER bt fEFERIER BE  FME%) |+ZA=t-B |tZA=f—H
Shanghai Pudong Development
‘Ban~k, Beijing Brangh 2013.1.24 2016.1.23 RMB 5.84 - 57,500,000
PERRERBTIERHT AR
Shanghai Pudong Development
Bank, Beijing Brangh 2013.4.12 2016.1.31 RMB 5.84 - 37,500,000
PERRRERBTIE RS AR
Total - 95,000,000
Bt
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =
(Continued)

28. Bonds payable

)

B BEHRIEE ERE)

28 - EfES

(1) Bonds payable (1) EEF
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E-AF — T4
ltem HH +=ZA=+—H | +tZA=+—H
Corporate bonds NG 746,158,430 744,820,080
Total &5t 746,158,430 744,820,080
Changes in the bonds payable (2) [EfIEFEREE
December 31, 2015 2015%12H31H
Term of Issue Issue in
Bonds Par value Issue date the bond amount 2015.1.1 the period
—E-1F
BHEERB H1E BITHHE BEHHR BITEE —A—8 REARAT
Corporate bonds 750,000,000 2013.8.13 5years 750,000,000 744,820,080 -
RAlE 5%
Total 750,000,000 750,000,000 744,820,080 -
At
Bond
Accrued discount/
interest for premium  Paid during
the period amortization the period 2015.12.31
} _REE ‘ —§-3F
Bonds T RHEFIE  ORFEES AHMKE t-A=t-8
Corporate bonds NAE 41,100,000 1,338,350 = 746,158,430
Total il 41,100,000 1,338,350 - 746,158,430
2015 &3
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(Continued)

28. Bonds payable (Continued) 28 ~ FE{IESR (&)

(2) Changes in the bonds payable (Continued) (2) [EEFHIEREE(E)

December 31, 2014 2014%12A31H

Term of Issue Issue in
Bonds Par value Issue date the bond amount 2014.1 1 the period
TP
BEHAE HE BITHH &7 AR BITRE —H—H AREAEEAT
Corporate bonds 750,000,000 2013.8.13 5 years 750,000,000 743,553,870 -
NRIME 5%
Total 750,000,000 750,000,000 743,553,870 -
S
Bond
Accrued discount/
interest for premium Paid during
the period amortization the period 2014.12.31
) BEE —T—mE
Bonds (et SHEM A RITEEE AHEE +-B=1t—8
Corporate bonds NElE 15,869,167 1,266,210 - 744,820,080
Total B 15,869,167 1,266,210 - 744,820,080

LEREFEe(ERNZELRRER
BREEEBROAER AR ARET
BEHFMRLE) (BEEFFAI[2013]791

Pursuant to the “Approval on Issuance of Corporate
Bonds of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited”
(Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2013] No. 791) issued by the

CSRC, on August 15, 2013, the Company issued the
corporate bonds aggregated to RMB750,000,000
with a term of maturity of 5 years, embedded with the
option to increase the coupon rate by the issuer and
putable option by the investor at the end of the third
year. The corporate bonds were jointly secured by
Beijing Chaoyang District National Capital Operating
Management Center, a state-owned enterprise, bearing
coupon rate at 5.48% per annum. The issuance
expenses of RMB6,923,208 had been included in the

cost of bonds payable.

SRt - M2013F8A15H » AN
RAITRIEREENNAEITAR
BISETWHRARFAENRE=
FRETA L AZEREEZER
REECREERBENLTES -
ZARBEHFEIATHGEEREE
REEERRL(—RERFA
TE)REETEERELER  F
EFEAR5.48% - MEFHEEAR
#6,923,208 7L 2 5T A JE T EH K
N o
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29. Provision 29 - FEFrERE
Reasons for
2015.12.31 2014.12.31  provision
—E-fE ZE—EF
ltem 1HH +=—A=+—H +=ZA=+—8 FEXERE
Pending litigation RIREF 910,612 910,612 Note 1
A1
Total &5t 910,612 910,612

Note 1: On May 4, 2012, Beijing Baili Tongda Co., Ltd. lodged

proceedings to People's Court of Beijing Chaoyang District
on the collapse of property leased from the Company.
Pursuant to the first-instance judgment awarded by
the court on December 31, 2013, the Company shall
indemnify Beijing Baili Tongda Co., Ltd. against its loss of
RMB910,612, which has been included in provision. Latter
the Company has filed an appeal to Third Intermediate
People's Court of Beijing. As on May 6, 2014, a second-
instance judgment that a retrial is needed has been made
by Beijing Third Intermediate People's Court. The Company
believed the litigation doesn’t have any material adverse
impact on normal operations of the Company at date of

report.

30. Other non-current liabilities

F1: 201265848 - tRAMBERE

BRARFERATEEYEZENS
FEMERTHABEARERESR &
b Rm G EARERKR2013512 7
S1B{EHM—R|HAR - NARERE
ItREMBEREERATNBLARE
910,6127T * st ATERI A& - K2014
F5A16R @ ARF=ZFRARZER
B Z |k - BZERGEEEE -
HEREA  RRXMHEEERBIEE
H oo ARAIBEEEBTIRAZFAGYAR
ARMERCEELBTRATFIEE -

30 - Hitt3ERBAE

2015.12.31 2014.12.31

[tem =)= —E-HF —E—MF

t=A=+—-R| t=A=t—H

Long-term rent payable REEMNES 18,313,517 15,663,227
Deferred income-government granted R — A E

related to assets B VTR T 4 BY 35,862,747 23,516,607

Total A& 54,176,264 39,179,834
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

30. Other non-current liabilities (Continued)

Deferred income includes:

1)

Deferred income was the government grants totaling
RMB4,000,000 received in 2005 from Beijing
Municipal Development and Reform Commission and
Beijing Chaoyang District Finance Bureau to support
the construction of fresh distribution center, fresh
procurement center and distribution center logistics
system. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (15 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2013, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,753,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding for
renovation of energy-saving lamps. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be evenly amortized in the estimated
useful life (5 years) of the related assets, recorded in
the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.
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VL. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

30. Other non-current liabilities (Continued)

©)

In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB14,186,700 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
as a special funding for agriculture-supermarket
jointing program. The deferred income was recognized
upon receipt of the financial allocations. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be amortized in the estimated useful
life (11 and 5 years) of the related assets, recorded in
the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB8,820,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
and as a special funding for service development
program. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (11 and 5 years)
of the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

30 - HihFERBEB (4

)

RRARR2014FZEIRE LT E
BZEEg  tRmHBEBERL
T AR#14,186,7007C AR R B Y
BERNRSEAMNEEES - K

S I M ) R B IR R B RE R
Wik RBBZBMEBEEENER
RSB I FERSFETHE &

HE BT AR B RAREHAERE

.
# o

RARR2014FE W R L RTE
BZEg MM BBERL
T AR %8,820,0007T FA AR # AR
BERREANZEEES - £F
I 1E U B 5% B IR 9 K PR R SRR ST
Wik RBEIBEHEBEENTE
EASFmIIFERSFETHY - #
WEBIAE B RABEBIRMIE

o

Bk
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

30. Other non-current liabilities (Continued)

©)

In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,000,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding for
renovation of energy-saving lamps. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be amortized in the estimated useful life (5
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2014, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
received government grants totaling RMB5,000,000
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as a
special funding for group building sorting equipment.
The deferred income was recognized upon receipt of
the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.
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VL. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

30. Other non-current liabilities (Continued)

7

In 2015, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB8,310,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding
for logistics standardization project. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be amortized in the estimated useful
life (10 and 5 years) of the related assets, recorded in
the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

In 2015, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB5,865,700 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
and as a special funding for upgrading business
facilities program. The deferred income was recognized
upon receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile
the deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would
be amortized in the estimated useful life (5 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

N At BEHREEERE)

30 - HivERBEB(E

7

KA AER2015F £ W E b =
MEBEZEEERAAFTARK
8,310,000 7T A X # ¥ ik 17 %
THRBEEANEEES - A5H
TE W2 B 57 Bt T8 T PR i SRR T
o BREEMBEENEE
S 10F RoFHEITH - HiN
SHT ALY R AL EEBMHIE

9
# o

KRRQAER2015F E W E 46 =
TREBEEESRAATARE
5,865,7007T F 74 & % 7 % 5% 6 I
RBEEENEEES - A5&H
TE W2 B 57 Bt T 485 T PR T SRR T
= EREBEHBAEENTEE
FASEmsFEITHY - BiHemetT
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30. Other non-current liabilities (Continued)

©)

In 2015, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB2,080,000 from Beijing Finance Bureau
as a special funding for renovation of energy-saving
lamps. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (10 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2015, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
received government grants totaling RMB8,730,000
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as
a special funding for logistics standardization project.
The deferred income was recognized upon receipt of
the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 and 5 years) of the related
assets, recorded in the profit and loss in current period

and subsequent related periods.
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VL. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

31. Share capital

N BN BRBRREEERE)

31~ BRA&

Changes in the period

988
Capitalization
Opening  New issue Bonus  of surplus Closing
balance of shares issue reserves Others Subtotal balance
Item & EHL RTHR #k  DESER fifh it BRg
For the year ended at December 31,2015 20155 %
1. State-owned legal person shares 1 EBEARR
Chaoyang Aulary PR 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,400,808
Subtotal of state-owned legal BEEABRN 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
person shares
2. Other domestic-owned shares R
Shares held by domestic non-state BREREEAR 7,204,599 - - - - - 7,204,599
owned legal person
Domestic individual shareholders BRERARR 55,355,593 - - - - - 55355593
3. Foreign listed shares denominated SR ETMWARKIER | 182,160,000 - - - - - 182,160,000
in RMB
Total sheres LN 412,220,000 - - - - - 412,220,000
For the year ended at December 31,2014 20145 %
1. State-owned legal person shares 1 BEEAER
Chaoyang Auxiliary EE 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
Subotal of state-onned legal BREARRT 167,409,808 - - - - - 167409808
person shares
2. Other domestic-owned shares 2 AfbmEsk
Shares held by domestic non-state BREEEEAER 7,094,599 - - - - - T7.094599
owned legal person
Domestic individual shareholders BMERAER 55,365,593 - - - - - 55,355,593
3. Foreign listed shares denominated SEMETMAREMER 182,160,000 - - - - - 182,160,000
in RMB
Totd shares Rl 412220000 s s s s - 4220000
2015 &3
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <  §0fBiHRRxBEA T (&)

(Continued)
32. Capital reserves 32 - EXQNTE
For the year ended at December 31, 2015 20155

Increase in Decrease in
2015.1.1 the period the period 2015.12.31
Item BH —E-RE —E-FE
—A—H REEM rERY +-R=1-H

Capital premium A (B 609,598,028 - - 609,598,028
Equiity transaction with minority HBIRAPHRR
shareholders of subsidiaries fXHER 5 (1,247,845) 262,472 - (985,373)
Other capital reserves HEpBEALNE 695,493 - - 695,493
Total Azt 609,045,676 262,472 - 609,308,148
For the year ended at December 31, 2014 20145 E
Increase in Decrease in
2014.1.1 the period the period 2014.12.31
e Sifa3 —T-QmF
ltem JEH —H—H AREE N AR, +ZA=1+—H
Capital premium A (B 609,598,028 - - 609,598,028
Equity transaction with minority HBIRAPHRR
shareholders of subsidiaries RER 5 498,918 214,130 1,960,893 (1,247,845)
Other capital reserves HuEARE 695,493 = = 695,493
Total A&t 610,792,439 214,130 1,960,893 609,045,676
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <  §0fBiHRRxBEE TR (&)

(Continued)
33. Other comprehensive income 33~ Hivima W
For the year ended at December 31, 2015 2015 F
Changes in the period
Less: Amount
that is
previously
included in
other Attributable
comprehensive to the
income s shareholders  Attributable
transferred to of parent o minority Other
Amount  profitorfoss  Less: Income company  shareholder changes
201511 before tax forth;JZ perlo%g tax expenses after tax after tax (Note) ~ 2015.12.31
I
ALh ,
_ ghia H48
) CR-EE BEAE LN B HELR HEBE Efg9  -3-1f
tem ER il 53 B8 FEHER fiEE  ROERR (@) tzA=t-A
Other comprehensive income that wilbe ﬁﬁﬁ"ﬁs}ﬁ}aﬁm
reclassified to proft or loss T yie
Including; Gains or losses from changes g Tt ECREE
on fair value of avallable-for-sale MEEEDES
financial assets 3,171,000 (724,000 - (181,000) (433,58) (109,415) (638957) 2,098,458
Total At 3,171,000 (724,000 - (181,000 (433,58) (109,415) (638,957) 2,098,458
Note:  Other changes refer to the transformation of the other o EtEBARBVRETESERDH
comprehensive income in the opening balance from that AR K H 4R A& W At ﬁ%ﬁ@’&ﬂﬁ’\]
attributable to the shareholders of parent company to that HAbRE W =F TR o
attributable to minority shareholders.
For the year ended at December 31, 2014 20145 E
Changes in the period
KHER
Less: Amount that
is previously
included in other
comprenensive
income is frans- Attrioutable Atrioutable
ferred to proft fo the parent fo minority
Amount 0r loss for the Less: Income company shareholder
01411 before fax ; peﬁoﬁ% fax expenses alter tax alter tax 0141231
B RIS
) e I B i
tem i -A-8 R fERER 0 R s
Other comprehensive ncome that vl N BESBERRH
be reclassiied to proft orloss L
Including: Gains or losses from changes &b - W E4BAE
on fai value of avalable-for-sale LrEERSER
financial assets 2,632,500 718,000 - 179,500 538,500 - 3,171,000
Total At 2,632,500 718,000 - 179,500 538,500 - 3.171,000
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHzEETE (&)

(Continued)
34. Surplus reserves 34 - BBpNTE
Opening Increase in Decrease in Closing
balance the period the period balance
ltem HH EEEDIE= S ERE N ZHR R HRE
For the year ended at
December 31, 2015 20156 E
Statutory surplus reserve EERBATE | 135,571,025 3,688,909 - 139,259,934 |
For the year ended at
December 31, 2014 20145 E
Statutory surplus reserve ETERBANTE 129,500,819 6,070,206 - 185,571,025
In accordance with Company Law and Company’s Articles BREQAGE AAREERNBRE A
of Association, the Company should appropriate 10% of NAIRFFNER10%IREUEAE B ATE
net profit for the year to the statutory surplus reserve, and & FEEBHBABRIE ALK QR M
the Company can cease appropriation when the statutory BEAR50% A LR - AT EIRER o

surplus reserve accumulated to more than 50% of the paid

in capital.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for the EERBABIRARBHARMNER

loss, expanding operation or increase the paid in capital. BRARIEELE RBEBIENRER -
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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(Continued)

35. Undistributed profits

35 + RO EFHE

Proportion of

Amount appropriation
ltem HH S REEHIIELSH
For the year ended at December 31, 2015 20155 :

Undistributed profits at the beginning of year i%}]ﬂiﬁ@ﬂﬂ bE 493,671,848
Add: Net profit attributable to the e REFRBRE AR
shareholders of the parent company Fr A & 15 ) H
for the year X 24,864,512
Less: Appropriation to statutory W REVETE BB AR
surplus reserve 3,688,909 10%
Ordinary shares’ dividends payable JE A~ i AR AR R 41,222,000
Undistributed profits at the end of the year FRAK D EF)HE 473,625,451
For the year ended at December 31, 2014 20145 :
Undistributed profits at the beginning of year — FE#k 5 Bt F5E 499,634,209
Add: Net profit attributable to the o AERBRE R A
shareholders of the parent company i & W F)E
for the year 41,329,845
Less: Appropriation to statutory B RBUVETE BB ATE
surplus reserve 6,070,206 10%
Ordinary shares’ dividends payable FE A5 3@ AR AR T 41,222,000
Undistributed profits at the end of the year FRK D EFHE 493,671,848
(1) Cash dividend approved and subject to be (1) BEAESEHENFELHENEL
approved in the annual general meeting BF
According to the notice of the annual general meeting R2015F5 7280 @ RIBAD AR
on May 28, 2015, a final dividend of RMBO.1 per share BEEGRE  RRTDE20145F

in respect of year ended December 31, 2014 was

declared and paid to the shareholders of the Company.

The aggregated amount of the final dividend declared

and paid was RMB41,222,000.

According to the notice of the annual general meeting

on May 28, 2014, a final dividend of RMBO.1 per share

in respect of year ended December 31,

2013 was

declared and paid to the shareholders of the Company.

The aggregated amount of the final dividend declared

and paid was RMB41,222,000.

ERF EERAREC10T -
B A AR #41,222,0007T ©

At

RERATN
Al BL20134F
At

201455 281

BREERE - ARD
ERFRERARK0.10T
B FI A A R#41,222,0007T °
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

35. Undistributed profits (Continued)

(1)

)

Cash dividend approved and subject to be

approved in the annual general meeting (Continued)

On 21 March 2016, the directors of the Company
proposed the payment of a dividend of RMBO0.05
per share to shareholders in respect of year ended
December 31, 2015. The proposal of dividend
distribution mentioned above is subject to be approved
by the shareholders at Annual General Meeting of
the Company. This recommendation has not been
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
as a liability. The estimated amount of dividends in

aggregate is RMB20,611,000.

Surplus reserves of subsidiaries

On December 31, 2015, the undistributed profits of
the Group included surplus reserves of subsidiaries
totaling RMB18,450,856 (December 31, 2014:
RMB16,751,363).
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS X - &ffiiHREETE (&)

(Continued)
36. Operating income and operating cost 36 > IR A T KA
(1) Operating income and operating cost (1) EEUARKE
2015 2014
20155 20145 E
Income Cost Income Cost
ltem &R 0N A A AR
Principal operating TEER 10,572,672,272  9,220,663,533 | 10,007,135,311 8,675,578,018
Other operating Hip %7 959,804,975 10,858,269 883,623,577 6,690,135
Total At 11,532,477,247  9,231,521,802 | 10,890,758,888  8,682,268,153
(2) Principal operating income (classified by industry (2) FEXEK(FTH)
segments)
2015 2014
20155 20145
Principal Principal Principal
operating Principal operating operating
income  operating cost income cost

Item JHE TEEBRA  TEEBRAE FEEBBA  FEEBRE
Retall TE 4,608,431,038  3,852,568,439 | 4,673,600,858  3,898,064,199
Wholesale #E 5,944,556,336  5,353,202,348 | 5,313,258,681  4,762,030,550
Others Hith 19,684,898 14,892,746 20,275,772 15,483,269
Total Bt 10,572,672,272  9,220,663,533 | 10,007,135,311  8,675,578,018
The principal operating income mainly consists of FEEBWATEZEAHERMD
selling food, non-staple food, daily consumer goods, Bl AAEESR - RBAA
beverages and wines etc. ZEISHIWA
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <  §0fBiHRRxBEA T (&)

(Continued)
36. Operating income and operating cost (Continued) 36 - BEIMAFBRERA(Z)
(3) Operating income of the Group's top five customers 3 REAFEEEFHEERAET
For the year ended at December 31, 2015 2015 E
Proportion of the
total operating
Operating income of the
income Group (%)
ERRAeDEE
ltem BH EEL 0N W X B9 EE 51 (%)
Wu-mart ME 1,119,275,624 10
Jingdong RE 780,753,800 7
Walmart (China) Investment Co., Ltd. REB(FE)REBRAR 259,469,376 2
Carrefour RéE 253,537,682 2
Jumei International Holdings Limited KERZBRREBRAT 219,445,230 2
Total Sl 2,632,481,712 23
For the year ended at December 31, 2014 20145 E
Proportion of the
total operating
Operating income of the
income Group (%)
ERAIZHEE
ltem R EEWA Y N B Ef81(%)
Wu-mart VIES 969,699,218 9
Beijing Yonghui Superstores Co., Ltd. IRKBRMABRAT 432,723,945 4
Carrefour RET 227,081,805 2
Walmart (China) Investment Co., Ltd. R (PE)REBRAA 185,475,743 2
Lotte Supermarket Co., Ltd. #REMERLA 154,926,875 1
Total o 1,969,907,586 18
37. Business tax and surcharges 37 - EEBI SR
2015 2014
ltemn g 20155 & 2014F %
Business tax BER 48,349,534 44,535,175
Consumption tax HER 2,594,283 3,006,664
City construction and maintenance tax B R 26,304,173 23,875,097
Others Eit 11,544 119,647
Total At 77,259,534 71,536,583

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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(Continued)
38. Selling expenses 38 EXEH
2015 2014
ltemn R 20156 E 2014F %
Wages and salaries BT 513,547,494 411,907,512
Depreciation and amortization expenses NERBHER 191,556,440 196,598,581
Lease expenses HEEA 233,378,270 230,777,827
Others Hif 772,997,111 749,488,834
Total &t 1,711,479,315 1,5688,772,754
39. Administrative expenses 39 - EEHEH
2015 2014
ltemn ER 2015 & 20145 %
Wages and salaries B THE 210,501,248 208,371,470
Depreciation and amortization expenses WEREHER 7,224,770 8,708,088
Others Hif 51,486,222 51,624,325
Total &t 269,212,240 268,703,883
40. Financial expenses 40 - BIEEH
2015 2014
ltem HA 20155 20145
Interest expenses FEXH 162,040,993 184,994,201
Including: Interest expenses of bank loans Hep : ERSEREEMRTT
to be reimbursed in 5 years BRFEZE 120,826,826 143,448,406
Interest expenses of bonds BHEFEXH 41,214,167 41,545,795
Less: Capitalized interest expenses B FIEEA e 95,153 237,556
Interest income FBEWA (20,169,520) (22,156,793)
Bank charges RITFEE 9,634,595 8,112,971
Exchange losses (gains) B i e 292,170 277,518
Total &3t 151,703,085 170,990,341
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(Continued)
41. Impairment losses on assets 1 - EEREEX
2015 2014
Item JEH 20155 K 20145 E
Provision/(Reversal) of bad debt ZERBARR/(EM) (136,663) (2,462,750)
Written-down of inventories FTERERK 400,454 292,801
Total At 263,791 (2,169,949)
42. Investment income 42 ~ BE W
2015 2014
Item A 2015588 20145
Investment income from short-term financial products T2 2 R AU 1,008,676 3,035,749
Interest income from borrowings BEFEFSHRA - 6,461,136
Investment income from holding available-for-sale HHESHEERRS
financial assets during holding period HRMNERE R 70,000 -
Total At 1,073,676 9,496,885
43. Non-operating income 43 ~ EEIMIEA
(1) Details of non-operating income (1) EEIPURABHMT :
2015 2014
ltemn JEH 20155 E 20145 E
Total gains on disposal of non-current assets ~ ERBHEEREMEAS 37,143 8,313
Including: Gains on disposal of fixed assets ~ Ef : AFEEREAE 37,143 8,313
Government grants THEB 22,922,004 14,748,891
Others Hit 3,540,969 2,410,471
Total At 26,500,116 17,167,675
(2) Details of government grants (2) BFFEBIEA
2015 2014
ltem A 20155 20145 %
Compensation for government reserve expenses BT 1E 2 FfEH 1,044,000 2,088,000
Subsidies for the enterprise staff training SBRERE T 5% - 553,384
Subsidies to ease the employment pressure  4E &R gt £ B N #EB5 3,499,578 2,119,024
Amortization of government grants related BEERENBAHE
to assets in current year REEH 9,658,482 8,233,799
Others Hib ek 8,719,944 1,754,684
Total At 22,922,004 14,748,891

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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(Continued)
44. Non-operating expenses 44 ~ EENLTH
2015 2014
ltemn 5E 20156 & 2014 %
Total losses on disposal of non-current assets FRBEERBIRLS:T 2,810,021 2,082,512
Including: Losses on disposal of fixed assets Hi: ArAERERX 2,810,021 2,082,512
Fine Hika 124,138 23,294
Others Hit 2,298,000 2,712,538
Total &3t 5,232,159 4,818,344
45. Income tax expenses 45 - RSB H
(1) Details of income tax expenses (1) FrE#Em#E
2015 2014
Item EH 20155 E 20145
Current income tax expense calculated B RBRRTE
in accordance with tax laws and HENEHMEH
relevant requirements 47,045,138 56,405,631
Deferred income tax EREFMEHER (6,011,655) (12,764,783)
Total &t 41,033,483 43,640,848
(2) Reconciliation between income tax expenses and (2) EAFEEFEHERARER
accounting profit
2015 2014
ltem BE 20155 & 20145
Accounting profit @=HE 113,379,113 132,508,339
Income tax expenses calculated at R25%MB R ERSTE R
tax rate of 25% 28,344,778 33,125,835
Effect of non-deductible expenses TAENERNTE 4,350,877 4,302,071
Effect of non-taxable income BEERWANTE (754,699) (1,167,542)
Effect of using deductible losses of previously | F Al HﬂﬂiﬁEwLLPﬁ %R
unrecognized deferred tax assets BEMAENEBNYE (695,704) -
Effect of deductible temporary difference or ~ RHERELFTEHEEL
deductible losses of unrecognized MEMER M Z 2
deferred tax assets AEMEERNTE 9,289,690 6,580,484
Effect of adjusting the previous years’ AR EEAERANTE
income tax 498,541 -
Tax effect of interest income of related BHHESHE ‘%ﬁﬂ
party borrowings FIERAR B2 - 800,000
Income tax &t 41,033,483 43,640,848
2015 &3
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

46. Net profit

The Group’s net profit is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Item EH

Cost of goods sold BmHENA
Depreciation of investment properties 1% &1 EHIEN &
Depreciation of fixed assets ETEENE
Amortization of intangible assets EVEESH

Amortization of leasehold improvements 48 &\ B E & B R X

Total of depreciation and amortization ~ #rE E#HA
Net losses on disposal of non-current  JERBIEERE FEX
assets
Net rental income of investment REMREHERESFHA
properties
Staff costs BIGHER
Including: Directors and supervisors' ~ Hi : % « B
emoluments
Other staff costs: HA 8 TR -
Wages or salaries and social I%  HeRHeRERA
security costs
Basic retirement insurance EAEZRBRE
Audit expenses R G

N AHMBHERAEERE)

46

et

(vI) 36
(vI) 8
(V)9
(Vi) 11
(Vi) 13

(VI) 43,44

(VI) 21

» FAE
REEHFE MBI

I8

2015
20155

9,220,663,533
6,638,215
125,157,096
9,470,121
69,118,345
210,383,777

2,772,878

(19,311,182)
731,829,202

5,438,276
659,418,538

66,972,388
2,558,435

R GEAV AT &

2014
20145 E

8,675,578,018
5,112,253
126,903,836
10,158,843
73,494,905
215,669,837

2,074,199

(19,913,353)
628,860,680

5,122,701
569,318,963

64,419,016
3,129,008

47. Calculation process of basic earnings per share and

47 EXZRUBENHEESRUENTE

diluted earnings per share wmiE
While calculating basic earnings per share, net profit AEERAGRIEER - BEBREBEREK
attributable to ordinary shareholders for the current year is ROEHFFNEA
as follows:
2015 2014

Item A 20155 E 20145 E
Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders FERL BRGNS BEFE

for the current year 24,864,512 41,329,845
Including: Net profit from continuing operations i BERFELCEN TN 24,864,512 41,329,845
While calculating basic earnings per share, the denominator AEERNGRIEER - 2 AEITEIN

is the weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding and its calculation process is as follows:

ltem EH

BITESNE BB

Number of ordinary shares outstanding

BB e I8 FHESENT

2015 2014
2015 & 20145 E
412,220,000 412,220,000

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < 8B HREETE(Z)
(Continued)

47. Calculation process of basic earnings per share and

48.

47 - EXZRBENHESRUBENTE

diluted earnings per share (Continued) BRR(E)
Earnings per share FRIKE
2015 2014

ltem HE 20155 20145 %
Calculated based on net profit and net profit from HEBNRATIREAERNER

continuing operations attributable to shareholders ~ FENB R AIRENHELE

of the parent company FRERE
Basic earnings per share EARG R 0.06 0.10
Diluted earnings per share iteastilen N/A N/A
At date of report, the Company had no dilutive potential HEHmRXA  AREAEREMNE
ordinary shares. TiEAR -

Items in the cash flow statement

(1) Other cash received relating to operating activities

)

48 - RERBRIEE

(1) KRERMELLZHEBANEE

2015 2014
ltem EH 20156 E 20146 &
Income of rent AeMA 176,817,693 179,733,121
Income of scrap sales BERBA 2,916,833 3,080,221
Income of franchise MEBEMRA 2,374,343 2,183,397
Income of government grant BHE B A 13,263,522 6,515,092
Recovered deposit WeEE 2,705,323 607,983
Others Hih 59,333,716 20,962,354
Total A3t 257,411,430 213,082,168

Other cash paid relating to operating activities

(2) XNEMELETHEBNEE

2015 2014
ltem 58 20155 20145
Selling expenses (excluding rent) 2EER(T2HL) 772,903,674 749,592,647
Administrative expenses EEEA 31,203,199 32,422,184
Manufacturing costs BEERA 3,766,864 3,808,283
Rent YIS 234,469,384 231,202,156
Deposit and margin IRHeRES 5,962,629 1,755,607
Bank charges RITFES 9,601,633 6,846,761
Others Hith 42,813,301 7,215,948
Total At 1,100,720,684 1,032,843,586

2015 &R
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(Continued)
49. Supplementary information to the cash flow 49 - BHERERBRER
statement
(1) Supplementary information to the cash flow (1) EHREZHEEH
statement
‘ 2015 2014
Supplementary information BRER 20156 20145
1. Reconciliation of net profits and cash flow 1, H%/ﬂ”fiﬁ*n i REEED
from operating activities: RETE ¢
Net profits ﬂa‘ﬂ ﬁ . 72,345,630 88,862,491
Add: Provision for impairment losses on assets e RNEEREES 263,791 (2,169,949)
Depreciation of fixed assets EEAENE 125,157,096 126,903,836
Depreciation of investment properties REUEHENE 6,638,215 5,112,253
Amortization of intangible assets EVAESH 9,470,122 10,158,843
Amortization of long-term prepaid expenses REFEBREY 69,937,583 73,494,905
Net losses on disposal of fixed assets, intangible REETEE BVAE
assets and other long-term assets HMEM KA ENTE 2,772,878 2,074,199
Financial expenses(including exchange YHER(ZELER)
losses(gains)) ) 142,068,490 162,877,370
Losses arising from investments REB% N (1,073,676) (9,496,885)
Amortization of government grants related to HEEERRBTENES
assets in current year (9,658,482) (8,233,799)
Increase in deferred tax liabilties BRAEHAGBMEN (2,728,194) (937,874)
Decrease in deferred tax assets BILAEHAENAY (3,464,461) (11,826,909
Decrease (Increase) in inventories HFERRDCREm) (89,660,580) (2,928,775)
Decrease in operating receivables REERIAR AR (848,084,395) (115,996,946)
Increase in operating payables At I I8 E FIE 566,287,646 83,352,462
Net cash flows from operating activities %'”}Eéﬂéiﬁ’\]fﬁﬂuié‘%ﬁ 40,271,663 401,245,222
2. Net changes in cash and cash equivalents: 2. B RREEEMFETER
Closing balance of cash ReMERNS 574,168,439 521,621,307
Less: Opening balance of cash R RERNENRE 521,621,307 589,553,313
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ~ E& kB2 SEMFEM(RD)E 52,547,132 (67,932,006)
(2) Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries 2) AFEZHHREFAANELFE
2015 2014
Item HH 20155 20145
Cash and cash equivalents paid for enterprise AR I )P EA BRRE
merger in current year TRMRLIREFEY
Including: Beijing Shangzhen Food Co. Ltd. ﬁﬁF it)?\h Eunﬁ RA7] 5,050,000 -
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries ARENOR S FE 5,050,000 =
(3) Cash and cash equivalents 3 HERBELEZEEYHIEA
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E-1f —E-mE
ltem BE +=A=+-H +=ZRA=+-H
Cash Be
Including: Cash on hand HEw:BHEES 23,271,277 28,868,213
Bank deposits on demand ATREE R T A RIRITTE R 550,897,162 492,753,094
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents & KIR&EEWHHE 574,168,439 521,621,307
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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50. Net current assets

50 - FRBEE

2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—B-I¥ “T-mF
Item A tT=RA=1-H tZA=t+-H
Current assets MBEE 5,885,553,645 4,766,324,066
Less: Current liabilties W ORBafE 5,458,024,515 4,261,812,114
Net current assets FREEE 427,529,130 504,511,952
51. Total assets less current liabilities 51 - REERTBERE
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—B-nf —T-mE
ltem BH +=A=1+-H +-A=+—H
Total assets BERRE 8,370,770,402 7,241,503,098
Less: Current liabilities B RBEaE 5,458,024,515 4,261,812,114
Total assets less current liabilties BAERRBAR 2,912,745,887 2,979,690,984
52. Foreign currency monetary items 52 ~ SNEEHMIRR
(1) Foreign currency monetary items (1) MEEHMER
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
“2-I%t=-A=t-H “T-mE+ZA=t—H
Closing Closing
balance in Closing balance in Closing
foreign Exchange balance foreign Exchange balance
currency rate in RMB currency rate in RMB
% K
ltem BH SMEERE THEEZ  ARBHRE IR EEX  AREHE
Cash and cash ~ E¥E4
equivalents 6,042,824 723,926
Including: USD  He : £7T 2,482 6.4936 16,117 482 6.1245 2,952
EUR BT 822,683 7.1533 5,884,898 96,412 7.4556 718,809
HKD BT S = - 414 0.7889 327
GBP HiE 193 9.6159 1,856 193 9.56233 1,838
AUD BT 30,000 4.6651 139,953 - - -
(2) Description of Foreign Operational Entity (2) EIEEERFAN

In October 2015, Chaopi Maolisheng (Hongkong) REBF AR RANBERNDE
BN 2 FRRFBEFA(FE)
BRARN20156F10 A ERE BT
& TELEHMURES -
LABRTT A BR AN B ©

Company Limited, a subsidiary of Beijing Chaopi
Trading Company Limited which is a subsidiary of
the Group incorporated in Hongkong, PRC where the
new company mainly operates, thus it use EUR as the

functional currency.
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Vil. CHANGES IN THE CONSOLIDATION SCOPE + AOtEHENEE
1. Business combinations involving enterprises not 1 EE—EHTRESH

under common control

(1) Business combinations involving enterprises not (1) FFEBRERIFR—ZHTLFEEHE

under common control in current year

Income of  Net profit of
the acquiree  the acquiree
between between
acquisition  acquisition
dateand the ~ date and the

Proportion of end of end of
Acquisition  equity interest the year the year
Acquisition date ~ cost of equity  acquired(%) Acaquisition method Recognition basis of the BERZE  BEAEE
Aequiree of equity interest interest RE ofequityinterest  Acquisition date ~ acquisition date KHBEF  KHEER
LEENES RERSRE REBGHA  BEHH) REREH BER BERNERHE weA  BEE
Beiing Chaopi Xinyishangzhen Food  November 17, 2015 RMB300,000 60 Cash November 17, 2015 Equity interest purchasing 1,060,474 81349
Compeny Limkted (*¥inyishanghen’) ~ 2015%11 4178 NET FEEE N15E1A7A contractin force, fuly paid and
RSN LY RRERLA the acquire Under contol
(ATERHZRY)) REBE BB U2 EE
EVRETIE e e
Befing Shangzhen Food Company ~ November 23, 2015 RMB5,050,000 100 Cash Noverber 23, 2015 Equity interest purchasing 9,699,391 (82.3%0)
Limited (*Shangzhen Food!) N15E11A2A 50587 FEE 016E11A2A  contractin force, ul peid and
FRFPRRARLT the acquire under contol
(XM Rl ﬁﬁlu”uJ) HEBEREENURN2TEE

B EAHRER TR

(2) Cost of combination and goodwill 2) BHAEAREE
Xinyishanghen Shangzhen Food
ltems EH HZHY AT HERBLT
Cost of combination ARA

- Cash -B% 300,000 5,050,000
Total AORASE 300,000 5,050,000

Less: The fair value of identifiable net assets i : RUEMAI R FAE DL BEMNE
acquired in the business combination 300,299 5,102,123

Goodwill/The amount that the combination & /At A/ NAEUS #) ] 9432
cost less than the fair value of identifiable BEREMABENENSE
net assets acquired (299) (52,123)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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under common control (Continued)

3

Identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquire at

the acquisition date

t - EOHEENSEE)

FE—EHTEEEH(E)

(3 BEELREEATHZEE
aE

Xinyishanghen Shangzhen Food
HZHY AT HEBRAT

Fair values  Carry amount Fair values  Carry amount

at the at the at the at the

acquisition date acquisition date acquisition date acquisition date

ltem EH BEAAAEE BEAREEE BEBAAEE BEARHEE
Assets: BE:

Cash and bank balances EREe 2,000 2,000 160,223 160,223

Accounts receivable e A - - 2,272,422 2,272,422

Inventories FE - - 6,516,560 6,464,854

Other current assets Hitm#EE - - 969,724 969,724

Fixed assets ETEE = - 395,107 394,768

Construction in progress rEIR 20,220,623 20,220,623 7,216,809 7,216,809
Liabilities: BE:

Accounts payable BT 30E 19,722,125 19,722,125 12,428,722 12,428,722

Deferred tax liabilities ERFEHAR - - - -

Net assets FEE 500,498 500,498 5,102,123 5,050,078

Less: Minority interests B DERRER 200,199 200,199 = =
Assets: BE:

Net assets acquired BGHFEE 300,299 300,299 5,102,123 5,050,078

Other reasons of changes in the consolidation scope

In the current period ended at December 31, 2015,
Beijing Jingkelong Vocational Training School, Beijing
Chaopi Zhaoyang E-commerce Company Limited, Chaopi
Maolisheng (Hongkong) Company Limited, Beijing Chaopi
Tianshi Information Technology Company Limited, and
Beijing Jingkelong Haotian Hotel Management Company
Limited, new subsidiaries established by the Company, the
Company’s subsidiary Beijing Chaopi Trading Company
Limited, the Company’s subsidiary Beijing Maolisheng
Company Limited, the Company’s subsidiary Beijing Chaopi
Trading Company Limited, and the Company’s subsidiary
Beijing Jingkelong Shouchao Commercial Company Limited,
joint in the consolidation scope, and details were referred to

Note (VIII) 1.

2 -

Htt RERNSHEEL2D

RERIAKFARIERTABER
EEBEREEIEIIER - L REAREE
ERBEFEABERAGR - AREFITE
BERRAR - ERBRRFESRKE
RAR - ERRERRREEERAR
NAE DR RREEEEEERD
ERABEATF - FAALRAREE
RHBRAR ~ FRRLLRAREFIT
BEARDA - FARMERBUHER

BABERAR  FRARLRAREEBE
¥ERARIEERY - ABERZEHK
[E AN I

2015 &R
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VIIl. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES N EHMERPHERS
1. Equity in subsidiaries 1 EFARHHESR
(1) Components of the Company (1) TEEFHERL
Place of Nature of Registered
Subsidiary Type incorporation  business capital
FRAEH FARER Bl EBHE HfEx
Beijing Jingkelong (Langfang) Co., Ltd.(Jingkelong Langfang) Limited company Langfang, PRC  Retail 80,000,000
ERREE (B BRAR A TSR REEBS)) ARELARA By TEZ
Beijing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain Co., Ltd.(Jingkelong Tongzhou) Limited company Beijing, PRC Retal 29,000,000
FRREEETEEARAAATHR REERNM]) BREALE R TEX
Beijing Xinyang Tongli Commercial Facilities Co,.Ltd. (Xinyang Tongli) Limited company Beijing, PRC Manufacture 10,000,000
FRRBBNEEREERARCATERRGBEN)) ARELARA R RER
Beijing Jingkelong Shouchao Commercial Co., Ltd.(Shoulian Supermarket) Limited company Beijing, PRC Retall 398,453,439
FRREEEEEEARAAA TR HEm]) BREALE R TEX
Beijing Shoulian Jiulong Supermarket Co., Ltd(Shoulian Jiulong) Limited company Beijing, PRC Retall 10,000,000
IREHAEETERATATERE EHAE]) BREALT R TEZ
Beijing Jingkelong Haotian Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (Haotian Hotel)  Limited company Beijing, PRC Hospitality 5,000,000
FRREERREEERARAR AT HR EREE]) ARAA R BERES
Beijing Jingkelong Vocational Training School (Training School) Institutional Beijing, PRC Training 500,000
organization
ItRmHGRREEREREEI RO TEREIER]) ES TN R sl
Beijing Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Trading) Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 500,000,000
EREHAEROERAR A THER AHEE]) RipBRAR] R BEx
Beijing Chaopi Shuanglong Alcohol Sales Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Shuanglong)*  Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 110,160,000
R R R HEERE AR A TR A E8 ))r BREEAT R BEx
Beijing Chaopi Huaging Beverage Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Huaging)* Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 80,000,000
R EEEHEERAR (O THE A ER]) BREEAT IR BEx
Beijing Chaopi Flavourings, Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Flavouring)* Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 50,000,000
ERmEBRAEREAR A TEE A ERR ) BREEAT IR BE%
Beijing Chaopi Jinglong Qil Sales Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Oil Sales)* Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 36,000,000
RS R EER AR (A T HE AR ) EREMRF IR BE%
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N EHMEERNERE)
1. Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) 1 EFATRDHIERE)
(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) TEEFHEL(E)

Place of Nature of Registered
Subsidiary Type incorporation  business capital
FARER FRREY it EBHE aEE
Shijiazhuang Chaopi Xinlong Trading Co., Ltd.* Limited company Shijiazhuang, Wholesale 5,000,000

PRC
RRERSREEHEERAR ARELAF aE L BEx
Qingdao Chaopi Jinlong Trading Co., Ltd. Limited company Qingdao, PRC ~ Wholesale 5,000,000
ERAREREERAR" ARELRT 75 iR
Beijing Chaopi Zhongde Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Zhongde)* Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 50,000,000
I REHREHEERAF A THRE AR E]) ARELRF IR BEz
Beijing Chaopi Huilong Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Huilong)* Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 24,000,000
EREHEERZERD A (A TR HtERE]) BREMLAT IR i
Taiyuan Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Taiyuan)* Limited company Taiyuan, PRC Wholesale 15,000,000
AREHAEERAR AT ERIARAR]) BREMLAT AR BEz
Tangshan Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd.* Limited company Tangshan, PRC  Wholesale 5,000,000
BLAKBEERAR BREMLAT El BE%
Tianjin Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd.* Limited company Tianjin, PRC Wholesale 15,000,000
REAYHZERAR BREMLAT P BEz
Chaopi Yuli Trading Co., Ltd.™ Limited company Beiing, PRC Wholesale 24,000,000
A RTEEERAR BREMLAT IR BEz
Chaopi Fangsheng Trading Co., Ltd.” Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 20,000,000
GREHAEBEERDA AREMLAT IR BEE
Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Jinan)* Limited company Jinan, PRC Wholesale 26,000,000
ERAHMER SRR A (A TR AitEE]) BREMLAT Em BEz
Beijing Chaopi Shenglong Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Shenglong)* Limited company Beiing,PRC Wholesale 20,000,000
SRR EERBER DA (A TR Fitakke ) AREMEAR iR Bz
Beijing Chaopi Tianhua Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Tianhua)* Limited company Beiing, PRC Wholesale 10,000,000
FRERRERZERARATHB B RE]) AREMEAR IR ik
2015 3§
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N FEHMEEPERE)
1. Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) 1 EFATRHHERE)
(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) TEEFHEHL(E)

Place of Nature of Registered
Subsidiary Type incorporation  business capital
FARER FARER Bl EHME HfEx
Datong Chaopi Beichen Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Datong)* Limited company Datong, PRC Wholesale 26,000,000
ARSI REEERAF (A TERE AR AR BREALH AR i
Datong Chaopi Ant Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Ant)™ Limited company Datong, PRC Retall 5,000,000
ARSHBEEZERAT AT B B EE])~ BREALE AR TEX
Tangshan Chaopi Baishun Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Baishun)* Limited company Tangshan, PRC ~ Wholesale 30,000,000
EWSHBEERER AR (A TERE A EIE]) BREALF Ell ik
Beijing Chaopi Maolisheng Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Maolisheng)* Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 75,000,000
LR KHATEBRAR (AT HBI AR ) BREALT IR BEE
Hongkong Chaopi Asia Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Hongkong)*™ Limited company Hongkong, PRC ~ Wholesale HKD10,000
EARRENERAR A TEEARES ) BREALT 3 BEE 710,000
Beijing Qumeiba Information Technology Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Qumeiba)* Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 1,000,000
FREFEEERBERAAATHRBI AR ERE]) BREEAT IR ik
Beijing Chaopi Shengshi Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Shengshi)* Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 25,000,000
REH AL A EERAF (A TR Hstat ) BREEAT IR BEE
Beijing Chaopi Zhaoyang E-commerce Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Zhaoyang)* Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 20,000,000
IR RBEEEFEBERAT A TERE RG] BREAAH IR HEE
Beijing Chaopi Xinyishangzhen Food Co., Ltd. (*Xinyishanghen”)* Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 40,000,000
IRSHH HRRBRAR AT ERFoms ) BREEAT IR i
Beijing Shangzhen Food Co., Ltd. (“Shangzhen Food")* Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 5,000,000
IRV RRERARATERE WL RR])™ BREEAT IR BE%
Chaopi Maolisheng (Hongkong) Co., Ltd. (“Maolisheng Hongkong”) ** Limited company Hongkong, PRC  Wholesale HKD10,000
BHEFIFEEERAR (AT B BRI ARAA i BE% 710,000
Beijing Chaopi Tianshi Information Technology Co., Ltd. Limited company Beiing, PRC Wholesale 20,000,000

(“Chaopi Tianshi")™
EREHREE SR EARAR (AT HREHHAE]) ARAT IR ik
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

1. Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

(1) Components of the Company (Continued)

Subsidiary
FRRER

Beijing Jingkelong (Langfang) Co., Ltd.
(Jingkelong Langfang)
TRREE(RS)ERAR
(AT BRI REEmH)

Beiing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain Co., Ltd.
(Jingkelong Tongzhou)
FRREERmEEER AT
(AT TR REEEN |)

Beijing Xinyang Tongli Commercial Facilties Co,.Ltd.
(Xinyang Tongl)

IRRERNEEREERAT
(ATBRIREEN])

Beijing Jingkelong Shouchao Commercial Co., Ltd.
(Shoulian Supermarkef)
IRREEEERERRAR
(AT BRI B )

Beijing Shoulian Jiulong Supermarket Co., Ltd
(Shoulian Jilong)
FRERAERTARAA
(AT BRI ERAE])

Beijing Jingkelong Haotian Hotel
Management Co., Ltd. (Haotian Hotel)

IRREEERBEERARAA
(ATERIZAEE])

Beiing Jingkelong Vocational Training School
(Training School)

IRPEREREEREBEEIEN
(AP eI IR )

Beiing Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Trading)
TrBHAERAERADATHRBHEE])

Beiing Chaopi Shuanglong Alcohol Sales Co., Ltd.
(Chaopi Shuanglong)*

FRmBHEEEE HERRRA
(AT BRI A )

B FS R I ot
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N~ EHEM TP AR (F)

1+ EFATPHERE)
(1) EHREBMAPMA ()
Proportion  Proportion Whether
of ownership  of voting consolidated
Scope of business interests (%)  power (%) or not Notes
KR RAE RA
feqE $4(%) whl%) AfER B
Retail of general merchandise 100 100 Yes
ZERY OFERM Ao HERE <
Retail of general merchandise 100 100 Yes
ZERY ORER RO HRERE &
Production of plastic packing materials and installation 5.66 55.66 Yes Note 7
and maintenance of commercial equipment
MTEEE : %R - HREMEH - & Eidl
PHARHRENRRREE
Retall of general merchandise 100 100 Yes
ZERE ORER Ao HERE &
Retail of general merchandise 100 100 Yes
ZERY ORER AW HERE &
Hotel management, food and beverage, and leasing 100 100 Yes Note 11
EEER  BHER  tAAZRR 7 i1
Training of shop assistant 100 100 Yes New established
during the
current
period
= EhH IS R
Wholesale of general merchandise 79.85 79.85 Yes
BERY  OFER Rm - HER3 7
Wholesale of beverages 4711 50.00 Yes
HE B 7
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N EHMERPNER(E)

1. Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) 1 EFARHHERE)

(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) TEEFHEHL(E)

Proportion  Proportion Whether
of ownership  of voting  consolidated
Subsidiary Scope of business interests (%)  power (%) or not Notes
by RAE RA
FRAER EegE HAI%)  who) afER BE
Beiing Chaopi Huaging Beverage Co., Ltd. Wholesale of drinks and food 42,66 5343 Yes Note 1
(Chaopi Huaging)*
IrBREEERARLA fERe SRS (RREEEFTH & it
(TR SRR ERR)
Beijing Chaopi Flavourings, Co., Ltd. Wholesale of edible oil and food 42,03 52,63 Yes
(Chaopi Flavouring)*
IRmBsrnEREALA fEEnsn BAm RRR HRa R
(AT R[Stk ) HE(RREZEFTERR)
Beiing Chaopi Jinglong Qil Sales Co., Ltd. Wholesale of edible ol 4330 54.28 Yes
(Chaopi Oil Sales)*
KRB FEEEHEARAR BEETREAR  BANDRARRHR R’
(TR B R )
Shijiazhuang Chaopi Xinlong Trading Co., Ltd.* Wholesale of alcoholic beverages 79.85 100 Yes
RS REEEERAT HERRES A0 DENEE 7
(RREZEAEERR)
Qingdao Chaopi Jinlong Trading Co., Ltd. Wholesale of alcoholic 79.85 100 Yes
B BEAZARAT HEAREE - Am - AERES &
VRGEETELE
Beijing Chaopi Zhongde Trading Co., Ltd. Wholesale of consumer sanitary products 79.85 100 Yes
(Chaopi Zhongde)*
RS EHEARAR WEARG X - Gk - TE8% 7
(A TERI S E]): REBENARERS
Beiiing Chaopi Hulong Trading Co., Ltd. Wholesale of alcoholic beverages 62.08 77.75 Yes Note 2
(Chaopi Huilong)*
TR ERBEARAT BEERAD & 2
(A TBRIBHERE])
Taiyuan Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Taiyuan)*  Wholesale of general merchandise 79.85 100 Yes Note 5
AR EEERAT HEBARRR BRAY  1ERE - & 5
(AT BRIBHAR]) AERE - KA RERENERRE
Tangshan Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd.* Wholesale of general merchandise 79.85 100 Yes
NG HERREE ) R0 EREE £
(RBEEEFAEEERIN)
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VIIl. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) NS EHM R RS ()
1. Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) 1 EFATRDHIERE)
(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) TEEFHEL(E)

Proportion  Proportion Whether
of ownership  of voting consolidated

Subsidiary Scope of business interests (%) power (%) or not Notes
FRRER fe4E $L(%) whl%) AftER B
Tianjin Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd.* Wholesale of general merchandise 79.85 100 Yes
REFHERERAA HRAREE - Am - AERES &
(RRGZEFAMER RS

Chaopi Yuli Trading Co., Ltd.* Wholesale of general merchandise 30.31 70 Yes Note 6
LR HHAEERAA HEBRAE  RRRHE & 6

VAN ClE i
Chaopi Fangsheng Trading Co., Ltd.™ Wholesale of general merchandise 56.90 70 Yes Note 8
IrBraEgaRARD HERRRE KRR  LeRERERE & i8
Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Jinan)*  Wholesale of general merchandise 51.90 65 Yes
BRAMEREARAT HERRRE  ARHERH &

(AT Rl ER))
Beijng Chaopi Shenglong Trading Co., Ltd. Wholesale of package service, packed food 47.11 59 Yes

(Chaopi Shenglong)* and storage service
IR EHRERAR REEa%AR  ARRE  2HES &

VSN ClE i)
Bejing Chaopi Tianhua Trading Co., Ltd. Wholesale of package service, packed food 42.66 5343 Yes

(Chaopi Tianhua)* and storage service
REHRERERRAA BEERRAR - ARRE - 2ERH &

(A TERIARRE])
Datong Chaopi Beichen Trading Co., Ltd. Wholesale of package service, packed food 56.90 70 Yes

(Chaopi Datong)* and storage service
AR REEARAT HERARRG  ARRE - 2ERY =

(AT BRI ARARL)
Datong Chaopi Ant Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Ant)™  Wholesale of package service, packed food 56.90 100 Yes

and storage service

ARBHEEERERAT 2ERY R4 BRED  ERREE &

(AT BRI EE )"
Tangshan Chaopi Baishun Trading Co., Ltd. Wholesale of package service, packed food 56.90 70 Yes

(Chaopi Baishun* and storage service
B BRERARAA BERRR  ERXAm EREE. R

(TR AR BrezREERGS
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N EHMERPHNER(E)

1. Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) 1 EFATRHHERE)

(1) Components of the Company (Continued)

(1) BFEBLEL(HE)

Proportion  Proportion  Whether
of ownership  of voting  consolidated
Subsidiary Scope of business interests (%) powgr }&(;é) or not Notes
iR
FREER HEEIH $A(%) H4(%) Aﬁ%i&% et
Beijing Chaopi Maolisheng Trading Co., Ltd. Wholesale of general merchandise 51.90 65 Yes Note 9
(Chaopi Maolisheng)*
IRE RN AAERRAR HERRR HOEm  RE 78R8 I i9
(ATl B ) tIER( P ek En)%
Hongkong Chaopi Asia Co., Ltd. Merchandise trading 4203 100 Yes
(Chaopi Hongkong)™
EABHTNERAA Angh R
(AT R EE )"
Beiing Qumeiba Information Technology Co., Ltd. ~ Wholesale of cosmetics 51.90 65 Yes Note 3
(Chaopi Qume|ba)
IREEREEHAERAT hais 7 i3
(AT 2= )
Bejing Chaopi Shengshi Trading Co., Ltd. Wholesale of cosmetics 51.90 65 Yes Note 4
(Chaopi Shengshi*
FRAREEFRARAT {tHhatEs R i
(AT Sl SApt ekt )
Beijing Chaopi Zhaoyang E-commerce Co., Ltd. Wholesale of general merchandise 79.85 100 Yes New established
(Chaopi Zhaoyang)* during the
current
period
IRERBEEETARERAR BEBRE #9485 k% 1ERE- & Bt i
(A TER SRR tIEn(P ekt En)%
Beiiing Chaopi Xinyishangzhen Food Co., Ltd. Wholesale of food, packed food and dairy product 47.91 60 Yes New established
(*Kinyishanghen”)* during the
current
period
TR HY RaER HERD MEERERG AE & b i
(A BRI )
Beijing Shangzhen Food Co., Ltd. Wholesale of nuts products (baking class), candied fruit, 47.91 100 Yes New established
(‘Shangzhen Food")™ and fruit products (dried fruit products). during the
current
period
IRy ARARAA EEDERnRERUR(RIE) B & TEE
(A TEBREE RG] KRER(KRTER)E
Chaopi Maolisheng (Hongkong) Co., Ltd. Wholesale of import and export trading, cosmetics, food, 5190 100 Yes New established
(‘Maolisheng Hongkong'™ storage and electronic devices during the
current
period
SHANERERAT EHNES fim  Rm - BESH & A
(AT 87 (ﬁmﬂ%l) Rt BH ETER
Beijing Chaopi Tianshi Information Technology Co., ~ Wholesale of cosmetics, food and general merchandise 79.85 100 Yes Note 10
Ltd. (‘Chaopi Tianshi’)™
PR RE R ENEERAT HElAR BRR RR% & 10
(AT BRI AR ])
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

1.

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

(1) Components of the Company (Continued)

Note:

B FS R I ot
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N~ EHEM TP AR (F)

1

* Chaopi Trading holds more than 50% of the equity

interest of those companies which are deemed to be
the subsidiaries. As the Company holds 79.85% of

Chaopi Trading, the holding percentage is different

with the voting rights percentage.

*

*

Chaopi Trading’s subsidiary holds more than

50% of the equity interest of those companies

which are deemed to be the subsidiaries. As the
Company holds 79.85% of Chaopi Trading, the

holding percentage is different with the voting rights

percentage.

The details of the movement in registered capital

of subsidiaries and the proportion changes of own-

ership interests and of voting power held by the

Company in subsidiaries during the accounting

period are as follows:

Note 1:

On June 13, 2014, the Company’s subsidiary

Chaopi Trading and other equity holders re-
spectively contributed additional RMB12,822,800
and RMB11,679,100 into Chaopi Huaqging. As at
that date, the registered capital of Chaopi Huaqging
increased to RMB80,000,000. Upon completion of

the capital increase, the equity interest in Chaopi

Huaqging was directly held by Chaopi Trading as to
53.43%, and indirectly held by the Company through

Chaopi Trading as to 42.66%.

>

EFRRRNER(E

(1) EREBHMAL ()

*k

Gl

ZEARBHEMEEREGRA
50% MR - IR AR
%Z¥@E°QW$QEEE%
B ET79.85% MR
$Lﬁﬁ@ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁ%
ZN A MR AR b ) B R A L Al
A o

ZERTIHBREEZ T ARR
HIBES0% MER « WRHRBTE
REMEEZ FRRIZTFAR °
HRARAREEREH/EE
79.85% ) x  WARNFEB
P ERERAERS A RN
R b I BR SRR AE L IR o

RAREME - FARMEME
RUARARRE FRAFREE
IREELL DI BB SRR

MN2014F6 138 * AR A
ZFRBRHBEHEREMIEE
7o BlREBALEF B MNRE A
R #12,822,800 Tt K AR
11,679,1007C - B E%HB - 5
HEBFMIMERLEARE
80,000,0007T ° &% - Wit
EE N ERE RS H53.43% K
@ AR ARRBEA A B
AR EEIF42.66% )R ©
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N FEHMEEPERE)
1. Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) 1 EFATRHHERE)
(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) TEEFHEHL(E)
Note 2: On December 29, 2014, the Company’s subsidiary 712 1 R2014F 12298 + ARAZ
Chaopi Trading acquired 8.75% equity interest in FRAFAUBEUEBESAR
Chaopi Huilong from its minority shareholders at #2,100,0007T 7 ¥ B W & D
a cash consideration of RMB2,100,000. The total BR R 55 M EA L EE[£8.75% M AR
investment of Chaopi Trading in Chaopi Huilong o HAtEmEREALERMA
increased to RMB18,660,000, while its direct % & FEIEE AR 18,660,000
interest increased from 69% to 77.75%. As at that T BEMAEERBREI% T
date, the Company indirectly held 62.08% equity ET77.75% c BZ AR - XA A
interest in Chaopi Huilong through Chaopi Trading. BB EEREEAAMER

62.08% )M ©

Note 3: On May 19, 2014, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi F3: R2014F5H198 » AR aEFR
Trading and an independent third party natural person A EERE=FEAARE
established Chaopi Qumeiba as a subsidiary of Chaopi R ERF ARSI AER -
Trading, with registered capital of RMB1,000,000. HiFME AR A AR1,000,000
Chaopi Qumeiba was directly held by Chaopi Trading T ANAMERBLEEAA
as to 65% by investing RMB650,000, and indirectly R#650,000T  EEHEA TR
held by the Company through Chaopi Trading as to EEE65%MRE - AQ AR
51.90%. Chaopi Qumeiba has obtained business Bt EMEREES Bt EER
license with NO. 110105017246602. On July 7, 2014, 51.00% M)z - L AEER
Chaopi Trading full paid RMB650,000 to Chaopi EX1§1101050172466025% T =
Qumeiba. R - R2014F7A7H - 3

HEERTFATSEHEEETE
AR ¥650,0007T @ BALEE 2
RELEBEOREHME -
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

1.

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

(1) Components of the Company (Continued)

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

On May 16, 2014, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading and an independent third party natural person
established Chaopi Shengshi as a subsidiary of Chaopi
Trading, with registered capital of RMB25,000,000.
Chaopi Shengshi was directly held by Chaopi Trading
as to 65% by investing RMB16,250,000, and indirectly
held by the Company through Chaopi Trading as to
51.90%. Chaopi Shengshi has obtained business
license with NO. 110105017227187. On July 4, 2014,
Chaopi Trading full paid RMB16,250,000 to Chaopi
Shengshi.

On March 17, 2015, the Company's subsidiary Chaopi
Trading contributed additional RMB10,000,000 into
Chaopi Taiyuan. As at the date, the registered capital
of Chaopi Taiyuan increased from RMB5,000,000
to RMB15,000,000. Upon completion of the capital
increase, the Chaopi Trading directly held 100% equity
interest in Chaopi Taiyuan, and indirectly held by the
Company through Chaopi Trading as to 79.85%.

On April 22, 2015, the Company's subsidiary
Chaopi Oil Sales and other equity holders con-
tributed additional registered capital amounted to
RMB12,000,000 into Chaopi Yuli in proportion to
their existing holdings. As at that date, the registered
capital of Chaopi Yuli increased from RMB12,000,000
to RMB24,000,000. Upon completion of the capital
increase, the Chaopi Oil Sales directly held 70% equity
interest in Chaopi Taiyuan, and indirectly held by the
Company through Chaopi Trading as to 30.31%.

N~ EHEM TP AR (F)

1

>

EFRRHHER(

(1) BFEEHLEL(E)

74

5

ERR

M20146F5H168 + ARAIFA
RSN ERE=FEARARE
R ERF ARG AL - &
& KB AR ¥ 25,000,000
T BAMEERBLEEAA
R #16,250,0007C ' HEHA
AR R 65% M IRE - RNAQ A
BB EAHE 7 B R S A A Ak it
51.90% K #E z o BAHLA B B
81101050172271875E T &
EHR - N2014F7 748 - 8
HAEERPALBRETEARE
16,250,0007T  8A#L 7 & 2 R4

HEHD2HHR -

M201543H17H » AR 7]
REIAREE itéﬁﬁtﬁ@_bn&
& AR #10,000,0007T @ #=E
%A ARKERNFEME RS
AR#¥5,000,000TEE AR
15,000,000 7T  # & % - it
7 B E # %A H100.00%H) #
= BN R B
BEHEHILARIR79.85% i -

D R20155F4 A22H © ARRTFA

RIEAL R A R IR E 5 8
F AR F SRR B
BHNIE AR 12,000,0007T
HEZA - BBANERER
A R#12,000,0007C 38 h1ZE A
R #24,000,0007¢ © E&E% - =
HER IR P D B 7 H70.00%
Mg - AR RRBIHAEE
FNERHL R S P R B HE A FA LA
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

1.

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

(1) Components of the Company (Continued)

Note 7:

Note 8:

On November 10, 2015, the Company and other
equity holders respectively contributed additional
RMB3,900,775 and RMB2,899,225 which added up
to RMB6,800,000 into Xinyang Tongli. As at that date,
the registered capital of Xinyang Tongli increased from
RMBS3,200,000 to RMB10,000,000. Upon completion
of the capital increase, the Company directly held
equity interest in Chaopi Taiyuan from 52.03% to
55.66%.

On September 15, 2015, the Company's subsidiary
Chaopi Zhongde and other equity holders
contributed additional registered capital amounted
to RMB8,000,000 into Chaopi Fangsheng in pro-
portion to their existing holdings. As at that date, the
registered capital of Chaopi Fangsheng increased from
RMB12,000,000 to RMB20,000,000. Upon completion
of the capital increase, the Chaopi Trading directly
held 80.00% equity interest in Chaopi Fangsheng,
and indirectly held by the Company through Chaopi
Trading and Chaopi Zhongde as to 63.88%. On
November 18, 2015, Chaopi Zhongde disposed
of 10% equity interest in Chaopi Fangsheng to an
independent third party natural person Wei Zifeng,
decreasing its direct equity in Chaopi Fangsheng from
RMB16,000,000 to RMB14,000,000. After transferring
the stock right, the Chaopi Zhongde directly held 70%
equity interest in Chaopi Fangsheng, and indirectly
held by the Company through Chaopi Trading and
Chaopi Zhongde as to 55.90%.
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N~ EHEM TP AR (F)

HER ENTITIES (Continued)

1. Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

(1) Components of the Company (Continued)

Note 9:

Note 10:

Note 11:

On August 10, 2015, the Company’s subsidiary
Chaopi Trading and other equity holders contributed
additional registered capital amounted to
RMB25,000,000 into Chaopi Maolisheng in proportion
to their existing holdings with incompletion of
RMB1,750,000 by an independent third party natural
person Du Jianxin. As at that date, the registered
capital of Chaopi Maolisheng increased from
RMB50,000,000 to RMB75,000,000. Upon completion
of the capital increase, the Chaopi Trading directly
held 65.00% equity interest in Chaopi Maolisheng,
and indirectly held by the Company through Chaopi
Trading as to 51.90%.

On December 30, 2015, the Company’s subsidiary
Chaopi Trading, established Chaopi Tianshi as a
wholly-owned subsidiary, with registered capital
of RMB20,000,000. Chaopi Tianshi was indirectly
held by the Company as to 79.85%. Chaopi
Tianshi has obtained business license with NO.
110000002088659. As at January 29, 2016, Chaopi
Trading has fully paid.

On August 27, 2015, the Company’s subsidiary
Shoulian Supermarket established Haotian Hotel as
a wholly-owned subsidiary, with registered capital of
RMB5,000,000. Haotian Hotel was indirectly held by
the Company as to 100%. Haotian Hotel has obtained
business license with NO. 110115019767912. As at
February 29, 2016, Shoulian Supermarket has fully
paid.
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N FEHMEEPERE)
1. Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) 1 EFATRHHERE)
(2) Details of significant non-wholly owned subsidiaries 2) EEWHEEFLATHBREEE
BERWT :
Profits (losses) attributing to  Dividends to minority
minority interests interests Minority interests
BRRH
RRAME (BX) HSERRABRA DERRER
Proportion
of minority
interests (%) 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015.12.31 2014.12.31
DHRE “E-1f% “E-mE
Name of subsidiaries FAAER BRUBIC) | 2015 | 20145 | 20158 | 20145F | TZB=t-R | TZA=T-H
Chaopi Trading and fts BHEERETFAA 20.15 (Note)
subsidiaries 2015(3F) | 46,689,160 | 46,749911 | 50,467,138 | 47,836,722 465,079,902 437,004,917
Note: The proportion of ownership interests and voting of i FRARLERRAFR L GIERR
the minority shareholders of subsidiaries are of equal. HELLBIFER) ©
Significant assets and liabilities: FTEZEEE
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E-AF —E—-lEF
ltem 1HE +=ZA=+—-8B | +tZA=+—H
Current assets RENEE 4,920,924,087 3,939,180,779
Non-current assets JEMEBNE 210,882,107 163,856,444
Current liabilities REAE 4,028,330,258 2,911,477,306
Non-current liabilities IEREAE 23,408,331 114,195,227
Financial performance and net cash flow: REXRERE 2 FRE -
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—ZE-HF —ET—mF
ltem 1HE +=A=+—-8 | +tZA=+—H
Operating income EEWPA 7,208,613,319 | 6,445,555,012
Operating cost and other expenses EERAKRER 6,998,819,598 | 6,344,879,773
Net profit and total comprehensive income FFE k474 WS 18%8 61,505,952 68,019,104
Cash flows from operating activities KEEHIRGRRE (156,683,938) 138,870,775
Cash flows from investing activities KREETHRESFRE (127,556,359) (113,069,002)
Cash flows from financial activities EEEFHREFRE 235,847,080 41,483,627
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's financial instruments mainly comprise cash and
bank balances, accounts receivable, other receivables, short-
term investments, available-for-sale financial assets, other non-
current assets, accounts payable, other payables, bonds payable,
notes payable, short-term borrowings, long-term borrowings due
within one year and long-term borrowings. Details of the financial
instruments are set out in Note (VI). The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the risk management policies
on how to mitigate these risks are detailed as below. These risk
exposures are managed and monitored by the management to

ensure that such risks are within a limited range.

1. Risk management objectives and policies

The Group engages in risk management with the aim of
achieving an appropriate balance between risks and returns,
where the negative effects of risks against the operating
results of the Group are minimized, in order to maximize the
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. Based on
such objective of risk management, the fundamental strategy
of risk management of the Group is to ascertain and analyze
various risks exposures, establish appropriate risk tolerance
thresholds, carry out risk management procedures and
monitor these risks in a timely and reliable manner, thus to

confine risk exposures within a prescribed scope.
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

1. Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.1 Market risk

1.1.1Exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss resulting
from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
All of the Group's transaction are denominated
in its functional currency RMB, except for Beijing
Chaopi Trading subsidiary Chaopi Maolisheng
(Hongkong) which incorporated in Hongkong,
PRC and used EUR as the Functional currency.
As at December 31, 2015, the total assets and
total liabilities of Chaopi Maolisheng (Hongkong)
amount to approximately EUR 7,695,712
and EUR 7,701,236 denominated in foreign
currency. The management does not expect that
a change in foreign exchange rate will have a
significant impact on the Group's gross profit and

shareholders' equity.

1.1.2Interest rate risk — risk of changes in cash flows

The risk of changes in fair value from financial
instruments as a result of interest rate change
mainly relates to fixed interest securities (see Note
(VI) 28 Bonds payable).The Group's policy has not
taken any action to eliminate fair value risk from

fixed interest securities.
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT RS T BEBHRRE)

(Continued)

1. Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 1. EREEBEEZNBER(E)

1.1 Market risk (Continued) 1.1 HEEEE)

1120 X R —He nEZE R

1.1.2Interest rate risk — risk of changes in cash flows

(Continued)

The risk of changes in cash flows from financial
instruments as a result of interest rate change
mainly relates to floating-rate bank loans (see
Note (VI), 17, 25 and 27 Short-term borrowings,
Long-term borrowings). It is the Group's policy
to maintain floating interest rate of these loans in
order to eliminate fair value risk due to interest

rate change.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis is based on
the assumption that a change in market interest
rates would have an impact on interest income or

expense of floating-rate financial instruments.

The management believes that the Group's
exposure to interest rate risk in bank deposits
is not significant, and therefore did not disclose
the sensitivity analysis of bank deposit interest
rate. On the basis of the above assumption
and supposing that other parameters remain
constant(Without regard to the influence of
capitalized interest), an 1% increase/(decrease) of
interest rate would lead to a (decrease)/increase
of RMB28,410,999 and 23,404,902 (before
taxation) in current profit or loss and shareholders'

equity in 2015 and 2014 respectively.
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

1.

Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.2 Credit risk

As at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014,
the largest credit risk exposure related to a potential
financial loss mainly derived from the failure in
performance of contractual obligations by counterparty,
which would result in a loss in financial assets, and
the guarantees provided by the Group, including: the
carrying amount of financial assets recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet. The carrying amounts
of the financial assets, which are recorded at fair
value, represent the current risk exposure but not the
maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future

as a result of the change in fair values.

To reduce credit risk, the Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, balances of accounts
receivable are monitored on an ongoing basis to
ensure that the Group's exposure to bad debt is not

significant.
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT h-EemI EEENRRE)
(Continued)

/435 )

1. Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 1. EREEREZEMERE)

1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 1.2 EHEBE)

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet
date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. Therefore, the
management believes that the Group's exposure
to credit risk has been effectively monitored and
managed. The Group has adopted necessary policies
to ensure that all customers have a good credit record.
At December 31, 2015, except for the amounts
included in account receivables top five (Note (VI) 2)
and individual significant long-term receivables, the
Group has no other significant concentration of credit

risk.

The Group's working capital is deposited at banks
with higher credit ratings, and hence the credit risk in

working capital is insignificant.
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT N RBEeRMIAMEENREE)

(Continued)
1. Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 1. EREEREZEMBER(E)
1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 1.2 AR E)
Maturity analysis of the financial assets overdue but EEABRACAHBERRENS
unimpaired: REEMNEBRITOT

December 31, 2015 2015%12H31H

Overdue but unimpaired
BAHREE
Within Over
1 month 1-3 months 3 months Total
BH1EAR WE-3A AESEAMUL &t
Accounts receivable FEUSBR X 148,248,140 119,640,599 280,820,661 548,709,400
December 31, 2014 2014512A31H
Overdue but unimpaired
ERHARRE
Within Over
1 month 1-3 months 3 months Total
BEIEAR @E1-3EA @mEBEANL &t
Accounts receivable PR R 124,274,141 85,003,339 214,870,104 424,147,584

72015912 4318 KX2014F12 A
318 - B@ AR A ERE
FEAENMAEBERTRFHE
BOBYUEFER - AR - B28

As at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014,
the accounts receivable that were past due but not
impaired related to a number of independent customers

that have a good track record with the Group. Other

receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to other amounts payable to the Group as a prevailing
party in litigations. Based on past experience, the
Group believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. Except
for the overdue accounts receivable due from Shoulian
which bear interest on the balance and are secured by
collaterals, the Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over other balances past

due (Note (VI) 2).

HMERBEMNE M UG E AR R E
ESBRNEMBEFERR -
REBAEER  AREREER
BEBABCANKRBAA2RER
B AEBERSEFHETER
EXE - ANEERYEBHEEN
BB RN R RET BALTFA
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT RS T BEBHRRE)

(Continued)
1. Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) (—)BBREBEEZENBEE)
1.3 Liquidity risk 1.3 mEERE

In managing liquidity risk, the Group maintains and
monitors cash and cash equivalents that are adequate
in the opinion of the management, to meet the needs
of the Group's operations and mitigate the impact from
cash flow fluctuations. The management monitors the
utilization of bank loans and ensures compliance with
loan covenants. Meanwhile, the Group adopts banking

instruments to meet short-term funding needs.

The Group manages its risk to deficiency of funds
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers both the maturity of its financial instruments
and the projected cash flows from the Group's

operations.

As at December 31, 2015, the Group's net current
liabilities amounted to RMB344,025,101 (December
31, 2014: RMB395,629,617). The Company uses bank
loans and bonds as its major sources of funding. As
at December 31, 2015, the Company had unutilized
bank loan facilities of RMB845 million. Based on the
Company's unutilized bank loan facilities, profitability
and cash flow forecast within the next 12 months,
the management believes that the Company will have
adequate funds in the future for timely repayment of
the existing debts and maintaining its normal business

activities.
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT N RBEeRMIAMEENREE)

(Continued)

1. Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) (—) BREEBEMBRE)

1.3 nEmE (&)

AEEFAERAERATRANG
BRBEBHIIHBROFTOT

1.3 Liquidity risk
The following is the maturity analysis for financial

liabilities held by the Group which is based on

undiscounted remaining contractual obligations:

December 31, 2015 2015%12HA31H

Within 3 months Over

1 month 1-3 months to 1 year 1-2 years 2 years Total

KR 1237  3fEAZ1E 1525 25N L &t

Bank loans (including interest) BARR(EHE) 342,331,665 656,259,876  1,804,053,901 - - 2,802,645,442

Notes payable RGeS 105,725,446 464,603,496 54,228,631 - - 624,557,573

Accounts payable BRI 39,211,396 1,161,798,469 - - - 1,201,009,865

Bonds payable (including interest)  [EfE%(EFIE) - - 41,100,000 41,100,000 775,223,014 857,423,014
Other payables (excluding rent EtERR(TRRERER)

received in advance) 56,023,697 - 132,327,827 - - 188,351,524

Total At 543,292,004 2,282,661,841 2,031,710,359 41,100,000 775,223,014 5,673,987,418

December 31, 2014 20145128318
Within 3 months Over

1 month 1-3 months to 1 year 1-2 years 2 years Total

HEAMA 123ER  SEARIF 1226 2FL\E At

Bank loans (including interest) BATER(ENE) 286,985,422 662,447,103 1,350,807,893 95,397,770 - 2,395,638,188

Notes payable ERZE 68,135,542 7,953,430 - - - 76088972

Accounts payable R 37,736,126 1,113,106,134 = = - 1,150,842,260

Bonds payable (including interest) ~ FEfE&(EH8) - - 41,100,000 41,100,000 832,200,000 914,400,000
Other payables (excluding rent HipERR(TERRES)

recelved in advance) 32,935,670 - 140,535,092 - - 173,470,762

Total Ait 425,792,760 1,783,506,667 1,532,442,985 136,497,770 832,200,000 4,710,440,182

X. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE T+ - AREBENEE

The available-for-sale financial assets(Note (VI) 7 (Note 1)), fair value AIMHESREE (MR 72 UER
BEMREENS TOREBIEAAALEBER
RARBEFENFEIBR  BREEERE

BEEERTS ECRGHB)NRE -

of which determined in accordance with quoted market price of
investee’s stock, are classified as Level 1, known as quoted price

(unadjusted) of similar assets and liabilities in active market.

AEBEEEBRA » MBRRTPIZEHRAN
AEMNGREERERARMNEREERRD
ZEEEMBENRAEE -

The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized costs in the

financial statements approximate their fair values.
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XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS - BMH REHR S

1.

Parent of the Company 1 XEEBPFAAER
Proportion of
the entity's  Proportion of
ownership the entity's  The ultimate
Name of interests  voting power  controlling
the parent Place of Legal Nature of Registered  held by the  held by the  party of the Organization
company Type incorporation  representative  business capital  parent (%)  parent (%)  Company code
BARY BREY
ROEMER  AREMRR  ALE
SINCES B+l it EARR RHitE e BhIe)  BHACH) BREHE  ASBERER
Chaoyang State-owned  Beiing Mr. Wang Weilin - Sales of food and 289,821,000 40.61 4061 Chaoyang 10163706-x
Auxiliary oil products Auxiliary
B 2RAEN ART TR HERRERED B
Subsidiaries of the Company 2 KEENFARER

Please see Note (VII) 1 Equity in subsidiaries for the details

of the subsidiaries of the Company.

Other related parties of the Company 3

ES G IANN

HAubBABE 7 B

Relationship between other related

Name of other related party parties and the Company

BT AR R -

Organization code

HiBAm s 298 H i BAR 5 B A B B R HERBRERE
Beijing Tengyuan Xingye Motor Service Company controlled by the 10169570-2
Limited Company (' Tengyuan Xingye") same parent
ERBEEETERBERA iR SYNSIE A2 10N
(ATHEEemE])
Related party transactions 4 BABRBZER
(1) Related party's lease transaction (1) BHHEEREX
Pricing basis of related
Lessor Leasee Type of lease party transaction Notes 2015 Amount 2014 Amount
ki il b R5EY B2 5T BKE i W5EESE | 2014FELE
Chaoyang Auxiliary The Company Rental expenses Price negotiated Note 1 1,326,345 1,326,345
HGER ARA Begi R HENER 1
Tengyuan Xingye The Company Rental expenses and Price negotiated Note 2 - 1,601,967
property management
expense
RERZ YN BERNFEBEXM RETBENER 2
2015 3§

IERREEREEERRNARAT
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Xl. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND - BEAREABXS(E)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transactions (Continued) 4~ BIBERBIER
(1) Related party’s lease transaction (Continued) (1) BBHERER(E)
Note 1:0n April 30, 2004, the Company and its subsidiary 1 R2004F4A30H  ARaE K

Chaopi Trading leased several properties in Beijing from
Chaoyang Auxiliary, pursuant with annual rent incremental
on every five years for a term from January 1, 2004 to
December 31, 2023. From 2006 to 2009, the Group
entered into lease contracts or supplemental agreements
on several properties. As at June 30, 2011, the annual
rents under the contracts with Chaoyang Auxiliary were
RMB7,344,499 and RMB920,853 respectively for the
Company and its subsidiary Chaopi Trading. On June
30, 2011, except for the properties used by 10 stores
of the Company (including 5 properties still owned by
Chaoyang Auxiliary and 5 properties for which lease
agreements were terminated), the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of Beijing
Chaoyang District (“SASAC Chaoyang”) approved the
transfer of the land and properties used by the Company
from Chaoyang Auxiliary to Beijing Hongchao Weiye SOE
Management Company Limited ("Hongchao Weiye").
The Company continued to lease the properties owned
by Chaoyang Auxiliary for its 5 stores at annual rent of
RMB162,758 with incremental once every five years. On
June 18, 2012, the Company entered into a property
lease supplemental agreement with Chaoyang Auxiliary,
pursuant to which the annual rent for the aforesaid five
properties were adjusted to RMB1,111,933 effecting
from July 1, 2012 with incremental by 3% every five
years; and 1 additional property was leased at annual
rent of RMB214,412 with incremental by 3% every
five years for a term from July 1, 2012 to December
31, 2023. The rental expenses payable to Chaoyang
Aucxiliary for the year ended at December 31, 2015 and
for the year ended at December 31, 2014 were both
recognized at RMB1,326,345.
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HEABRRAENERAFEE D
Al AARET7,344,499TT R AR
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AFSEMEMBENERS A
AR¥162,758 7T - B AFIEE
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ARABERFITEERER T
% - B2012F7A1BE - £
MEREEMENFHLSARES
AR®1,111,93370 ' BAFE
3% Bz ipEaig1 g
EWE - HEHBE2012F7A1H
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3% ° R2016F E R2014F E #
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Xl. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND - BEMAIRABXS(E)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transactions (Continued) 4~ BABRBER(E)
(1) Related party’s lease transaction (Continued) (1) BHHEERER(E)
Note 1:(Continued) 1 ()

On July 1, 2011, the Company and its subsidiary Chaopi
Trading entered into lease contracts respectively with
Hongchao Weiye to renew the leasing of properties
under the original contractual terms at annual rent of
RMB7,344,499 and RMB920,853 respectively effecting
from July 1, 2011.

On July 1, 2012, the Company and its subsidiary Chaopi
Trading entered into supplemental agreements to the
aforesaid lease contracts respectively with Hongchao
Weiye, pursuant to which the annual rents for such
properties were adjusted to RMB26,997,108 and
RMB2,808,259 respectively effecting from the same day
with incremental by 3% every five years.

M2011F7A18 + RRAIRAR
Al FARBAHLEE 5 Bl BT
BEFITTHESR  BRRAR
HREEREEEE - 52011
FTRAIBREHEESHIABARYE
7,344,499 7T & A R # 920,853

JT °

R2012F 7818 AQalk
AARZFARAHEE ML
BHEERLABEASRD IR

ATRERE BEZBELE
MHEMEFHSHANARE
AR 26,997,108 T K AR
2,808,2597C * R FIHEILI% ©

2015 &R
IR RREEEEERNDERAR
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XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND - BB RBEBR S (E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transactions (Continued) 4~ BERBER(E)
(1) Related party’s lease transaction (Continued) (1) BHHEERER(E)
Note 1:(Continued) i1 (48)
On December 18, 2013, the Company entered into K2013F12 4180 « AR AL
supplemental agreements to the aforesaid lease SAEREM LA ESREH
contracts with Hongchao Weiye. Considering the Tl - HEARQRNREE Y
Company paid relevant construction fees on the rebuild BOHEEMERETERURILS
project of certain of the properties in previous years BEZIARAREHETHE
and the renovation project conducted by the Company MEERMESEBERARFR
on behalf of Hongchao Weiye, Hongchao Weiye will SATEREBEIIERIE - SATEE
compensate the Company for the cost of construction BIEBRHEAERROTEEXRE
costs and related taxes paid (“agent construction fees”) NEEMESRE IR N RERE
on property renovation project and rebuild project of IERRASTHIRBRE(RE
RMB86,742,211, including RMB41,265,838 recorded TRM)HFTARES6,742,211
in other receivables and RMB45,476,373 recorded in JC o DRl A B R A R
long-term receivables. Meanwhile, agent construction 41,265,838 T R RHAE M A AR
fees receivables of RMB22,197,108 recorded in other ¥ 45,476,373 7T ° A - BRI
receivables will immediately offset the rent payable EHHTE - HtbEUGRR AR
to Hongchao Weiye at the end of 2013 as agreed by 22,197,108 7T YR K2 T 123K
both parties. From the January 1, 2014 to December RARBINERE TR HEREE -
31, 2023, the fees on the rebuild project of certain MR2013F REFEATEER S
properties in previous years and the renovation project FREBHETT — IR IEHUR © 201441
conducted by the Company on behalf of Hongchao A1BZ2023F12A31 HERHA
Weiye will offset the rent to the Hongchao Weiye at end HEHRA - BARABRLRE
of every year. FEREOAREEMENNE -

BIETIRA XA - A — RN
RARBREGFERELAREDN
e TESEREE -
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Xl. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND - BEMAIRABXS(E)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transactions (Continued) 4~ BABRBER(E)
(1) Related party’s lease transaction (Continued) (1) BHHEERER(E)
Note 1:(Continued) 1 ()

On November 25, 2014, the Company entered into
supplemental agreements again to terminate the two
supplemental agreements assigned on July 1, 2012 and
December 18, 2013 respectively. From July 1, 2014 to
December 31, 2023, the annual rents of such properties
were adjusted to revert to the amount in the agreements
on July 1, 2011, which were RMB7,344,499 and
RMB920,853 respectively with incremental by 3% every
five years. Meanwhile, for the rest of agent construction
fee amounted to RMB58,164,490, Hongchao Weiye
won’t take the responsibility of paying the funds
back when the original agreement and supplemental
agreements are executed efficiently. The aforesaid rest
of agent construction fee is undertaken and amortized

by the Company.

Note 220n July 2, 2007, the Company leased a property located

at Court 52, Jiuxiangiao Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing
from Tengyuan Xingye with annual rent of RMB2,100,000
increasing once every five years for a term from April
1, 2007 to September 30, 2022. On July 1, 2011, the
Company terminated the property lease agreement
and undertook to pay the occupancy fee till June 30,
2012. On June 18, 2012, the Company reentered into a
lease contract on the aforesaid property with Tengyuan
Xingye, with annual rent and property management
fee of RMB2,232,249 and RMB971,685 respectively
increasing once every four years for a term from July 1,
2012 to March 31, 2022. On July 1, 2014, the Company
terminated the property lease agreement in respect of
aforesaid property. In 2014, the aggregate amount of
rent, occupancy fee and property management fee was
recognized at RMB1,601,967.

o

2014411 4258 « AEE R
LR EN FMBAEARBRE
FIM a2 Fal201246F7
A18K&2013F12 418 A B3
TR R % - B20144F
7A1EE20234%12A318 » £
LA E Y ¥ 7R B K 2011
FTAIBBIMNHEEARSRE -
B9 Bl B A R #7,344,499 7T &
AR¥920,8537T * BRFIEM
3% o RIEF - S8 FRETR
FR2014F6 A0 A HBARE
58,164,4907T - shAFAREHERME
RN E A e
TG T REREERER
FREBRIRRBEERENE
THTERISATE & HAR e FT 88 -

M2007F7H28 « AAT AR
FERAMM R T MHABRE
B 2R E - AREH
& A ARE2100,0007T - §REF
EIE—R - HEBB20074F 4 F1
BZE202249H308 » R201147
A18 - RARKRIETZMENH
EtpE - THEHEERBIMN
F2012F6H30H ° M 201246
A18A + AR A HAKREER
MMEEFHEREGR AR
FHERMEBTEBHIAAR
#£2,232,2497T & A R¥971,685
T BMEER K- HEHA
20124 7A1AE 20224 3A318 »
R2014%F7A18 » ANARRIET 3%
WMEHRE R - R2014FF
RARERNAS WEERER
MEEEBHAAREEITIRAR
#4,601,9677T °

2015 &R
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Xl. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND - BEAREABXS(E)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
4. Related party transactions (Continued) 4 BBZTZBRE)

(2) HREZASHH

(2) Compensation for key management personnel

2015 2014
ltem HE A 20155 & 20144 fF
Compensation for key management AT IE A BN
Short-term employee benefits EHE B EA 6,763,873 7,274,882
Post-employment benefits BIREET 472,412 451,903
Total = 7,236,285 7,726,785

Key management members are personnel having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Group, including
directors, supervisors and other personnel to exercise
similar functions. Emolument paid to key management
includes wages or salaries, bonus, allowance,

subsidies.

According to the requirements of Company Ordinance
of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, emoluments of

directors and supervisors for the year are as follows:

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

directors during the year were as follows:

MREEABREAENLAEEE
TP 8] - SBEMEH LRI
AB BREZ BEERHEMT
EEUBRBENAR - X4
MREEABNRMEEEAT
B B RFIAMM -

RIEFBBHIMES LTRIEE
BARED - FRNEENEEH
S

@) BUIFBITEFFHB

FERNSNBIIENTES
wawT

RMB’000

AREFT
2015 2014
Independent non-executive directors Y&/ IEHTTE S 20156 E 2014452
Onward Choi b2 S ] 155 155
Chen Liping B 37 42 42
Wang Liping EFIF 42 42
Total &5t 239 239

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during 2015

and 2014.

R2015F E R2014FEEE
ENEE FIBLIERITE
% °
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Xl. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transactions (Continued)

(2) Compensation for key management personnel

(Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors,

RS el bE

1:||||/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 2015%12831H IFF /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIz4B55) » £EEE N BARKET)

- B S BB ()

4 -~

BB ZER (&)

(2) BREZASHH (&)

b) BITEE HFHTEF E

supervisors and the chief executive E R
RMB’000
AREFT
Salaries, Post-
allowances Performance employment
and benefits related benefits
Fees in kind bonuses *  contributions Total
e
®e W
2015 20155 E He RENEF EREe  BARERMER @
Executive directors: WIEE:
Li Jianwen TEY - 745 318 44 1,107
Shang Yongtian (Note1) 7k M (71) - 302 - 22 324
Li Chunyan TER - 465 190 44 699
Liu Yuejin Bl - 301 284 44 629
Subtotal et - 1,813 792 154 2,759
Non-executive directors: JFHITEE :
Li Wei (Note 2) FE(F2) - 370 458 17 845
Li Shunxiang FBx -
Wang Welin (Note 5) ~ Ef&#(35) -
Subtotal Nt - 370 458 17 845
Supervisors: Ex:
Liu Wenyu 2@ - 465 190 44 699
Wang Hong FiT - 301 95 44 440
Yao Jie 283 - 223 119 44 386
Yang Baoqun BEH - - - - -
Chen Zhong R 35 - - - 35
Cheng Xianghong RmA 35 - - - 35
Subtotal et 70 989 404 132 1,595
Total At 70 3,172 1,654 303 5,199
2015 &3

IERREEREEERRNARAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R M ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 2015%12831H IFF /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (BR435Ia855) » £EEE [ BARKT)

1y

XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND - BB RBEBR S (E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transactions (Continued) 4~ BERBER(E)
(2) Compensation for key management personnel (2) FREENSHH(E)
(Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors, (b) BITERH - HFHITEF - E
supervisors and the chief executive (Continued) FERABETE(E)
RMB’000
AREFT
Salaries, Post-
allowances  Performance  employment
and benefits related benefits
Fees in kind bonuses *  contributions Total
e
®e 2R
2014 2014F % we  REDEN BEe  RIKEFER ZHe
Executive directors: HTES:
Li Jianwen TEV - 758 379 40 1,177
Li Wei (Note 2) ZE(72) - 752 63 40 855
Li Chunyan TER - 470 240 40 750
Liu Yuejin g - 542 - 40 582
Subtotal et - 2,522 682 160 3,364
Non-executive directors: FEHITEE :
Wei Tingzhan (Note 3) #7128 (33) = - - - -
Gu Hanlin (Note 4) FOEM(5H4) - - - - -
Li Shunxiang T ek - - - - -
Wang Weiln (Note 5)  FE#(55) - - - - -
Subtotal Nk - - - - -
Supervisors: EX:
Liu Wenyu Ee) - 468 169 40 677
Wang Hong FiT = 300 121 40 461
Yao Jie iz - 219 53 40 312
Yang Baoqun BER - - - - -
Chen Zhong bRig 35 - - - 35
Cheng Xianghong R4 35 - - - 35
Subtotal et 70 987 343 120 1,520
Total At 70 3,509 1,025 280 4,884
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Xl. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND - BEMAIRABXS(E)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transactions (Continued) 4~ BB BN
(2) Compensation for key management personnel (2) FREEANSHH(E)

(Continued)

HITEE  FPTEF B
R AAARTE (48 )
1 R2015F 582818 @ RIE

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors, (b)

supervisors and the chief executive (Continued)

Note 1:0n May 28, 2015, as resolved by the board of

directors, Mr. Shang Yongtian was designed as

the chief director of the Group.

On November 5, 2015, as resolved by the board
of directors, Mr. Shang Yongtian was designed as
the executive director and he was also the chief
director of the Group. His emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by him

as the chief executive.

Note220n May 28, 2014, as resolved by the board

of directors, Mr. Li Wei was designed as the
executive director and he was also the chief
director of the Group. His emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by him

as the chief executive.

On May 28, 2015, Mr. Li Wei was resignated as
the chief director of the Group. His emoluments
disclosed above include six months from January
to June for services rendered by him as the chief

executive.

On November 5, 2015, as resolved by the board
of directors, Mr. Li Wei was approval to resignate

as the non-executive director of the Group.

52

IERREER

RAFREEGRE AKX
BAEEZBREERNEED
e o

M2015F 11 A58 « R
ARBREFGRE - Bk
BAEREREAEED
HITESR - ANFREAE
EmELE - FlEEDN
2015 Me B EHIEAR
MBS -

201465 A28R « RI&
ARREFGRE &
TEZBETREENY
TEE ABEFRIAEER
MAAKIE FHlEED
20145 ME RS HIERAE
KIS -

R20156F5 A28H « F&
FEBFERAEEMNAERE
B - R ER2015F
HewaH1AE6AKA
BISBOME -

#2015 11 A58 * iR
KRAREBEFEGRE  AE
FREEABHEREENE
HITES -

2015 &R
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XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transactions (Continued)

(2) Compensation for key management personnel

(Continued)

(b)

Executive directors, non-executive directors,
supervisors and the chief executive (Continued)

Note 3:0n May 28, 2014, as resolved by the board of
directors, Mr. Wei Tingzhan was approval to
resignate as the non-executive director of the

Group.

Note 40n May 28, 2014, as resolved by the board of
directors, Mr. Gu Hanlin was was approval to
resignate as the non-executive director of the

Group.

Note 5:0n May 28, 2014, as resolved by the board of
directors, Mr. Wang Weilin was designated as the

non-executive director of the Group.

Performance related bonuses of these executives
and supervisors are related to the profit of the

Group of last year.

In 2015 and 2014, there was no arrangement
under which a director or a supervisor waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration, and no
remuneration was paid by the Group to a director
or a supervisor as bonuses or unemployment

compensations for their entry to the Group.
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XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transactions (Continued) 4~ BABRBER(E)

(2) BREZEASHM(E)

(2) Compensation for key management personnel

(Continued)
(c) HlREFNIES 92
RFEEAN - AUGEHESR

(c)  Five highest paid employees

Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid

employees during the year are as follows: HMFB OO ¢
RMB’000
AREFT
2015 2014*
ltemn | 20156 & 2014F
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ®e  ERNEDE 4,309 2,867
Performance related bonuses EaRe 2,441 2,331
Post-employment benefits contributions RIKBFIER 87 63
Total & 6,837 5,261

The number of employees whose remuneration

IR T 5 R A R B 8

fell within the following bands is as follows: ==
2015 2014~
20155 20145 "
HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000 1,000,001%1,500,0007 7T 4 3
HKD1,500,001 to HKD 2,000,000 1,500,001%2,000,000% 7T = -
HKD2,000,001 to HKD 2,500,000 2,000,001 £2,500,00078 7t - 1
HKD2,500,001 to HKD 3,000,000 2,500,001%3,000,0007 7T 1 -
Total At 5 4

*

The five highest paid employees during the year

included one director, and details of whose

remuneration are set out above in (b).

* 20145 * Afumm ¥ &

ERE—uES

H 3 B

HBEEELERDIIR ©
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II/

XIl. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND - BB RBEBR S (E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5. Receivables and payables of related parties 5 BEELEWEMRRIE
The Group had no receivables or payables balance with M2015F12 831 H & 2014412 A 31
related parties on December 31, 2015 and December 31, B - NS ES 4 B B 5 U I FE A 3R
2014, THERAR o
6. Related party commitments 6 - EEHL A
The Company had signed a lease contract with Chaoyang AARHEBAGERFINTEEHRES
Auxiliary for operation and storage. B ARPYEREE -
The anticipated future rent by the Group: AEEBHRARFESZNOESA -
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
ltem 15 H 2015%12H318 | 2014412H31H
Within 1 year 1R 1,326,345 1,326,345
1-2 years 1-26F 1,326,345 1,326,345
2-3 years 2-34F 1,366,135 1,326,345
Over 3 years 3FEM F 6,912,047 8,258,287
Total Skl 10,930,872 12,237,322
XIl. COMMITMENTS T2 AERREEE
1. Significant commitments 1 BEREBSE
(1) Capital commitments (1) BEXEE
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E-I1F —T—UF
ltem EYS +=—A=+—H +=—A=+—8H
Acquisition of fixed assets BEBTEE
Authorized but not contracted ERREEREL 265,835,993 205,861,716
Contracted but not provided DEABEARBE 207,175,857 188,410,979
Total &5 473,011,850 394,272,695
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1. Significant commitments (Continued) 1 BEREREBEE)
(2) Operating lease commitments (2) KEHERZE

As at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, 2015512 8318 &2014%12 A

the Company had the following commitments in 318  REEHINEFTH AR
respect of non-cancellable operating leases: HNEEHEANBERIT
As the lessee TERATNA
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—ZE-HF —ZT—NF
ltem =S +=BA=+—H +=ZRA=+—H
Minimum lease payments under Al HEEEEER
non-cancellable operating leases: IR EFE -
1st year subsequent to the balance
sheet date BEBEBRARBREIF 239,699,213 215,572,740
2nd year subsequent to the balance
sheet date BEEBBERARBEF 237,682,884 222,229,915
3rd year subsequent to the balance
sheet date BEEBEBERAREIF 237,196,402 222,220,609
Subsequent periods BEE 1,534,387,383 1,617,276,789
Total St 2,248,965,882 |  2,277,300,053
As the lessor EAH TN
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E—FRE —E—4F
ltem HE +=ZA=+—-HB | +tZH=+—H
Minimum lease receivables under Ik i FcSvith=y E!’j
non-cancellable operating leases: =R & B GREE
1st year subsequent to the balance
sheet date BEEBBRARBREIF 103,322,482 62,410,234
2nd year subsequent to the balance
sheet date BEBBRAKE2F 79,984,670 56,891,595
3rd year subsequent to the balance
sheet date BEBRBRAKEIF 61,942,554 42,120,601
Subsequent periods LAEFE 152,235,013 139,398,287
Total e 397,484,719 300,820,717
2. Contingencies 2~ HZBEEHE

HE2015F12A831H ' ARAREFE
WENEAKEFEE -

As at December 31, 2015, no material contingencies should

be disclosed by the Company.
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XIIl. SIGNIFICANTE SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER
BALANCE SHEET DATE

1.

New subsidiaries established and bonds issued

)

On February 19, 2016, the Company's subsidiary
Chaopi Trading, established Chaopi International Trade
(Shanghai) Company Limited (“Chaopi International
Trade”) as a wholly-owned subsidiary, with registered
capital of RMB5,000,000. Chaopi International
Trade was indirectly held by the Company as to
79.85% through Chaopi Trading. Chaopi International
Trade has obtained business license with NO.
41000000201602190301. As at date of report, Chaopi
Trading has not paid yet.

On February 2, 2016, the Company issued of the
year 2016 the first phase of short-term bonds with
a coupon rate of 3.43%, a term of maturity of 366
days, value date to be February 3, 2016 and interest
date to be February 3, 2017 in aggregate amounting
to RMB300 million through Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd.
according to the signed “Interbank bonds market
debt financing instruments of non-financial enterprises
underwriting agreement”. As at date of report, the
Company has received all raised capital used to issue

this short-term bond.

Other significant non-adjusting event after balance

sheet date

Except for the issues disclosed in Note (VI) 35, no other

significant non-adjusting event should be disclosed by the

Company by the end of the approval date of the financial

statements.
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TR HtEREE

XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS

Assets at fair value 1 UWAREBENENEE
As at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, The 201512 431 H & 2014412 A 31
Group, using the assets at fair value, subscribed the H AEBUAREEFENEERAE
available-for-sale equity investment of Shanxi Xinghuacun for ANEIZ FARIAEERENLAS
subsidiary Chaopi Trading: WA EREIRE
Change in Change in
fair value in fair value in
2014.1.1 current year 2014.12.31  current year 2015.12.31
—T-MmE Zl‘ﬁ/&ﬁt —E-mF KEQR —E-1F
Item HA —A—H EEZY |+=A=+-8° EE28 t-A=t-H
The available-for-sale equity At HEREIRE
investment 3,860,000 718,000 4,578,000 (724,000) 3,854,000
Segment reporting 2 AEHE
For the purpose of management, the Group classified the HRERER - NEBIREE QMRS
operations into three segments according to the product BINPREBET - AEBEBWN T =R
and service: HEp
(@) The retailing segment mainly engages in the distribution @ ZTENFETZEAHERR AR
of food, untagged food, daily necessities, drinks and -BABE Bl I2xE
cigarettes, hardware and household appliances; L8 m
(b) The wholesaling segment mainly engages in the by BRILELIBEZARS AR
wholesale supply of daily consumer products, including meogE B AARESEER
food, untagged food, beverages, drinks, cigarettes and BB B EETS
daily necessities;
(c) The “others” segment comprises, principally, the () EtriExEEKAHEBRBE

production of plastic packing materials.

pan=is
O A~
BIME o
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued) T EESERARSBEE)
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2 DPWHRE(E)
Management monitors the results of the Group's operating ERELREE B RMTEEENRE
segments separately aiming at making decisions about B HEEBETHEEXNRSFIE

resources allocation and performance assessment. 1B - DEEE  UMENDHFE

The segment report information is disclosed according to DEMEREESRESHEBMERERS
the accounting policies and measurement standard adopted HEANSHECKRA2FERE @ &
by each segment when reporting to the board of directors it S AR AER AN B REENHEE
and these principles of measurement should be consistently BRBEEEMRRFT I -

with the accounting policy and measurement standard of

this financial statement.

All the assets and liabilities have been allocated to FIBEEEMARYRREEDHEEEE

respective segment, no unallocated asset and liability which PN FERAEERG—EENEEN

are centrally managed by the Group. BE

The transfer pricing of inter-segment is based on the market KEHDHREMEBEE  2EMSRE

price as well as the actual transaction price. RRRSEHTHTENBRET -
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

2.

Segment reporting (Continued) 2 pEWEE)
For the year ended at December 31, 2015 2015 F
Inter-segment
Detailing Wholesaling Others offset Total
Item & Baitd Begs  APEEEER fit
Operating income E LN
External revenue ERIS T ON 4,962,258,420 6,544,733,194 25,485,633 = 11,532,477,247
Inter-segment revenue ABBEIAMA 46,471,572 574,535,173 17,502,574 (638,509,319) -
Total At 5,008,729,992 7,119,268,367 42,988,207 (638,509,319) 11,532,477,247
Total profit MELE 9,528,137 101,698,996 2,151,980 - 113,379,113
Income tax expenses FEHER 2,678,668 37,793,697 561,118 - 41,033,483
Net profit FHE 6,849,469 63,905,299 1,590,862 - 72,345,630
Total assets BEER 4,510,244,79 5,085,045,956 24,989,606 (1,249,509,956) 8,370,770,402
Total liabilties H@'%‘E 3,494,893,834 4,008,586,950 7,285,862 (1,249,509,956) 6,261,256,690
Supplementary information: %%k. &
Depreciation and amortization
expenses FENBHER 189,418,215 20,916,402 49,160 - 210,383,777
Impairment losses on assets BERERK 263,791 S = = 263,791
Capital expenditures BRI H 130,683,982 57,510,142 15,748 - 188,209,872
For the year ended at December 31, 2014 2014 E
Inter-segment
Detailing Wholesaling Others offset Total
Item ZE Bmits Bzl SPREERER aif
Operating income EL N
External revenue %*%w 5,031,985,349 5,835,673,123 23,150,416 - 10890,758,888
Inter-segment revenue AEHERHWA 38,902,586 551,096,479 16,361,630 (606,360,695) -
Total ait 5,070,837,935 6,386,769,602 39,512,046 (606,360,695 10,890,758,888
Total profit MELE 28,247,108 107,071,655 2,184,576 - 132,503,339
Income tax expenses EHER 8,664,153 34,423,879 552,816 - 43,640,848
Net profit (loss) e 14,582,955 72,647,776 1,631,760 - 88,862,491
Total assets EEGE 4,200,497 ,878 4,064,648,056 21,834,309 (1,045,477,145) 7,241,503,098
Total liabilities RELE 3,186,050,281 2,993,163,140 12,701,427 (1,045,477,145) 5,146,437,703
Supplementary information: RS
Depreciation and amortization
expenses FENEHER 196,183,346 19,442,011 44,480 - 215,669,837
Impairment losses on assets BERGERY (2,169,949) - - - (2,169,949)
Capital expenditures BAESH 100,127,010 15,571,766 70,322 - 115,769,098

The Group's businesses principally comprise retail and

wholesale in Beijing, the People’s Republic of China. The

majority identifiable assets are all located in Beijing.

AEETEEPEARAMBELLRHEL
EHmTEEMUEEX  TBUHRRE
EOR IR -
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued) TN -EEABRAZEEE)
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2~ pEWEE)
Main customers of the Group are as follows: REBRNEZEPBERNT :
2015 2014
ltems = 2015% 20144
Proportion Proportion
of the total of the total
operating operating
Operating income of the Operating  income of the
income Group (%) Income Group (%)
hEEEE HEEZE
EEWA WA EE £l (%) WA WA EEB1(%)
Customer 1 ZFE1 1,119,275,624 10 969,699,218 9
3. Transaction and balance between the Group and 3 AEFHEBBRER RS MR

Shoulian Group

(1) Major transaction between the Group and Shoulian (1) AEEEFHBREENEIERISN
Group: T
Notes 2015 2014
et 2015% 20144
Interest income FBUA Note 1
A 4,800,000 4,800,000
Interest income from borrowings & & {&F 2 U A Note 2
32 8,381,291 6,461,136
Lease expenses HEER Note 3
13 4,134,088 4,134,088
Borrowings AEIMER Note 4
T4 15,500,000 86,000,000
Note 1: Interest income is derived from accounts receivable. A FBA B RBUIRFFI S WA
The interest expenses charged on the balance of AEB2ZRITAPHERFEE
accounts receivable and lending due from Shoulian 5% [ ) R R AR ER MR
were determined with reference to loan interest rate B
stipulated by bank for the same period.
Note 2: Interest income from borrowing is derived from 2 AR HENEBRABAEERS
interest expenses charged on the borrowing of RITRMERF RS A E R
Shoulian with reference to loan interest rate stipulated RENESFERBRRFE -

by bank for the same period.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

3. Transaction and balance between the Group and

Shoulian Group (Continued)

(1) (Continued)

Note 3:

Note 4:

On January 1, 2009, the Company leased a property
and land located at Kaifang Road, Huairou District,
Beijing ("Huairou Hypermarket") from Shoulian with
annual rent of RMB3,000,000 for a term from January
1, 2009 to December 31, 2028.

On January 1, 2009, Shoulian Supermarket leased a
property and land located at Xihongmen Road, Daxing
District, Beijing from Shoulian Group with annual rent
of RMB1,134,088 for a term from January 1, 2009
to December 31, 2028. On December 24, 2010,
Shoulian Supermarket was acquired by the Company

and the lease contract remained valid.

For the year ended at December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, the recognized lease expenses
added up RMB4,134,088.

As at December 31, 2015, the borrowing provided
by Shoulian Supermarket and lend to Shoulian
Group amounted to RMB149,000,000, repayable on
December 31, 2016 as agreed upon. The interest
expenses charged on the borrowing due from
Shoulian referred to bank loan interest rate during the

same period.

3~

(1) (&)

FEBHEEHEER RS RBEE)

M2009F1A1R + AR HEE
EEBEALAIE RHIER R R
BORER (AT EEEE
AE%]) - HEHE2009%1A
1B E2028F12A31H + ARIF
& A ARES,000,0007T °

M2009F1A1A - BHBTAE
= A AL R K EE P ALY
EEFEE KT - HEHB2009
F1H1HE2028F12A318 -
AREHEAARYA1,134,088
JC ° 201012 A248 « HE
BIEADAE - ZHEEAR
BEEW -

HR2015FE M2014FEE » A%
ERnHAeBRAEAAR
#4,134,0887T °

D R2015F12A381H @ BHEBT

B R B B S IR B R
% A AR 149,000,0007T * &
FHIEBFA A2016412 A31
H - REE2EHITRBERF
FEMEHEERMESIFER
WEF S &R -

2015 &R
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued) TR EEABEXRARSHEE)
3. Transaction and balance between the Group and 3 AEEHEHEEZXZ RGHE(E)

Shoulian Group (Continued)

(2) Accounts receivable and accounts payable between (2) NG B B A B MY PR U K FE ST R
the Group and Shoulian Group: HAT -
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—E—EF —E-EF
Item HH +=A=+-8| +t=ZA=+—H
Accounts receivable (Note (VI) 2) FEUER R (HI3E7S ~ 2) 80,000,000 80,000,000
Long-term receivables (Note(Vl) 16)  RHIEUW K (FIzE/N - 16) 149,000,000 133,500,000
Prepaid rents* EAEe 24,000,000 27,000,000
* The amounts are associated with one-off prepaid rents * ZEREEAEERBERAE
for 15 years by the Group to Shoulian Group under the HHEERHEMER—RIETE
lease contract of Huairou Hypermarket. That prepaid M1sEMEREHEE] HHE
rents are disclosed in long-term prepaid expenses NHEeREERAERZEEAR
and other current assets as at the relevant balance RERHGHERAREMREE
sheet dates. Details are referred to Note 3 of the major EF - F2 R Ll KL B HEE
transactions between the Group and Shoulian Group. SENFERXH2HES 0
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL tE RAMBHRREREEGEE
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

1. Accounts receivable 1 FEWERR
(1) December 31,2015 (1) 2015%12H31H
Presentation of accounts receivable by category: FEUSBR TR D FE 4 TR -
2015.12.31
Category 5l “E2-Bf+ZA=1-H
Net book
Carrying amount Bad debt provision value
RERE BRER REEE
Proportion Rate
Amount (%) Amount (%)
k2 LEAl (%) 8 FEWA(%)
Receivables that are individually ERSBEANTER
significant and for which bad debt SHERREREN
provision is assessed individually BRI - - - - -
Receivables for which bad debt EERRRFHAS
provision is assessed by groups FREREREN
according to credit risk characteristics ~ JEMZUE 260,613,309 99 - - 260,613,309
Receivables that are not individually EESBIENEER
significant but for which the bad SHESREER
debt provision is assessed individually e A 1,753,916 1 1,753,916 100 -
Total A3t 262,367,225 100 1,753,916 260,613,309
2015 &3
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T REMBRREERAETRA)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

1. Accounts receivable (Continued) 1 BWERR(E)

(1) December 31,2015 (Continued) (1) 2015%12531H (#
Presentation of accounts receivable according to aging R R R E NI ATER B BAHETE Y
analysis on the basis of the date when revenue is BRI T -
recognized

2015.12.31
Aging i —E2-HF+=A=+—H
Carrying Proportion Bad debt Net book
amount % provision value
8 e £5il(%) AR IREEE
Within 1 year 1FELAR 180,613,309 69 - 180,613,309
3-4 years 3E4F 1,753,916 1 1,753,916
Over 5 years 5F Ak 80,000,000 30 - 80,000,000
Total &t 262,367,225 100 1,753,916 260,613,309
Accounts receivable of related parties FEU BAESE 7 B FRIE AT
Relationship Proportion
between of the total
other related accounts
parties and the receivable of the
Company Amount Company (%)
1 FE AR
Company name BNERE AR B REEF SHE  BAENLHI(%)
Jingkelong Langfang REE RS Subsidiary
FATA 84,193,642 32
Shouchao Group HHEE Subsidiary
FRA] 48,490,663 18
Jingkelong Tongzhou REREEM Subsidiary
FRA] 22,982,906 9
Total &5 155,667,211 59
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STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

1. Accounts receivable (Continued) 1>

(1)

)

FERERRR (&

(1) 2015%125318 (%)
HABESBIAEANBEBTIRE

December 31,2015 (Continued)

Receivables that are not individually significant but for

which the bad debt provision is assessed individually BREE R FE UL BR X
Content of accounts Bad debt
receivable Amount provision Rate (%) Reason
EWERZRAR BRERAEE ERE&E sHRLEfI(%) HEMH
Liu Liangguo 1,753,916 1,753,916 100 Controversial debts
which are unlikely
to recover
2= B BEEAE R REEREED
Uk E AT RS R K
December 31,2014 (2) 2014F12H31H
Presentation of accounts receivable by category: JERBR R DA FE -
2014.12.31
Category 85l ZE-NE+ZA=t-H
Net book
Carrying amount Bad debt provision value
RERE BREE REER
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Rate (%)
t8 ELA(%) E2 LE1(%)
Receivables that are individually significant EE4EEATES
and for which bad debt provision is FHRERERN
assessed individually A - - = = =
Receivables for which bad debt provision  ZEBREREHAS
is assessed by groups according to HREREEN
credit risk characteristics felizroE 262,791,528 99 262,791,528
Receivables that are not individually EESBIENEER
significant but for which the bad debt ~ EHEZEREMEH
provision is assessed individually FElE 1,890,679 1 1,890,579 100 -
Total At 264,682,107 100 1,890,579 262,791,528
2015 &3
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL i RAMBHERETEHBZEA)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

1. Accounts receivable (Continued) 1 EWERR(E)

(2) December 31,2014 (Continued) (2) 2014%F12H318(#&)
Presentation of accounts receivable according to aging FEURBR FRE R A TERR B BT TE Y
analysis on the basis of the date when revenue is BRERIOT -
recognized

2014.12.31
Aging BRHe —E-EF+=ZA=+—H”
Carrying Proportion Bad debt Net book
amount (%) provision value
k| EEB1(%) IR BREEE
Within 1 year 1FELAA 182,791,528 69 - 182,791,528
2-3 years 2FE3F 1,890,579 1 1,890,579 -
4-5 years 4B 80,000,000 30 - 80,000,000
Total SNl 264,682,107 100 1,890,579 262,791,528
Accounts receivable of related parties FENS RAES T O RIBIA T
Relationship Proportion
between of the total
other related accounts
parties and the receivable of the
Company Amount Company (%)
- 16 FEURBR 5K
Company name B A e RN/ RS ok BEERI L 51(%)
Jingkelong Langfang R R Subsidiary
F 7] 92,215,140 35
Shouchao Group HHEE Subsidiary
FRA] 46,321,839 18
Jingkelong Tongzhou REEBM Subsidiary
FRA] 19,147,272 7
Total S 157,684,251 60
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

1. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) December 31,2014 (Continued)

Receivables that are not individually significant but for

RS el bE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 2015F12H31HILF&E

il

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIz4B55) » £EEE N BARKET)

T RRAMBRREIRRETERE)

1 BEWERIR(Z)
(2) 20144128318 (#&)
HiRBIES M~ & ABEIERE

which the bad debt provision is assessed individually BREE R FE UL BR X

2015.6.30 (unaudited)
—E-RFNA=ZTRGREER)

Content of accounts Bad debt
receivable provision Rate (%) Reason
EWERAR EReR SHRLEDI(%) IEBm
Liu Liangguo 1,890,579 100  Controversial debts which
are unlikely to recover
25 BRAERFEETEEN
i Yot [ AT B 1R K
Reversals in the current year REEOFEROT :
Accumulated
Basis of recognizing the bad debt
Content of accounts Reversal previously bad provision prior Amount
receivable reasons debt provision to reversals of reversals
Ol 5] &5+
B AR AR AR
EWERAR BOHRE T R R B VIR B EEI
Liu Liangguo Partially Controversial debts which 1,890,579 136,663
recovered are unlikely to recover
2556 2 & EL BEAHRFEE B

IEAEREERIPN
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL i RAMBHERETEHBZEA)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

1. Accounts receivable (Continued) 1 EWERR(E)
(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of (3) HBRFTEEFB R T EEE
accounts receivable FEWRERF 1SR
December 31, 2015 2015%12H31H
Proportion of
the amount Closing
to the total balance of
Relationship with accounts bad debt
the Company Amount  Aging receivable (%) provision
RS BREE
Name of entity BHEE AAA ARG 28 ER BRMLLB(%) HREE
Jingkelong Langfang REEES Subsidiary 84,193,642  Within 1 year 32 S
FAA 1EHUR
Shoulian Group (Note(Vl) 2) ~ EHEE Independent third party | 80,000,000  Over 5 years 31 -
(= - 2) Bug=5H SELL
Shouchao Group EREE Subsidiary 48,490,663  Within 1 year 18 -
FoHF 1EUR
Jingkelong Tongzhou REERN Subsidiary 22,982,906 Within 1 year 9 -
FAF 1EHUR
Beiing Balitongda E-commerce Jr REEEEEE  Independent third party | 4,775,393 Within 1 year 2 S
Company Limited SEAA BUE=H 155R
Total A% 240,442,604 92 -
December 31, 2014 2014%12H31H
Proportion of
the amount Closing
to the total balance of
Relationship with accounts bad debt
the Company Amount  Aging receivable (%) provision
) {EEIRERST SRR
Name of entity BAHE HANRER tE 4R BER (%) BReH
Jingkelong Langfang REERY Subsidiary 92,215,140 Within 1 year 3% -
FAR 1ELR
Shoulian Group (Note(Vl) 2) ~ EHEE Independent third party 80,000,000  4-5 years 30 -
(MzE~ - 2) BUE=H 4-5%F
Shouchao Group BHEE Subsidiary 46,321,839 Within 1 year 18 =
FAOHF 1ER
Jingkelong Tongzhou REERN Subsidiary 19,147,272 Within 1 year 7 -
FAR 1ELR
Beiing Balitongda E-commerce tR@BEEEEE  Independent third party 7,261,388 Within 1 year 3 -
Company Limited SEAA BUE=FH EDLN
Total At 244,945,639 93 -
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables 2>

H b FE KK

(1) December 31, 2015 (1) 2015F12531H

Presentation of other receivables by category: H UG D SRR

2015.12.31
Category <] “E-EE+tZA=t-H
Net book
Carrying amount Bad debt provision value
REHE BRER REEE
Proportion Rate
Amount (%) Amount (%)
kX £ 5i(%) S8 HREA%)
Other receivables that are individually FESREAVES
significant and for which bad debt FHEEREREN
provision is assessed individually HiEYHR 6,212,250 1 4,224,750 68 1,987,500
Other receivables for which bad debt RERRRKHAS
provision is assessed by groups HHEERERN
according to credit risk characteristics ~ E 1M 892,546,300 99 - - 892,546,300
Other receivables that are not BESETEARER
individually significant but for SHESRERN
which the bad debt provision e
is assessed individually 2,051,300 - 1,171,772 57 879,528
Total At 900,809,850 100 5,396,522 895,413,328
Presentation of other receivables according to aging E b EUGRERBR LN T -
analysis:
2015.12.31
Aging BR R —E-HF+=A=+—H
Carrying Proportion Bad debt Net book
amount (%) provision value
&8 Lt 45l (%) HREE REEE
Within 1 year 1F AR 891,338,111 99 - 891,338,111
1-2 years 1224 1,208,189 - - 1,208,189
2-3 years 2E3F - - - -
3-4 years 3E4F 2,051,300 - 1,171,772 879,528
4-5 years 4ZE5F - - - -
Over 5 years 5 6,212,250 1 4,224,750 1,987,500
Total &t 900,809,850 100 5,396,522 895,413,328
2015 &3
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL i RAMBHERETEHBZEA)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued) 2 - HihEWRRE)
(1) December 31, 2015 (Continued) (1) 2015%12531H(#%&)
Other receivables that are individually significant but for HREESEEATEBHRER
which the bad debt provision is assessed individually: HE R E b FEULER
Content of other Carrying Bad debt
receivables amount provision Rate(%) Reason
HitEBRRAR IREIBREE RS  FHRHEGI(%) EMH
Beijing Guanyuan 6,212,250 4,224,750 68 Full bad debt provision for the
Wholesale Market part unrecovered, according
Company Limited to the agreement
IREEEmILE RIELE L HE - HRKE
MHEERAA W IRIERER
Other receivables that are not individually significant HAREBESBIENBERN RS
but for which the bad debt provision is assessed B AE {5 ) ELAth FE UK
individually:
Content of other Carrying Bad debt
receivables amount provision Rate(%) Reason
HitEBRRE BRTE BREE BIRESE FHREEA(%) EH
Beijing Bailitongda 2,051,300 1,171,772 57 Full bad debt provision for the
E-commerce part unable to recover,
Company Limited pursuant to the judgment
awarded by the court
IRBEMEERE WRBERHR - HREEW
ERATA B35 &R AR
There is no reversal of other receivables in the current year. ARF R )5
Other receivables of related parties: Hofth fE U BEESE T MO FRIB A0 T
Relationship between Proportion of the
other related parties total other receivables
and the Company Amount of the Company (%)
15 B Ab FE W AR X
Company name BNERE HEAQFEER ot} 428 B £ 1 (%)
Chaopi Trading Bt E Subsidiary
FATA 770,000,000 86
Shoulian Supermarket EHHE™ Subsidiary
FAA 45,000,000 5
Jingkelong Tongzhou  FEMEM  Subsidiary
FRA] 25,241,437 3
Tota = 840,241,437 94
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued) HiEWR ()

(2) December 31, 2014 (2) 2014%12H31A8

Presentation of other receivables by category: H UG D SRR

2014.12.31
Category Bl “F-NE+-A=1+-H
Net book
Carrying amount Bad debt provision value
REHE ERER REBE
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Rate (%)
E2 FE1l(%) +8 ELA1(%)
Other receivables that are individually EREREATER
significant and for which bad debt SHERERERR
provision is assessed individually Hi el 6,549,750 1 4,224,750 65 2,325,000
Other receivables for which bad debt ~ REREREHEA
provision is assessed by groups SREREEN
according to credit risk characteristics ~ EA W 580,240,203 %8 - - 580,240,203
Other receivables that are not BESETEAMER
individually significant but for SHERRERN
which the bad debt provision E ML
is assessed individually 2,051,300 1 1,171,772 57 879,528
Total At 588,841,253 100 5,396,522 583,444,731
Presentation of other receivables according to aging EfbEUFRERER DT ¢
analysis:
2014.12.31
Aging ARER —E-NOE+=-—A=+—H
Carrying Bad debt Net book
amount  Proportion(%) provision value
k-] EE1l(%) AR REEE
Within 1 year 1F AR 580,240,203 99 - 580,240,203
2-3 years 2E3F 2,051,300 = 1,171,772 879,528
4-5 years 4E5F 6,549,750 1 4,224,750 2,325,000
Total {SiE) 588,841,253 100 5,396,522 583,444,731
2015 &3
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

TE PR BHRRETERBZRE)

2. Other receivables (Continued) 2 - HihEWRRE)

(2) December 31, 2014 (Continued) (2) 2014%12H318(#&)

HREIRGEEAY BB HRIER

Other receivables that are individually significant but for

which the bad debt provision is assessed individually: HE R E b FEULER
Content of other Carrying Bad debt
receivables amount provision Rate(%) Reason
Hih YRR BRIEIEREE ZReH EHRLEGI(%) e
Beijing Guanyuan 6,549,750 4,224,750 65  Full bad debt provision for the
Wholesale Market part unrecovered, according
Company Limited to the agreement
IR E B E et E *Eﬂfz £y ek HRURE
M5 AERAA DETREREE
Other receivables that are not individually significant HREBESEITEANBEETIRE
but for which the bad debt provision is assessed AR ) E At FRUGGR -
individually:
Content of other Carrying Bad debt
receivables amount provision Rate(%) Reason
H A FE U R A AR #REE ZReE FHRLEBI(%) FRER
Beijing Bailitongda 2,051,300 1,171,772 57  Full bad debt provision for the
E-commerce part unable to recover,
Company Limited pursuant to the judgment
awarded by the court
tmBEfEERE RIBEBTFIR - HARREI
BRATA o ETIRERAER
Reversals in the current year: REERFERWT :
Accumulated
Basis of recognizing bad debt
Reversal the previously bad provision prior Amount of
Company name reasons debt provision to reversals reversals
- ORIt
HETE SRR AR Eat iR 8 SREk
H At FEU KA E o RE K& EHEHE Eol&
Beijing Guanyuan Partially Controversial debts 6,687,500 2,462,750
Wholesale Market recovered which are unlikely
Company Limited to recover
R EEEmitt 285 B BEBAHRREFEFH
MHAERAQE 42 =l A] BE 14 K
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2 HpbFEWGKR(E

2. Other receivables (Continued)

(2) December 31, 2014 (Continued) (2) 2014%12H31H (#&)

AAREREB RIS —REMHE
S WEtE BARBAETNERRR
Rt WaEEEE RS
B - B AR RIR IR AR KA
Yo o] & RE 88 AR A4 o

The Company has obtained a right of receiving rent
from certain shop of the debtor, and the income
of the rent were predicted to receive based on the
lessee’s credit status, so bad debt provision for
Beijing Guanyuan was partly reversed according to the
predicted recoverable amount in the future.

Hith FE AR BERSE T O TR T

Other receivables of related parties

Relationship Proportion of

between other
related parties

the total other
receivables of the

and the Company Amount Company (%)
- 1 E A FE MR 3R
Company name BHHE EARNEREEFE &5 REEHYEE(%)

Chaopi Trading HitEE Subsidiary
F 7] 450,000,000 76

Shoulian Supermarket EXiTEni Subsidiary
F 7] 45,000,000 8

Jingkelong Tongzhou REREMN Subsidiary
SR A] 25,279,063 4

Xinyang Tongli i Subsidiary
FAA] 3,000,000 1
Total At 523,279,063 89

(3) Presentation of other receivables by nature (3) HEREMETRAMERL
2015.12.31 2014.12.31
—B-EHF —ET—NF
Nature of other receivables Hib U S +=BA=+—H +=-—A=+—H
Receivables of promotional activities — FEU (T 54 & FA 51,523,498 54,448,770
Receivables of prepaid rent EURFEAHEE R S -
Receivables of reimbursed expenses FEU (X218 % = 1,032,326
Receivables of reimbursed JEM R EA T2

construction fees = _
Receivables of related parties FE Ui A B 5 3018 840,241,437 523,279,063
Others Hih 3,648,393 4,684,572
Total S 895,413,328 583,444,731

2015 &R
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL i RAMBHERETEHBZEA)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued) 2 - HihEWRRE)
(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other (4) BRTGEHBENHARGEINEEY
receivables RN 1ER
December 31, 2015 2015%12H31H
Proportion of Closing
the amount to balance of
Nature of other Closing the total other bad debt
receivables balance  Aging receivables (%) provision
hEMERE BREE
Company name Efi4H HEHE BREE KR EEMLAI%) BRGBE
Chaopi Trading EE Receivables of subsidiary 770,000,000  Within 1 year 86 -
borrowing EDL
FRAEMER
Shoulian Supermarket Lkl Receivables of subsidiary 45,000,000  Within 1 year 5 -
borrowing 150/
FRABK
Jingkelong Tongzhou REEEN Current account 25,241,437 Within 1 year 3 -
fHRs 1E5R
Beiing Guanyuan Wholesale ~ JtREE@M#E  Receivables of prepaid rent 6,212,250  Over 5 years 1 4,204,750
Market Company Limited TEERAF e 58N E
Beiing Baiitongda E-commerce  t RAFEERE Receivables of rent 2,051,300  3-4 years = 1,171,772
Company Limited ERAA S 34F
Total At 848,504,987 95 5,396,522
December 31, 2014 2014%12H31H
Proportion of Closing
the amount to balance of
Nature of other Closing the total other bad debt
receivables balance  Aging receivables (%) provision
HEtEK BRER
Company name BNATE HEE HReE Bk BEN %) R
Chaopi Trading Eiiga Receivables of subsidiary 450,000,000  Within 1 year 76 -
borrowing 1EUR
FRAER
Shoulian Supermarket Elih Receivables of subsidiary 45,000,000  Within 1 year 8 -
borrowing 1ER
FRRMER
Jingkelong Tongzhou REERN Current account 25,279,063 Within 1 year 4 =
AR 1ELAR
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale 1 REER®4%  Receivables of prepaid rent 6,549,750  4-5 years 1 4,224,750
Market Company Limited 35 BRAT B 4E5E
Xinyang Tongli ki Receivables of subsidiary 3,000,000  Within 1 year 1 -
borrowing 1A
FRAER
Total ait 529,828,813 9 4,224,750
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

3.

Long-term equity investment

T RRAMBRREIRRETERE)

3 REAKRERE

December 31, 2015 201512531 H
Initial
Accounting investment Change
methods cost 2015.1.1 in the year 2015.12.31
—E-T1% —E-1%
Investee RREEN BRERE NRERK —A-H BR2Es +-A=t-H
Long-term equity investment ¥+ AR K
in subsidiaries RHER &
Jingkelong Langfang REERYS cost method
BARE 8,000,000 83,980,000 - 83,980,000
Chaopi Trading AHHE cost method
AE 55,733,000 436,505,594 - 436,505,594
Xinyang Tongli RE@ N cost method
BARE 832,500 1,665,000 3,900,775 5,565,775
Shoulian Supermarket BEBT cost method
AR 121,160,000 422,484,500 - 422,484,500
Jingkelong Tongzhou REEAM cost method
A% 29,000,000 29,000,000 - 29,000,000
Training School I8 cost method
A% 500,000 - 500,000 500,000
Total At 973,635,094 4,400,775 978,035,869
Description of
the difference Provision for
Proportion Proportion  between the  Provision for impairment
of ownership of voting former and impairment losses in  Cash dividend
interests (%) power (%) the latter losses the year in the year
ERREEN
EERE ERRE  BRULAE
Bk  BURRE  RRELA REGR rE
Investee BREEMN £ 4(%) Bhl%) F-HHEHSA HEER AEER B4R
Long-term equity investment HTRRIRY
in subsidiaries RiERE
Jingkelong Langfang RS 100 100 = 5 S S
Chaopi Trading fHEg 79.85 79.85 - - - 39,925,900
Xinyang Tongli REE@N 55.66 55.66 - - - 166,500
Shoulian Supermarket EE e 100 100 s = S S
Jingkelong Tongzhou REEBN 100 100 - - - -
Training School EIERK 100 100 - - - -
Total At - - - 40,092,400
2015 3§
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL i RAMBHERETEHBZEA)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

3. Long-term equity investment (Continued) 3 RHEREREE)
December 31, 2014 20144125318
Initial
Accounting investment Change
methods cost 201411 in the year 2014.12.31
\ —E-mE . —Z-mE
Investee WIRE EAL BRERE e ERA —R—H BREH +-A=t—AH
Long-term equity investment ¥ AR K H
in subsidiaries RS E
Jingkelong Langfang REERS cost method
A% 8,000,000 83,980,000 - 83,980,000
Chaopi Trading BtEE cost method
A 55,733,000 436,505,594 - 436,505,594
Xinyang Tongl GE A cost method
A% 832,500 1,665,000 - 1,665,000
Shoulian Supermarket Eliy] cost method
BAE 121,160,000 422,484,500 - 422,484,500
Jingkelong Tongzhou REEBM cost method
A% 29,000,000 29,000,000 - 29,000,000
Total At 973,635,094 - 973,635,094
Description of
the difference Provision for
Proportion Proportion  between the  Provision for impairment
of ownership of voting ~ formerand  impairment losses in Cash dividend
interests (%) power (%) the latter losses the year in the year
) } ERBEER
ERERE ERKRE  FRLGIRE \
BBR  EURAME  RMELD ‘ AEGTR AE
Investee WIRB BN L 151(%) HBl%) —EREEtA AEERE REERE ReH
Long-term equity investment  ¥fF 7 71K HH
in subsidiaries R E
Jingkelong Langfang REERS 100 100 = = = =
Chaopi Trading BiEE 79.85 79.85 - - - 39,925,900
Xinyang Tongli fRbz i@ 71 52.03 52.03 - - - 333,000
Shoulian Supermarket Elydéh 100 100 = = = =
Jingkelong Tongzhou REREM 100 100 - - - -
Total = = - - 40,258,900
On December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, no R2015F 12 431 H & 201412 A 31
restriction appeared on the capability of transferring fund BARARFENRBRERE ZHINE
from investee to the Company. BRNRARRERESHEENRZIR
il o
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T RAMBHERETEHBZEEA)

STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

4. Operating income and operating cost 4~ EEWA - EERK
2015 2014

ltem pEl= 20155 E 201458
Income Cost Income Cost
['ON 2% ILON XA
Principal operating TR 4,244,309,545 3,619,530,540 | 4,329,989,495 3,684,775,546
Other operating H R 302,816,369 3,316,647 316,428,302 1,790,045
Total = 4,547,125,914 3,622,847,187 | 4,646,417,797 3,686,565,591

The Company’s business principally comprises retailing, so

the top five customers are not disclosed.

The principal operating mainly engages in the distribution of

food, untagged food, daily necessities, beverage and wine.

ARBELEBTEATEER - Bk
WEARAKRES °

o

TEEBRATERHERR  BIR
- ARVBEER - SREME SIS
A e

5. Investment income 5 BEWR
2015 2014
ltem HH 2015FE 2014F E
Long-term equity investment income accounted XA EZZ )& ARG A
for by using the cost method & Wz 40,092,400 40,258,900
Investment gain from buying financial products 28 & @1 & WA 613,465 2,674,517
Total &t 40,705,865 42,933,417

As at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, no
significant restriction appeared on the Company’s remittance

of investment income.

MR2015F12 A31 H & 2014512 A 31
B AARMEERSERTNFEELR
PRl o

XVI. APPROVAL FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS +A B ERZHE
The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the AABR AT REHETBHERN2016FE3 A

financial statements of the Company were approved by the board IHERAANTESSHE

of directors on March 21, 2016.

2015 &R
IR RREEEEERNDERAR



SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
HIFERE

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity UTABBEASERBEREANRERE 2 EE - &
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the E AERRAZBE:
Company’s annual reports, is set out below.

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—B-Hf | —T-NF  ZT=-fF T —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBEFT ARET T ARETT  ARETL
Results #E
Revenue FEEBRA 10,572,672 | 10,007,135 9,629,191 9,205,360 8,632,531
Profit before tax B 113,379 132,503 143,485 229,629 352,968
Income tax expense TS & R (41,033) (43,641) (43,169) (57,824) (79,957)
Profit for the year SEF) S 72,346 88,862 100,316 171,805 273,011
Attributable to: EBER
Shareholders of the parent FARMEE
E)EFlNE 24,865 41,330 57,056 105,105 210,160
Minority interests DY R R B 47,481 47,532 43,260 66,700 62,851
72,346 88,862 100,316 171,805 273,011
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-EF —T—F —T—=F —F—= —T——%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Assets, Liabilities and Equity BE - BERRA

Non-current assets IEREEE 2,485,217 2,475,179 2,482,067 2,377,251 2,281,615
Current assets REEE 5,885,554 4,766,324 4,667,991 4,137,258 4,045,886
Current liabilities FREEE (5,458,025) |  (4,261,812)  (4,064,904)  (4,287,849)  (4,210,344)
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE,/(BR)

FH 427,529 504,512 603,087 (150,591) (164,458)
Total assets less current liabilities  BEER B AE 2,912,746 2,979,691 3,085,154 2,226,660 2,117,157
Non-current liabilities ERBaBE (803,232) (884,626) (1,008,803 (226,612) (225,040)
Net assets FEE 2,109,514 2,095,065 2,076,351 2,000,048 1,892,117
Equity attributable to shareholders BRI A

of the parent R RS 1,636,512 1,653,680 1,654,780 1,644,044 1,619,871

Minority interests DER R 473,002 441,385 421,571 356,004 272,246
Total equity R 2,109,514 2,095,065 2,076,351 2,000,048 1,892,117

Note: the data 2011 is prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting & @ 2011FKEBBREBEE S ERES - 20120 %
Standard, and the data of 2012 to 2015 is prepared in accordance with 2015F BB IRBEE G ERRS -
Accounting Standard for Business Enterprise.
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